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Integrated Reporting

At Godrej Consumer Products Limited (GCPL), we have been publishing a statutory annual report, in line with the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; Companies Act, 2013; and 

Secretarial Standards. This is our fourth Annual and Integrated Report, aligned with the principles of the International Integrated 

Reporting Framework (referred to as the <IR> framework) developed by the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC). 

In addition, this report is aligned with the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) standards required by the Sustainability Reporting 

Guidelines of GRI and the Business Responsibility Report (BRR) requirements of SEBI.

Our Research & Development team leads 
new product development in India
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Content of
the report

Reporting
period

Through integrated reporting, we aim 

This report provides insights on:

• 

• 

• Our key strategies

• 

• 

• 

• 

Management 
Committee
endorsement and 
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Materiality 

Approach to materiality Methodology 
We approach materiality from a strategic 

and value creation perspective. Material 

conversations with our stakeholders and 

monitoring broad trends in the industry. 

Performance on material issues forms the 

core content of this Annual and Integrated   

conducted an extensive materiality 

exercise, which involved engaging an 

external partner and enabling a thorough 

understanding of the relationship of the 

material issues with our business risks, 

objectives, and value creation.

 

Materiality analysis was performed 

systematic step-wise process was followed. 

First, relevant insights were collected 

through primary and secondary research 

and, then, necessary calculations were 

performed to obtain the materiality matrix. 

Primary inputs were obtained through 

direct stakeholder engagement, that is, 

through discussions on material issues with 

various stakeholder groups. Furthermore, 

surveys were conducted to reach out to 

employees and gather information at scale.

Identify issues across 

6 capitals

• GCPL sustainability reports

• Peer analysis

• Sector trends

• Internal team consultation

Overview of the methodology

Engage with 450+ key stakeholders 

on material issues

• Leadership team

• Employees

• Investors

• Suppliers

• Distributors

• NGO partners

• Consumers

• 

• Industry associates

Develop a materiality matrix 

using a specialised tool 

• Stakeholder responses

• External requirements

• 

• Internal team consultation

The process of determining materiality

at GCPL is compliant with the prescriptions 

of the IIRC and draws from the 6 capitals of 

integrated reporting.
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Stakeholder engagement
Upon identifying a broad list of material 

issues, interactions were initiated with each 

key stakeholder group. Each material issue 

was assessed for its relative importance 

with respect to different stakeholder groups 

and aggregated. Stakeholder analysis was 

performed by identifying key stakeholders 

and administering tailored questionnaires to 

each of them.

 

Stakeholder prioritisation

Leadership team High High

Consumers Medium Medium

Suppliers Medium Medium

NGO partners Low Medium

Employees Medium High

Investors Medium High

Distributors Medium Medium

Industry associates

Low

Low

Medium

Medium

Ability of a stakeholder to 

performance and operations performance and operationsStakeholder group

To develop the materiality matrix, it was 

necessary to collate stakeholder responses. 

Because not all stakeholders are equally 

important in the organisational context, 

they were rated based on 2 parameters: 

then assigned weightages on the basis of 

these 2 parameters.

The secondary research primarily 

involved analysis of various sector trends, 

sustainability reports, and select peer 

analysis. These aspects were further 

rated based on the level of importance 

ascertained by us and our stakeholders.
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Feedback from stakeholders determined our top material issues, which are all within our boundary of operations. 

Our material issues are linked to our strategic pillars.

1. Sustainable packaging 1. Accelerating innovation and building purposeful brands: Integrating sustainability 

into our brand purpose through sustainable packaging

2. Enhancing go-to-market: Differentiating our products and exploring new market 

segments

3. Building a more inclusive and greener world: Driving responsible consumption by 

reducing post-consumer footprint of packaging material

3. Responsible marketing and      

    communication

1. Accelerating innovation and building purposeful brands: Developing products with 

natural ingredients to differentiate our products from those already available in the 

market and improve market position

2. Making our supply chain best-in-class: Integrating sustainable materials into our supply 

chain for rapid innovation and product development

3. Building a more inclusive and greener world: Reducing the overall footprint of our 

product penetration

2. Research and development (R&D) 1. Accelerating innovation and building purposeful brands: Developing products with 

natural ingredients to differentiate our products from those already avaliable in the 

market and improve market position

2. Making our supply chain best-in-class: Integrating sustainable materials into our 

supply chain for rapid innovation and product development

3. Building a more inclusive and greener world: Reducing the overall footprint of our 

product penetration

Top material issues 
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4. Building inclusive and

    prosperous communities

5. Governance and accountability

6. Occupational health and safety

7. Skill development and training

1. Making our supply chain best-in-class: Improving the environmental footprint of our 

entire supply chain

2. Building a more inclusive and greener world: Improving social relationships through 

CSR interventions in local communities

1. Making our supply chain best-in-class: Improving the performance of our entire value 

chain through governance, codes, policies, and audits

2. Fostering an inclusive, agile, and high-performance culture: Harnessing our company 

purpose to build greater engagement with team members and drive agility            

and innovation

1. Making our supply chain best-in-class: Ensuring best practices are followed to improve 

overall performance across the value chain

2. Fostering an inclusive, agile, and high-performance culture: Building greater 

engagement with team members by focusing on their safety and well-being

1. Extending leadership in core categories and geographies

2. Leveraging digital: Achieving improved growth and market penetration by developing 

the skills (including digital skills) of team members

3. Fostering an inclusive, agile, and high-performance culture: Enhancing the skills of 

team members to build capabilities and improve engagement

Top material issues 
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entire universe of material issues 
and stakeholder input and its 
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A note on 
COVID-19 

pandemic had a multi-fold impact on our 

business. We experienced a similar impact 

22, with the second and third waves of the 

pandemic. However, towards the end of this 

business and a return to normal operations.   

The impact, mitigation, and recovery 

are discussed in detail in our leadership 

messages and our 7 strategic pillars.
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Frequency and manner of 
stakeholder engagement

Investors and 

shareholders

Employees

• Making our supply chain best-in-class: Improving the environmental footprint of 

our entire supply chain

• Building a more inclusive and greener world: Improving social relationships 

through CSR interventions in local communities

• Investor meets 

• Investor calls 

• Roadshows and grievance forums for shareholders and investors

• Weekly/monthly reviews

• HR forums

• Town halls 

• Small group discussions

• Employee engagement surveys

• 360-degree feedback

Stakeholders and their 

We engage with all our 

stakeholders on a regular basis 

to foster and nurture strong 

relationships, which in turn 

help us improve our strategy 

and decision-making and grow 

our business. In a crisis like 

the COVID-19 pandemic, our 

partnerships with our stakeholders 

became even more important. 

The table below provides an 

overview of our stakeholder 

engagement process and the 

steps we take to understand 

the needs and priorities of each 

stakeholder group.
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Sustainability and 
other concerns

Our engagement 
approach

• Product safety and quality

• Waste management and 

circular economy

• 

• Focus on carbon emission, renewable and clean 

energy, and air pollution

• Technology, product, and process innovation

• Embed sustainability in supply chain

• Health, safety, and mental well-being

• Skill development and learning

• Circular economy principles

• Water recycling and reuse

• Sustainable packaging

• Providing high-quality, safe products that delight consumers

• Understanding short and long-term needs

• Ensuring responsible consumer engagement

• Communicating progress transparently

• Ensuring a safe and productive place to work where employees 

can be their whole selves

• Prioritising learning and development

• Highlighting employee feedback mechanisms through a variety 

of channels

• Enabling medical facilities for employees and their families
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Suppliers 

community

regulatory bodies

• Sustainable procurement initiative

• Supplier meets

• Audits 

• Annual suppliers conference

• Customer meets

• Customer surveys

• Feedback calls

• Direct visits

• Project planning and review meetings

• Need assessment surveys

• Field visits

• Feedback surveys

• One-on-one meetings

• Meetings in industry forums

Frequency and manner of 
stakeholder engagement

Stakeholders and their 
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• Product safety and quality

• Responsible supply chain

• Reducing environmental footprint

• Waste management and circular economy

• Sustainable packaging

• Greater market penetration

• Responsible marketing and communication

• Building inclusive and prosperous communities

• 

management

• Building inclusive and prosperous communities

• Supporting and enhancing their capabilities through skill 

development, growth opportunities, and safe operations 

• Using technology to assess and respond in an agile manner

• Providing high-quality, safe products that delight consumers

• Ensuring responsible consumer engagement

• Responding to the COVID-19 crisis by supporting communities 

with immediate relief kits and medical supplies and longer term 

livelihood revival

• Creating and scaling up programmes that meet the needs 

of communities in terms of livelihoods, public health, waste 

management, and water conservation

• Committing to meet and exceed compliance and regulatory 

mandates 

• Collaborating on national agendas to build inclusive and 

prosperous communities

Sustainability and 
other concerns

Our engagement 
approach
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Godrej Consumer Products is a part of the over 125-year-young Godrej Group. 

We are fortunate to have a proud legacy built on the strong values of trust, integrity, 

and respect for others. As an emerging markets company, we have witnessed rapid 

growth and are pursuing our exciting and innovative aspirations.

Our 
Company

Our Values
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Our Purpose
Bringing the goodness of health and beauty 

to consumers in emerging markets

Watch the video
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90+ 1.2

1.6 10.1

10,000+
countries consumers

revenue market cap

bn

USD 

bn FY 21-22

USD 

bn FY 21-22

Godrejites

Leading presence in 
Asia, Africa, and Latin America

#1  Household Insecticides
#1  Hair Colour

#1  Household Insecticides
#1  Air Care

#1  Hair Colour 
      (Ethnic hair)
#1  Hair Extensions
      

IndonesiaSub-Saharan Africa

#1 Hair Colour (Argentina)
#1 Hair Fixing Sprays (Argentina)**
#1 Depilatory Products (Chile)

Source: **Scentia
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Sustainability

23%

Godrej 
Good & Green

United Nations

Home Care Personal Care

Household Insecticides
Air Care
Fabric Care
Home Hygiene

Personal Wash and Hygiene
Hair Colour
Premium Beauty and Professional Products

For over 125 years, the Godrej Group 
has actively championed social responsibility. 
It’s core to who we are.

of the promoter holdings in the 

Group is held in trusts that invest in 

education, environment, and health

Creating a more inclusive and 

greener planet through

Aligned with the

Sustainable Development 

Goals, and the needs of 

local communities
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S

Executive Chairperson

Tanya Dubash
Non-executive Director

Sudhir Sitapati
Managing Director and CEO

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director Non-executive Director

S S

Board of 
Directors

S
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Independent Director

Sumeet Narang
Independent Director

Ireena Vittal
Lead Independent Director

Independent Director

Narendra Ambwani
Independent Director

Ndidi Nwuneli
Independent Director

Risk Management Committee

CSR Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee

Sustainability CommitteeS

Stakeholder Relationship Committee

Chairman

S

S
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A Letter to
Our Shareholders
Dear shareholders,
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The
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alues that are 
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The

1 A high percentage of TFM makes soap 
  last longer and is better on the skin.
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Nisaba Godrej
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In Conversation 
with our Managing 
Director and CEO, 
Sudhir Sitapati

Back in 2013, I spent time at a workshop on discovering my personal purpose. I did 

I felt that I was happiest when I was creating something. So, I framed my purpose as 

‘painting the unseen on a large canvas’. With time, I am now reframing my purpose 

to include a lens of ‘serving and defending institutions’. This is something I feel quite 

strongly about; in India and many emerging market countries, we need to cultivate 

more respect for institutions—how to pass the baton and build on the back of 

someone else, rather than ending the story when a person moves on. It is a big reason 

why I have chosen to build this leg of my career at Godrej, serving a legacy of 125 

years, with the ambition to make it stronger and more purposeful.

GCPL’s purpose to bring the goodness of health and beauty to consumers in emerging 

markets inspires me, and my greatest hope is that over the next few years, we will 

be able to truly bring this alive in how we innovate and transform our categories and 

serve our consumers. All our efforts around category development, innovation, and 

consumer delight will be directed towards this.

to call out our weaknesses, the biggest of which is complexity, and we are working 

to solve for it. With our track record of value creation, strong fundamentals, and a 

clear strategy ahead, I believe we can take our iconic company to double-digit volume 

growth.

At the heart of all of this, is our people. We will invest disproportionately in developing 

internal talent and capabilities with the aim of making GCPL a place where great talent 

comes to thrive. This is critical to enable our growth aspirations. 

What is your big dream for 
GCPL, and why is this of 
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Our game plan, quite simply, is to focus 

on category development of our existing 

portfolio, driven by product innovation, 

relevance building, and access and 

marketing investments, and funded by 

company. 

As market leaders in categories 

potential—by which I mean that these 

categories will naturally grow faster than 

GDP for a long period of time—we have 

the amazing opportunity to develop and 

expand our categories and build long-

term value. 

We have a really top-notch portfolio. 

From a geographic standpoint, 4 

countries—India, Indonesia, Nigeria, 

and Bangladesh—account for 80% of 

our revenues. Together, these countries 

comprise just below a third of the world’s 

population and have consistently grown 

at twice the GDP of the world; so these 

may be low-income countries, but they 

are growing very fast. We also have 4 

key products that account for 40% of our 

are very heavily underpenetrated—liquid 

vapourisers and aerosols in Household 

Insecticides; grey coverage in Hair Care; 

and our Air Care category. 

How do you plan to achieve the 
ambitious aspirations you have laid 

of blockbuster innovations and category 

development. Innovation has traditionally 

been GCPL’s strong suit. We will continue to 

build on that, but it is only half the solution. 

The other half is actually making these new 

products relevant and accessible, which 

we will do through more focused category 

development. 

 

Our portfolio and heritage are in 

democratisation, and this is what our 

strategy hinges on—making amazing 

quality products available at accessible 

price points. We had earlier democratised 

the Indian hair crème market by offering 

country at just 30. We have now launched 

this at 15, which will open it up to a new 

set of users. Similarly, we have introduced 

game-changing access packs in Household 

Insecticides in Indonesia. We have a slew of 

2022-23, which we believe will dramatically 

build the relevance of our categories. 

 

good progress, with the Global Category 

structure yielding early results. As our Cost 

fuel for growth and digital transformation. 

But investments are only part of the story in 

digital transformation.

We have also made two senior appointments 

digital transformation—Rajesh Sethuraman 

as CEO of ASEAN and Vijay Kannan as 

the Head of Business Transformation and 

Digital. Rajesh spent 21 years at Hindustan 

Unilever and Unilever, leading teams across 

categories and divisions in South Asia and 

value for the business. In his previous role, 

he led the execution of Unilever’s largest 

digital transformation programme across 

Asia, Africa, and the Middle East. Vijay was 

the Global Chief Information and Digital 

has past experience as Hindustan Unilever’s 

Asian Paints. The brief is simple: if we were 

at dramatically reducing our Cost to Serve, 

 

At the heart of our success today lies 

existing category penetration-led volume 

growth. I know it will not be easy to do 

this consistently, but I would measure 

medium-term success as achieving 

something in the vicinity of double-digit 

volume growth.
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Exchanging ideas and building plans for the year ahead at my 
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A business model works on paper, but 

to make real change possible we need a 

shared philosophy that we truly believe in. 

Over the last several months, I have spoken 

to and met many, many people across our 

company, and from those conversations and 

operating philosophy. These principles are 

already shaping the choices we make. Let 

me tell you how.

You have emphasised that a transformative 
business plan needs a philosophy that all of GCPL 
collectively believes in. Tell us more about the 
operating philosophy you have crafted.

The second is 

second. At GCPL, we have historically 

kept quality out of the equation on 

short-term business performance. It is 

pretty much an adage—quality cannot 

be tampered with to manage price 

volatility—and really laudable. This is 

do the same with media—delink media 

investments from short-term business 

performance, because ultimately media 

is also an investment in the future. Going 

forward, I hope you will see our consumer 

investments in terms of media remaining 

the same, regardless of gross margins in 

the short term.

. It guides not just how 

we do business, but also importantly, our 

commitment to becoming more sustainable. 

The environment is not a premium; our 

consumers should not have to pay a green 

premium. We have to innovate better and 

develop products that are both sustainable 

and more affordable. 

Our powder-to-liquid handwash, Magic, is 

a great example of how we have reduced 

plastic, water usage, and transportation 

costs to create a product that is a quarter 

the cost of other handwashes in the market, 

and can democratise the category at a time 

have taken Magic global, and the scale up is 

very encouraging.



35

Sharing our vision for GCPL with leaders from across 

Godrej at the Godrej Leadership Forum 2022. I am 

assisted on stage by a sign language interpreter.
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 is the third. One 

setting up a Global Category Team. As part 

of this shift, we have a centralised strategy, 

product development, innovation, and 

brand communication for our three core 

categories (Household Insecticides, Hair 

Colour, and Air Care), while keeping market 

development or category development 

and brand building, advertising, P&L, etc., 

local. This allows us to increase the rigour, 

objectivity, and consumer focus on activities 

that are particularly strategic and long term 

in nature—distinct from daily operations. 

We are doing this in areas where we 

see high fungibility across geographies 

effectiveness from a global approach. 

The rest of our portfolio, which is largely 

Soaps in India and Dry Hair in Africa, tends 

to be local businesses, operating mostly 

in one geography, and we don’t see the 

choiceful on why to globalise, and which 

parts of our portfolio and functions will 

The fourth is . Often 

consumer goods companies get caught in a 

‘today’ culture. Take forecasting. You forecast 

for ambition, and when you are not able to 

achieve it, to somehow make up for it, you 

compromise on the ‘tomorrow’ often just 

through media cuts. The big change we are 

trying to introduce is that while we have an 

ambition (double-digit volume growth in 

the medium term), our forecasts are always 

going to be for the reality on ground. We 

will hold our sales system responsible for 

delivering on a real forecast, and more 

senior management will be responsible for 

delivering on the ambition—decoupling 

ambition and forecasting.

Godrej aer Power Pocket, our patented gel technology for air fresheners, was doing well for a few 

years but then moderated. The question was around relevance—“I know about the product, but why 

the homeowner when guests visit. This is driving our new communication in India and Indonesia.
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. The best 

examples are of the bets we are taking 

on people. When we set up a Global 

Category structure, we promoted Robert 

Menzies, who previously worked as the 

Head of Strategy at Godrej Industries and 

the Head of GCPL’s E-commerce business 

in India, as the Global Head of Category, 

Innovation, and Strategy.

Building on our growth plans at GCPL’s Global Leadership 

Meet 2022 at our headquarters Godrej One in Mumbai

We appointed Somasree Bose, who had 

18 years of experience in GCPL as the 

Dawes, who had been working for 10 

years at GCPL as the Chief Creative 

BBLUNT, was appointed 

as the Global Head of Equity and 

Communication, to lead advertising on 

global brands. Amit Jain, who had spent 

10 years at GCPL, was heading Customer 

Marketing in India and we expanded his 

role to include Sales Development. But 

where we found that we did not have 

internal talent, we hired from outside. 

In Africa, where the business has turned 

around considerably, the role of the 

CFO is crucial.  We appointed Adesola 

Sotande-Peters in the role, who has 

previously worked at multinationals like 

Diageo and Unilever.
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I have spent nearly a quarter of my time 

travelling across India, Africa, Indonesia, 

and the USA, meeting our people and 

sharing in their stories. This was my 

induction to Godrej and what makes our 

legacy so powerful and unique. We have 

an incredible team, deeply committed 

to our company, values, and ambition. 

So, underlying all of our business 

ambitions is our continued commitment 

to fostering a values-based culture and 

organisation—what we call ‘sprinkling 

some people stardust’—making GCPL a 

place where great talent wants to come 

to work and thrive. 

Tough Love is at the heart of our 

employer proposition. We will nurture 

and bet on potential and internal talent. 

Developing best-in-class functional 

expertise is a big part of this, so this 

year we are doubling down on functional 

capability building. This includes creating 

global learning agendas and getting 

global experts to train our teams. 

thinking about careers and personal growth over the 
last couple of years. How is GCPL reimagining its people 

I am personally leading the work around 

building Marketing capabilities; Dharnesh 

Gordhon, Business Head of Africa, USA, 

and Middle East, is working on Sales 

capabilities; and Pallavi Wad, Head of the 

India Manufacturing and Supply Chain 

Organisation, is leading Supply Chain 

capability building. Given our operating 

model and global presence, there are great 

opportunities to build global careers and 

experiences across multiple emerging 

markets.  

We are also restructuring to build an 

organisation that is more empowered, lean, 

and digital. What this means for our people 

is richer, more meaningful jobs, with more 

empowerment. For our top talent, we will 

offer the high velocity that is made possible 

by our growth ambitions. We will match this 

with market-leading opportunities for value 

creation through our performance-linked 

rewards schemes. This is part of a more 

in-class wellness and medical support and 

Being diverse and inclusive is core to who 

we are at Godrej, emphasised by our 

values of Trust and Respect. Like with our 

sustainability commitments, we believe that 

the next phase requires us to shift from a 

‘do no harm’ approach to a ‘proactively 

do good’ approach. Our change agenda 

must be sponsored by our leadership team 

through accountability and role modelling. 

So, we are having critical conversations 

to make leaders more mindful of the 

power that resides with them as change 

agents, not only for Godrej, but also for 

our world; inspiring them to be better 

allies to women, persons with disabilities, 

individuals from the LGBTQIA+ community, 

and other under-represented groups in the 

mainstream workforce.

Spending time with our people, consumers, and 

partners across India, Africa, Indonesia, and the USA 

and learning about the incredible legacy of GCPL
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The latest Intergovernmental Panel on Climate 
Change (IPCC) sixth assessment report is alarming 
and talks of a catastrophic future of climate crises 
linked calamities if governments and companies 
don’t step up. What are you doing to make GCPL 

Climate crises is a critical concern, not only 

for us as businesses, but also as individuals 

securing the future of our world. We need 

that we must reduce our emissions by more 

than half by 2030. Only then would we be 

within the safe threshold of the 1.5-degree 

Celsius global warming limit by 2050. But 

none of us has done enough, and in the 

current scenario, we are poised to reach the 

limit a whole decade sooner.

At GCPL, we recognise that we need to 

do much more and are stepping up our 

commitments. We already source over 

30% of all our energy from renewables. 

We have reduced our emissions by almost 

half from 2010. We recharge more than 1.9 

times the water we use, and we send zero 

Scopes 1 and 2 carbon neutral by 2025. We 

have set science-based targets in line with 

the initiative to help limit global warming 

the roadmap to meet our science-based 

emission reduction targets.

 

A big area of focus is making 

products greener by using the life 

cycle assessment (LCA) approach to 

understand the environmental impact of 

our products across their entire lifecycle 

from sourcing of raw materials right to 

end-of-life or disposal. As of 2021, we 

have conducted LCAs for more than half 

help us determine the environmental 

hotspots or areas of concern. These serve 

as the starting point for our greener 

product initiatives. 

Let me share the example of how our 

R&D team has worked on reducing the 

environmental impact of Goodknight 

Gold Flash. The technology used in the 

wick was imported at a high cost from a 

monopoly vendor. In addition, the wicks 

were made from non-biodegradable and 

non-reusable material. The team saw 

this as an opportunity to develop an 

indigenous wick that could deliver the 

a lower environmental impact. The new 

100% biodegradable wick is a GCPL-

owned, patented indigenous formulation. 

It is not dependent on a single vendor, 

longevity, is 70% cheaper than the 

imported wick, and reduces our plastic 

usage by over 300 tonnes a year.

testing alternate packaging materials 

and increasing the use of post-consumer 

recycled (PCR) plastic to move away from 

virgin plastic. Apart from just ensuring 

regulatory compliance with extended 

producer responsibility (EPR) plastic waste 

management guidelines, we are innovating 

on formulation, design, and delivery models 

to lower our plastic footprint.

We will continue to increase transparency 

in our ESG reporting and disclosures, 

sustainability. We have also built on our 

learnings from the last decade and renewed 

our sustainability vision for the next 5 years 

to continue building a more equitable and 

greener world.
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Goodknight Gold Flash, India’s most powerful liquid vapouriser with 

visible vapours. Our team developed an indigenous wick to deliver the 
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Our
Business Model

Inputs

Financial Capital
• 

Manufactured Capital
• 
• R&D 
• 

Intellectual Capital
• 
• 
• R&D
• 

• 

• 

Human Capital
• 
• 

• 
• 

Social and Relationship Capital
• 
• 

• 

Natural Capital
• 

• 

Purpose

VALUES

• 
• Be Bold
• 

• 
• 
• 

VISION

STRATEGY

• 3 by 3 approach

• Multi-local approach

• 7 Strategic Pillars 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Business Process
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Outputs

• Leadership positions 
(market share) across 
geographies, category 
penetration, and 
consumption rate

• Exponential growth in our 
e-commerce business 

• Enhanced long-term 
value for all stakeholders, 
including shareholders, 
customers, consumers, 
suppliers, distributors, 
retailers, and the 
community

• 
GHG emissions, and water 
consumption

Financial Capital
• Consolidated revenue increased by 11%
• 
• 

Manufactured Capital
• Saved over 3 crore through sustainable manufacturing
• 

Intellectual Capital
• HIT Anti-mosquito Racquet, our e-commerce only launch,  

garnered an 80% market share online and has scaled to USD 5 

• 
• 

various digital campaigns
• 

overall USA business

Human Capital
• 
• 
• 

• 
consecutive year

Social and Relationship Capital
• Awarded the ESG India 

Leadership in Governance 
Issues by ESG Risk Assessments 
& Insights

• 
annual ranking of companies for 
CSR and Sustainability 

• 

by Futurescape
• Supported the public healthcare 

system in India with medical 
equipment worth 

Natural Capital
• 

reduced by 100%
• 

Outcomes

• Helped 105,000 people from          
low-income and underserved 
communities in India get vaccinated

• 

our work with barbers and have 
trained and supported over 130 young 
men

• Rural malaria programmes reached 

and Chattisgarh
• Urban dengue programme reached 

• 
we use via rainwater harvesting and 
watershed programmes

• LCAs carried out for products covering 
50% of our revenue 
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Opportunities

Risks Opportunities
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• 

• 
• 

• 

Strategic pillar alignment
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Opportunities

Risks Opportunities

• 

• 

• 

• 
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Strategic pillar alignment

• 

• 
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Opportunities

Risks Opportunities

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
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Strategic pillar alignment

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 
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Opportunities

Risks Opportunities

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
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Strategic pillar alignment

• 

• 

• 

• 
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Opportunities

Sustainable packaging: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Top material issues and 
associated business risks

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Opportunities

R&D: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
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• 

Strategic pillar alignment

• 
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Opportunities

Responsible marketing and communication: 

• 

• 

• 

Building inclusive and prosperous communities: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Top material issues and 
associated business risks Opportunities
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• 

• 

• 

Strategic pillar alignment
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Opportunities

Governance and accountability: 

Occupational health and safety: 

• 

• 

• 

Training and skill development: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Top material issues and 
associated business risks Opportunities
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• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

Strategic pillar alignment
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Other
Disclosures

Debtors turnover ratio 23.34 22.18 11.48 10.12 

Debt equity ratio - 0.00 0.14 0.19 

Interest coverage ratio 199.83 53.71 19.11 16.22 

21.69 19.96 14.65 15.74

Inventory turnover ratio 9.13 9.02 6.33 6.40 

24.90 26.50 20.47 22.34

Current ratio 2.62 1.55 1.43 1.08 

18.84 19.25 15.43 18.23

FY 21-22 FY 21-22FY 20-21 FY 20-21

Standalone Consolidated

Reasons for change in standalone ratios Reasons for change in consolidated ratios

• Interest coverage ratio: Finance cost decreased 

`24.81 crore in LY to `7.87 crore in CY

• Current ratio: Current assets have increased due 

to an increase in deposits with banks and NBFCs 

`309.74 crore in CY vs `

• 

account of increase in current assets driven by 

liabilities

• 
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Formulae used for calculation of the ratios
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Our
Strateg
Pillars
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gic

Extending leadership in our core categories and geographies

Accelerating innovation and building purposeful brands

Leveraging digital

Enhancing go-to-market

Making our supply chain best-in-class

Fostering an inclusive, agile, and high-performance culture

Building a more inclusive and greener world

64

85

112

123

136

161

194
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Extending leadership
in our core categories
and geographies
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Strategic 
Priority

Capitals Impacted

• Building leadership in 

Hair Care, Home Care, 

and Personal Care in Asia, 

Africa, and Latin America

Key Focus Area

• Focused 3 by 3 growth 

strategy

• Growth potential in 

priority markets

• Superior quality, affordable 

products that provide 

great value

Enablers

• Macroeconomic factors

• Exchange rate volatility

• Competitive market 

conditions and new 

entrants to the market

Risks

Extending leadership in our 
core categories and geographies

Social and 
Relationship 

Capital

Financial
Capital

Human
Capital

Intellectual
Capital

• Responsible marketing  

and communication 

• Skill development and 

training

Material Issues 
Impacted
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We have enhanced value creation

through organic and inorganic growth

and in line with our 3 by 3 growth strategy. 

Consequently, Social and Relationship 

Capital, measured through leadership 

market positions, category penetration, and 

consumption rates, has improved. This has 

led to the strengthening of our Financial 

Capital metrics.

Our multi-local strategy translates into 

serving diverse geographies, consumer 

preferences, and socio-economic contexts. 

our Human Capital. Today, we have 

over 10,000 team members across 17 

countries. We continue to build diversity as 

a competitive advantage. In line with our 

approach to democratising categories, we 

are making world-class products available 

at affordable prices. We do this through 

ramping up our design-driven innovation 

capabilities and Intellectual Capital, 

measured through patents, brand valuation, 

and R&D investments. 

Value
Created
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Latin America Sub-Saharan Africa & USA

Hair Colour 
(Argentina)

Hair Colour
(Ethnic hair | Sub-Saharan Africa)

Premium Beauty and 
Professional Products
Hair extensions | 
Sub-Saharan Africa)

Hair Colour
(Chile)

Premium Beauty and 
Professional Products 
(Depilatory products | Chile)

Premium Beauty and 
Professional Products 
(Hair styling products | 
Argentina)*

#1 #1

#1

#2

#1

#1 #2Premium Beauty and 
Professional Products 

Argentina)**

Source: *Nielsen, **Scentia
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Hair Colour
(Caucasian hair colour | South Africa)

Leader in Premium Beauty 
and Professional Products 
(Hair care and maintenance 
products | Africa & USA)

#3

India & SAARC

Indonesia

Household
Insecticides

Hair Colour

Household
Insecticides

Air Care

Fabric Care

Personal Wash 
and Hygiene

Personal Wash 
and Hygiene

#1

#1

#2

#2

#1

#1

#2

#2

Air Care
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A broad emerging
markets portfolio

Geography Salience Category Salience

5%

56%
25%

14%

FY 21-22

India

Indonesia

Africa, USA, and Middle East

Others

3%*

58%

39%

FY 21-22

Personal Care 

Home Care

Others

*Comprises inter-company eliminations 

 and miscellaneous products

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight
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A portfolio of
power brands

1,000 crore+

500-1,000 crore

200-500 crore

Top 10 brands contribute ~70% of revenue
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Strengthened brand positions 
across key markets and geographies

#1
#2

*Roby Sprays only

*
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Home Care

Goodknight

HIT

Range of products across Household Insecticides, 
Air Care, Fabric Care, and Home Hygiene 

India & SAARC
#1  Household Insecticides
#2  Air Care
#2  Fabric Care

India & SAARC

India & SAARC
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Ezee

ProClean

India & SAARC

India & SAARC

Clean
ARC
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Source: Management estimates

Indonesia 
#1  Household Insecticides
#1  Air Care
#2  Personal Wash and Hygiene

HIT

Stella

Indonesia

Indonesia
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Saniter
Indonesia

r

Mitu
Indonesia

Bidex
Latin America
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Personal Care

Godrej No.1

Range of products across Personal Wash and Hygiene, 
Hair Colour, and Premium Beauty and Professional Products

India & SAARC
#1  Hair Colour
#2  Personal Wash and Hygiene

India & SAARC

Cinthol
India & SAARC
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Godrej Protekt
India & SAARC

Godrej Expert
India & SAARC

Godrej Professional
India & SAARC
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Sub-Saharan Africa & USA
#1  Hair Colour 
(Ethnic hair | Sub-Saharan Africa))
#1  Premium Beauty and Professional Products 
(Hair extensions | Sub-Saharan Africa)
#3  Hair Colour (Caucasian hair colour | South Africa)
Leader in Premium Beauty and Professional Products
(Hair care and maintenance products | Africa & USA)

Darling
Sub-Saharan Africa & USA

Source: Management estimates

frica & USA

TCB Naturals 
Sub-Saharan Africa & USA
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MegaGrowth
Sub-Saharan Africa & USA

Just For Me
Sub-Saharan Africa & USA

African Pride Moisture Miracle
Sub-Saharan Africa & USA

st For Me
haran Africa & USA

ran Africa & USA
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NYU
Indonesia

Inecto
Sub-Saharan Africa & USA

Renew
Sub-Saharan Africa & USA

Sub-Saharan Africa & USA

Sub-Saharan Africa & USA
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Latin America
#1  Hair Colour 
(Argentina)
#1  Premium Beauty and Professional Products

#1  Premium Beauty and Professional Products
(Depilatory products | Chile)
#2  Premium Beauty and Professional Products 
(Hair styling products | Argentina)*
#2  Hair Colour 
(Chile)

Issue
Latin America

Source: *Nielsen, **Scentia

Roby
Latin America
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Pamela Grant
Latin America

Ilicit
Latin America

Latin America



84



85

2Accelerating 
innovation and building 
purposeful brands
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Strategic 
Priorities
• Nurturing memorable, relevant, and purposeful brands
• Strengthening the core, creating new vectors of 

growth, and entering attractive adjacencies

Financial
Capital

Intellectual
Capital

Capitals Impacted

We have 3 priorities towards 

value creation via innovation:

• Democratising categories

• Establishing winning 

products in new 

geographies

• Addressing unmet 

consumer needs

This value creation is 
underpinned by the following 

critical activities:

• 

unmet consumer needs

• Technology-led push 

innovations

• Rigorous, consumer-

focused stage-gate 

pipeline processes

• Truly global innovation 

management

• Investments in design, 

technology, and skills

• New brand development

Key Focus Areas

• Global category structure

• Enhanced, digitally 

enabled consumer insight 

capability

• Investments in R&D, 

design, technology, and 

skills

Enablers

• Competitive market 

conditions

• New local players gaining 

geographic dominance

• Disruptions due to 

outbreaks of infectious 

diseases

• Sustainable packaging

• R&D

• Responsible marketing 

and communication

Risks

Material Issues 
Impacted
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Value
Created year 2020-21, characterised by the pandemic 

and our commitment to bolster new product 

development, we took the opportunity to 

undertake a strategic reset of our product 

innovation and new brand development 

activities over the last year. 

While continuing to leverage our unique RIDE 

structure, we intend to drive our innovation 

capabilities to the next level by adopting the 

following key principles:

• A ‘less is more’ approach: fewer, bigger, 

better innovations

• Even more consumer-centric: deeper 

insights, prioritising the voice of our 

consumers in decision-making

• 100% objectivity: rigorous stage-gate 

process, right governance

• Become truly global

synergies 

• Sustainability: sustainability built into our 

products from Day 1

While new brand development will continue to 

be an important capability and driver of value, 

we aim to discontinue with smaller brands where 

it makes sense from a better parentage/value 

realisation perspective.
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global product 

Democratising categories

As category leaders, our strategy is to ramp 

up innovation-led growth and discover 

new ways to disrupt our categories. 

Democratisation and accessibility, while 

creating superior quality, delightfully 

designed products, are particularly 

important, given our focus on emerging 

markets.

Creating 
value through 
innovation

Establishing winning products 

in new geographies

GCPL’s geographic footprint comprises 

some of the largest and fastest 

growth emerging economies in the 

world. However, our top categories 

in these countries, such as Household 

Insecticides, Air Care, and Hair Colour, 

headroom for growth. We see this as a 

huge opportunity for value creation via 

application of our winning strategies 

for category development through our 

know-how in product, communications, 

and activations. 

India & SAARC

Indonesia

India & SAARCIndia & SAARC

IIndodonenesisiaa
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Addressing unmet consumer needs 

We are proud of our strong track record 

of disruptive innovations, which has taken 

us into new categories and allowed us to 

address unmet consumer needs. Often, this 

work has also involved the development 

of new, distinctive memorable brands. We 

are looking forward to continue this trend, 

while enhancing our consumer insight 

capabilities and bringing more structure 

solution development.

We have already laid the foundation for 

achieving this goal, cross-pollinating 

Magic—our revolutionary powder-to-liquid 

handwash, from India, Africa, Indonesia, 

ever global product. Similarly, we forayed 

into the Household Insecticides category 

in Africa with the launch of Goodknight 

Power Shots. Our next big priority is 

building Goodknight Gold Flash liquid 

vaporiser into a global product, too. 

South Africa

Villeneuve Magic

Chile

Argentina

ChChililee

ArArgentntininaa

VVViVViVVVVVVVViVVVVVViVVViiViViViVVVViViVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVViVVVViVVVVVVVVVViViVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVViViVViViViVVVViViViVVViVVVVVViiiVVVViVVVVViVVVViViViVVViVViVViiiViVVVVVVVVVVViViViVViViViiViiViVVVViVVVVVVViiiVVVViVVVVVVVVVVVVViiVVViVVVVVViVVVVVVVVVViiVVVVVVVVVVVV lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll eeeneeneeeneneneeeneeeneeneneeneeneneeeneneeeneeneeeneeneeueueeeeeeeeeeeueeeeeeueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee vvvvevveveveveveeveeeeeevevveveeeeveevvevvvvvveeevvvvveevevvvveevvvvveveevvveevveeveevvvvveevevvvvvveevvveveveveveveeeeeeeeevvvvvvveeevvvvvvvvevevevvvvvveeeevvvevvevveeeeeeee MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMagagagaaaagaggagggggggggggiiciciciciciccicccccccccicicicccccciiciicicccciicccccccciciicccccciiccicccicccccciciciicciciiciccccccciccccicc
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Global category structure

an empowered global category structure. 

This new structure will power our global 

categories in Household Insecticides, Air 

care, Hair Colour, and Hygiene and will 

build on product development (innovation 

and renovation) and brand equity (brand 

strategy and advertisement), enabling 3 

critical sources of value:

• Coherent global category strategy and 

cross-geography synergies

• Deeper capability in product and 

communication development

• Better alignment across product 

development and brand equity

Our design and consumer insight functions 

have also evolved to be more global 

in nature and report into the category 

structure. 

Critical enablers

Enhanced, digitally enabled 

consumer insight

In keeping with our core principle of 

consumer centricity, we are augmenting 

our consumer insight capabilities in several 

ways:

• Global structure allowing the sharing 

of insights and know-how

•

protocols and action standards

• Deeper relationships with critical 

agency partners, given the global scale

• Leverage new-age digital techniques 

for consumer insights

Godrej Expert 5-minute 
Shampoo-based hair colour 
addresses the consumer 
need for quick, hassle-free 
hair colouring at home 
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Our in-house global Design Lab integrates 
design thinking into product development 

Investments in R&D, design, 

technology, and skills

Our state-of-the-art R&D centre at our 

global headquarter, Godrej One, in 

Mumbai, is supported by local R&D teams 

who partner across geographies and share 

learnings. At our in-house global Design 

Lab, we integrate design thinking and 

transform product capabilities. 

While this is usually a capability outsourced 

in FMCG, we have chosen to build it 

internally and make it a competitive 

advantage. The lab comprises highly skilled 

graphic and industrial designers across 

geographies who collaborate on projects.
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Strengthening business outcomes

The need

innovations comes with a patented novel 

device system with a timer-based circuit, 

powerful heaters, and high-temperature 

stable wicks. The technology used in the 

wicks was imported at a high cost from a 

monopoly vendor. In addition, the wicks 

were made from a non-biodegradable and 

non-reusable material. 

The solution

Seeing this as an opportunity, the team 

started to explore and develop an 

indigenous wick that could deliver the need 

at better cost and lower environmental 

impact. After evaluating materials such as 

other low-density materials like wood dust 

and silicone dust, the team narrowed on 

thickness and tensile strength than others.

 

a GCPL-owned patented indigenous 

formulation. It’s not dependent on a single 

vendor and is feasible to manufacture in-

house at our regular clay wick vendor sites. 

wick and reduces our plastic usage by more 

Innovating for greener products
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Goodknight Gold Flash,  
India’s most powerful liquid vapouriser  

with visible vapours
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• Acts instantly, delivering over 4 hours of 
protection from mosquitoes 

• Powered with the advanced TFT technology 
for uninterrupted protection 

• Available at an affordable price of 

Goodknight 
Jumbo Fast Card 
India & SAARC
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• A refreshing range of bathroom fragrances 
• Developed with a unique gel technology that 

• Available in an all-new variant: Tangy Delight 

aer 
Power Pocket 
India & SAARC
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• Premium-quality air fresheners for the home
•

and Warm Verbena 

Stella 
Parfumist Home 
Indonesia
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Saniter 
Powder-to-liquid Handwash
Indonesia

• Innovative powder-to-liquid handwash that offers 

• Packed with DH active and aloe vera for soft hands
• Available in an all-new variant: Fresh Clean 
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Darling 
Asili Locs 
Africa

• A premium crochet style from Darling’s 
Supreme Collection 

• Available in 4 stunning ombré and 
blended colours

• Enables African women to elevate    
their style  
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Megagrowth 
Anti-dandruff 
Africa

•
anti-dandruff range enriched with coconut, 
menthol, and tea tree oil  

• This simple 3-step routine promises to eliminate 

• Includes a shampoo, spray, and treatment 
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Villeneuve 
Body Lotion 

• A range of body creams that offers an instant 
dose nutrition to skin 

• Available in 3 variants, including Avocado, 
Almond, and Coconut, that are safe for use on 
normal, dry, and very dry skin types 

• Made with natural ingredients 
• Cruelty-free and paraben-free 

Argentina
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Issue 
Restyling Bleaching Kit 
Argentina

• A complete semi-permanent hair colour kit, 
comprising tonaliser, bleaching powder, 
applicator, nutrition mask, and gloves

•
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• An all-new addition to our Bidex range of 
hygiene products 

• Formulated with the exclusive clean and care 
complex that combines hyaluronic acid and 
glycerine for moisturised and hydrated skin

• Dermatologically tested for hypoallergenicity 
and maintenance of pH balance in the skin

Chile

Bidex 
Hypoallergenic Neutral 
Liquid Soap 
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• Formulated with the exclusive clean and care 
complex that combines hyaluronic acid and 
glycerine for moisturised and hydrated skin

• Developed with chamomile extract for smooth 
and moisturised hands 

• Hypoallergenic

Chile

Bidex 
Moisturising 
Liquid Soap 
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Ilicit 
Perfect Oil
Chile

•
every hair type 

• Formulated with thermoprotection that seals in 
moisture from root to tip and argan oil that repairs 
and deeply nourishes hair  
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Ilicit 
Kera-V
Chile

• A range of shampoos and conditioners 
developed with plant-derived keratin and a mix 

improves hair quality 
•

natural ingredients 
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Body Mask
Chile

• A depilatory body mask made from natural clay 
•

Aloe Vera) and Detox (Natural Clay and Charcoal) 
• Cruelty-free 
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Waxing Strip 

• All-new gel-based depilatory strips that offer ease of use 
• Available in 3 combinations: Argan Oil and Jojoba, Acai 

and Goji, and Charcoal and Coconut
• Vegan and cruelty-free 

Chile
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Microwavable Hair 
Removal Wax 
Chile

• A new, unique at-home hair removal wax that 
saves time and is easy to use

• It removes hair from the root for smooth and 
radiant skin that lasts for up to 4 weeks 
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• An anti-spot cream with boldo and rosehip extract 
that regenerates, repairs, and evens out skin tone 

Chile

Araucana 
Rosehip Regenerating 
Cream
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Colourplex
Chile
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• Our new range of hair colour brings home the salon experience 
•
•



1123Leveraging
digital



113
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Strategic 
Priority
Our objective is to capitalise on the ongoing consumer 
shift towards digital media consumption and digital 
commerce by assuring brilliant basics, effectively 
leveraging data, maintaining the highest levels of 
customer experience, and ensuring agile execution. 
We are also making digital investments in a focused 
and balanced manner, in accordance with our overall 
brand strategies and consumer tasks.  

Capitals Impacted

• Building an e-commerce 

business organisation 

• Launching and scaling up 

direct-to-consumer (D2C)

• Doubling down on data-

driven marketing

• Leveraging digital brand 

advocacy

• Scaling up brand 

communities

Key Focus Areas

• Strong internal, global, 

and regional structures to 

support bold ambitions

• Agility of teams to rapidly 

execute plans

• Selective media 

investments to drive 

growth and penetration

• Bespoke approach: 

Country roadmaps to 

stages of development 

• An agile test-and-learn 

approach

• Upskilling marketing teams 

approach 

Enablers

• Nimble e-commerce/

• Emergence of 

consolidated customers 

consumer data

• Impact of economic 

environments on 

consumer behaviour 

• Responsible marketing and 

communication 

• Skill development and 

training 

Risks

Material Issues 
Impacted

Intellectual
Capital

Social and 
Relationship 

Capital
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Value
Created

The acceleration in digital adoption over the 

past year has been a shot in the arm for our

digital ambitions. We are integrating and 

ramping up capabilities across different aspects

of our business, with a focus on building relevant 

digital platforms for the future and

stronger Social and Relationship Capital 

through partnerships and more meaningful

consumer connects. We are also investing in 

building internal capabilities and Intellectual

Capital through focused talent, trainings, and 

infrastructure.

• In India, the e-commerce business now 

contributes 5% to the overall business.

• The HIT Anti-mosquito Racquet, our 

e-commerce only launch, has garnered an 

80% market share online and has scaled 

up to USD 5 million in top line sales 

• E-commerce business in Indonesia has 

grown by 25% post COVID-19.

• E-commerce business in the USA has 

become nearly 4% of the overall USA 

business.

• 3 new D2C brand channels have been 

introduced in India, including Godrej 

aer, which has seen USD 6,50,000 in top 

line sales in spite of COVID-19-related 

disruptions.

• D2C in Nigeria sees an exponential growth: 

• D2C business launched in South Africa witnessed 

a 20% QoQ growth since its launch.

• Approximately 10 million 

have been gathered from consumers and users in 

India.

• Over 60,000 stylists connected through brand 

community platforms in Africa.

• Darling reached over 27 million women across 

Africa through various digital campaigns.

 – Top line revenue grew by 45% YoY to USD 

3,80,000 52%.

 – The conversion rate increased to 0.82% 

 – The repeat customer rate increased to 25% 

 – D2C had a 7% contribution to key NPDs 

across Premium Beauty and Professional 

Product categories.

 – D2C contributed to 37% of Hair Care 

combo pack NPD sales launched for 

modern trade and e-commerce in Nigeria.
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In India, our incubation of e-commerce 

as a separate business unit has enhanced 

our e-commerce capabilities and salience 

Capabilities have matured to the 

point where we can now re-integrate 

e-commerce more closely together with 

the increasingly omnichannel nature of 

shopper behaviour and our customer 

such as our HIT Anti-mosquito Racquet, 

Goodknight Mosquito Net, and aer Smart 

In Indonesia, our e-commerce business 

in key platforms backed by strong 

joint business partnering, new product 

launches, strong cataloguing and store 

management, and a steep jump in 

digital activities on both online and 

consumer experiences: from awareness in 

Smart Matic Parfumist, for example, was 

Saniter brand levered digital technology 

to generate stronger sales through 

developing e-commerce-only products to 

cater to the big segments online, starting 

Building an e-commerce
business organisation

Our Africa cluster has evolved its structure 

e-business function, which combines digital 

marketing and e-commerce to leverage and 

In the USA, e-commerce is now nearly 4% 

of our business in an acceleration made 

possible by the investments and ground 

Latin America and are investing in multiple

ways to boost our presence on different 

Goodknight Mosquito Net, our 
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Launching and
scaling D2C

In line with our increased focus on building 

complete view of a consumer’s purchase 

journey, we have been successfully 

launching new adjacent business channels 

conducting an exclusive launch of Smart 

Matic, one of the brand’s best-selling 

2019, aer has clocked top line sales of USD 

6,50,000, with an above industry benchmark 

ROAS and healthy repeat customer rate of 

Following the pandemic, consumer trends 

like online shopping have accelerated with 

now turning to online shopping and

choosing to interact with brands directly 

has been very encouraging, and we have 

been able to derive learnings across 

on ad spend has been very encouraging, 

exclusive launches of some of our new 

product variants on these platforms, 

through which we have witnessed a positive 

Diva Shop, our multi-brand 
D2C platform 

In Africa, we scaled up our Nigeria D2C 

business to a 45% year-on-year top line 

growth, while also providing world-class 

customer experience, which resulted in 

This year, we further scaled up our D2C 

businesses; we launched Diva Store, a D2C 

store in South Africa, and entered into a 

partnership with a beauty and personal care 

online marketplace, ‘BeautyClick’, in Kenya 

It has also clocked upwards of 10% saliency 

in the launch of premium new products 

extensively to test and launch new products 

and gather customer intelligence going 
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Doubling down on 
data-driven marketing

data from multiple platforms through our 

in-house cloud-based Central Data Platform 

users, which we are expecting to further 

These rich and actionable insights based 

on audience interests, shopping/purchase 

behaviour, demography, appography, 

Backed by this data, we are now building 

use cases, which have not only helped 

effectiveness but also allowed us to gain a 

deeper understanding about our end users, 

establish cross-brand interest, and further 

Intelligence Platform to further enrich 

the collected data, which will help us 

deliver actionable insights for our brands 

and categories and enhance consumer 

experience by providing relevant and 

Leveraging digital 
brand advocacy

An exponential increase in time spent on 

social media and content platforms in the

past year has reinforced the importance 

of digital brand advocacy, propelling us to 

make it a key pillar in our overall marketing 

In addition to partnering celebrities 

around our brands, we are also tailoring 

our approach to focused markets and are 

collaborating with regional content creators 

platforms like Glamrs (Indian beauty, style, 

women) for Godrej Expert and Shitty Ideas 

Trending (YouTube channel with funny 

has been a big trend this year, and therefore, 

Mothers in the age group of 25-44 years 

are a key target audience for our different 

large-scale mom communities to drive brand 

barriers to trial for Hair Colour, driving 

occasion-led triggers and establishing the 

to build advocacy around 
Godrej Expert
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For Cinthol, we have been actively working 

on creating a community of Cinthol 

Awesome Explorers, a tribe comprising 

off-beat travellers, adventure sports 

enthusiasts, mountaineers, rock climbers, 

This is a small example of how we are using 

manner to build the brand’s exploratory 

Collaborations with regional 
content creators in India for 
Goodknight and HIT

Our Cinthol Awesome Explorers community partners with off-beat travellers  
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A teaser from the 
‘She Leads Africa 
campaign’ in 
partnership 
with Darling

In Africa, our categories are heavily driven 

to scale-up our strategy of co-creating 

believability and impact, while driving new 

across markets to drive new product 

women-centric communities like ‘She 

Leads Africa’ to create a series of stories 

about women who have become successful 

despite facing societal and personal 

course for our community on how to 

prepare for job interviews and an online 

summit where experts spoke about various 

was a year-long programme by Darling in 

partnership with ‘She Leads Africa’, where 

we were able to help over 5 million women 
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Our Darling brand campaign 
with popstar Teyana Taylor 

In the USA, we launched the Darling 

brand store on Amazon USA and a brand 

campaign with popstar Teyana Taylor for 

big thing on digital platforms, we aim to 

Our other brands will also build communities 

by using social media platforms such as 

Scaling up 
brand communities

Currently, we have stylist Facebook group 

communities in Kenya, South Africa, 

and Nigeria, with over 60,000 stylists 

aim to double down on efforts to build 

these communities and create long-

lasting, meaningful relationships with our 

Darling brand store 
on Amazon USA
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4Enhancing 
go-to-market
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Strategic 
Priority
Integrating our go-to-market approach and leveraging 
technology for strategic decision-making

Capitals Impacted

• Enhancing our go-to-

market strategy in the 

context of the COVID-19 

pandemic

• Expanding penetration 

and reach

• Laying the foundation for 

future growth priorities

• Ramping up the 

e-commerce business

• Leveraging technology 

and data analytics

• Fostering win-win 

partnerships

Key Focus Areas

• Brand reputation

• Affordable pricing

• Superior quality products

• Continuous innovation in 

products and processes

• Strong long-term 

partnering focus

• Distribution footprint

Enablers

• Competitive market 

conditions

• New entrants into the 

market

• 

omnichannel go-to-market 

models and channels such 

as e-commerce

• Sustainable packaging

Risks

Material Issue 
Impacted

Intellectual
Capital

Manufactured
Capital

Social and 
Relationship 

Capital

Financial
Capital
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Value
Created

Our agile go-to-market approach is the 

backbone of our business. We are leveraging 

data and technology, innovating for local 

contexts, and building more agility across 

multiple routes to markets to serve our 

consumers with greater purpose and focus. 

We aim to continue to invest in enhancing our 

Intellectual Capital, making our Manufactured 

Capital more agile and creating joint value 

with our partners to maximise our Social and 

Relationship Capital. This, in turn, will translate 

into a stronger Financial Capital value.

• With continued focus on strengthening 

our distribution reach in urban and 

rural India; we increased our chemist 

distributors by nearly 30%.

• The modern trade channel in India has 

bounced back, growing at high double-

digit values after contracting in the past 

year.

• Direct distribution, through active 

registered outlets, in Indonesia continued 

to grow strongly to reach nearly 1,75,000 

outlets.

• Rural sub-stockist network grew by 5%.

• We continued our focus on last-mile 

distribution.

• Nigeria’s van model has increased our 

at a breakout pace. The contribution of 

van sales to the Nigerian business has 

almost doubled.

• E-commerce in India continues to grow 

faster than traditional channels, with a 

2-year CAGR of approximately 60%.

• Strong e-commerce focus in the USA, 

accounting for nearly 4% of the total 

business.

• Multiple initiatives launched to leverage 

digital technologies and build closer 

connections with different partners.
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We continue to leverage traditional 
kirana stores as a sales channel in India

Innovations and start-up efforts in the 

last-mile distribution of FMCG have been 

altering the overall sales and distribution 

landscape over the past couple of years. 

Shifts in consumer behaviour and digital 

acceleration following the COVID-19 

pandemic have only added to this, opening 

transform, and make our sales organisation 

more future-ready.

Enhancing our go-to-market 
strategy in a post COVID-19 world

New technologies are transforming 

the sales and distribution landscape. 

Additionally, e-commerce has seen strong 

growth across India, Indonesia, and the 

USA, and modern trade, Cash & Carry, 

and, more recently, eB2B continue to grow. 

COVID-19 has accelerated digital adoption 

across shoppers, retailers, and the FMCG 

network.

Channels 
of the future 

In India and Indonesia, attention has 

been refocused on the role of traditional 

kirana or neighbourhood convenience 

stores. Similarly, in Africa, we have seen 

the acceleration of proximity shopping to 

overcome the challenges of the pandemic. 

This has reinforced the importance of last-

mile distribution. New models will now be 

omnichannel, straddling a pyramid of online 

We are adapting and innovating, leveraging 

technology across our operations, and 

building new capabilities, particularly the 

muscle to be more agile. Our approach 

hinges on close connections with our 

markets, consumers, partners, and 

communities to understand and better 

serve evolving needs.

In Bangladesh, the focus continues to be 

on building the traditional kirana (modir 

dukaan) backbone because modern trade 

and e-commerce are limited to urban 

centres. In Sri Lanka, we continue to focus 

on all channels, including traditional, 

modern trade, and, more recently, the 

e-commerce channel too.
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Our leadership actively connects 
with our partners on ground

to normal business operation in India 

and Indonesia, interspersed with milder 

COVID-19 waves, as compared with the 

previous year, which was affected severely 

by the pandemic. Africa and the USA were 

minimally affected, except for South Africa 

that witnessed 2 COVID-19 waves. 

The interdependencies of our networks 

have always been crucial to the business. 

For the system to deliver successfully, 

we need all partners to be enabled and 

support towards our suppliers, distributors, 

wholesalers, and modern trade customers 

globally, we are also building deeper 

partnerships with large-scale salons across 

Africa.

Shopper
behaviour

Partnerships 

In terms of an assortment mix, the shift of 

shoppers’ basket to health and hygiene 

across markets sharply reversed this year, 

with consumers spending heavily on these 

only during the COVID-19 waves. In India, 

for example, the spike in both handwash 

penetration and Household Insecticides 

consumption during the peak of COVID-19 

economic slowdown is affecting consumer 

purchasing power, adversely impacting 

volumes across geographies.
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Expanding penetration 
and reach

In India, we continue to focus on deepening 

penetration in traditional trade. We aim 

to expand our total reach from 6 million 

outlets in the next 2 years. We are, 

particularly, focused on driving rural reach 

and penetration by launching lower priced 

stock-keeping units in our key categories, 

which will result in greater accessibility of 

our products for rural consumers.

In the past year, we created a blueprint 

of the ideal rural coverage along with our 

external partners. Guided by this, we have 

grown our rural sub-stockist network by 

5%. We have further leveraged external 

partnerships in rural India and worked 

closely with an emerging player in the rural 

eB2B space. The partnership has helped us 

reach villages with a population of less than 

through our sub-stockist network. This 

distribution, and the initiative has now been 

expanded to approximately 15 states in 

India.

To strengthen our in-market execution, we 

are now tracking tertiary sales in rural areas, 

measuring sales from sub-stockists to rural 

retailers, and using that as a KPI for rural 

sales team members. Tertiary sales tracking 

was launched by us in the past year, which 

that not only tracks tertiary sales but also 

uses it as a crucial KPI for our rural sales 

ecosystem.

We have experimented with moving the 

frontline salesforce to third-party payroll, 

which has resulted in improved productivity 

and reduced attrition. The pilot was 

successfully completed in Mumbai, and we 

are now scaling up this model to towns with 

a population of over 1 million.

Leveraging technology to 
enhance last-mile distribution

Tapping into the emerging opportunity 

of a growing chemist channel remains a 

key strategic lever for us. To achieve this 

goal, we have created a strong distributor 

network of pharma/over-the-counter drugs 

distributors and through them created a 

new revenue stream. This channel helps us 

expand our reach into previous untapped 

chemist outlets.

Our Bangladesh team is expanding its 

salesforce automation through handheld 

devices for salespeople. Our focus remains 

on becoming one of the top FMCG 

companies in terms of reach. Moreover, 

we are piloting various tech-based 

interventions to increase our width of sales 

in the stores that we reach. This will help us 

in improving our returns tremendously.
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Partnerships with Walgreens and Target in the USA 
to launch our range of hair products

In Sri Lanka, our team is driving productivity 

and increasing reach through a cloud-

based distributor management system 

and salesforce automation. Our focus is 

to ensure that we reach a good mix of 

traditional and modern trade stores across 

the country.

our go-to-market transformation. Our 

efforts on route-to-market consolidation 

in the previous year have stabilised 

well. Direct distribution, through active 

registered outlets, continued to grow 

We have also expanded alternate channel 

distribution in pharma and health and 

beauty, which have strong synergies with 

our Baby Care and Hair Colour portfolios.

Going forward, we aim to continue the 

momentum on distribution expansion 

and double down on new outlets while 

maximising throughput from our existing 

distribution base.

We are ramping up our go-to-market efforts 

across Africa. In Nigeria, where trade is 

largely unorganised and wholesale-led, 

we are scaling up our last-mile distribution 

through van models, sub-distributor 

models, and salon advocacy.

Our experiment of launching a D2C 

channel aimed at seeding new products, 

experimenting with untested price points 

and product bundles, leveraging consumer 

analytics, and potentially providing 

distribution in white space regions, with 

retailers coming onto the platform, has 

been faring well.

We continued our door-to-door sampling 

drive to build demand and educate 

consumers on our recently launched 

Household Insecticides portfolio in addition 

to expanding distribution to modern trade. 

non-wholesale channel contribution. We 

will continue the momentum in Nigeria and 

strengthen fundamentals at an accelerated 

pace in South Africa and Kenya to unlock 

the full potential over the next few years.

We have expanded the distribution of 

our Hair Extensions business in the USA. 

Alongside Walmart, we have now expanded 

into other retail partnerships such as Target. 

Hair extensions is a USD 1 billion market 

in the USA, and this offers a tremendous 

synergies. We are the only end-to-end 

hair player (Hair Extensions and Hair 

Care) catering to the African-American 

community.
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chain and improving sales productivity 

by leveraging analytics and technology. 

Reducing sales losses through auto-

replenishment and enhancing salesforce 

effectiveness through technology will be 

critical levers of future growth.

Laying the foundations for 
future growth priorities

Given the changing shopper trends 

and environments, we are ramping up 

capabilities to service the demands of an 

omnichannel play. Externally, this translates 

Internally, it means putting the right team 

structure in place to service this channel 

with agility.

In Nigeria, we continue to explore the D2C 

channel and are seeing strong wins, given 

the overall shopper preference for online 

purchasing.

Building an 
omnichannel play

Exploring new 
go-to-market formats 

The Diva Shop, our D2C 
channel in Africa 
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Modern trade is a key driver of growth 

across geographies, and we aim to ramp 

this up. Building blocks include account 

and portfolio prioritisation, category 

strong partnerships with customers through 

joint business planning.

In India, we are investing in category 

management to build new-age categories 

such as Air Care and Household 

Insecticides. To this end, our teams are 

sharing and learning from our Indonesian 

and Latin American businesses on category 

management best practices. We are also 

investing in developing modern trade-

capabilities.

Transforming 
modern trade

Sri Lanka boasts a strong modern trade-

driven FMCG space, and our objective is to 

optimise efforts to ensure that we take full 

advantage of the opportunities by driving 

visibility, focused marketing interventions, 

in-store sampling, etc. We also aim at 

deepening our partnerships with chains 

through strong mutual plans.

our business in Indonesia. We continued 

our long-term journey to drive modern 

trade excellence, with a continued thrust on 

strategic investments, prioritising winning 

accounts, which was particularly relevant 

with shopper shifts post-COVID-19, and 

focusing on joint business partnerships, 

which were crucial to winning in an 

unprecedented macro environment. This 

resulted in a successful foray into the 

Hygiene category. Our Saniter brand ramp 

up was primarily driven by modern trade and 

crossed unprecedented milestones.

In Africa, given modern trade continues to 

be the key, we are leveraging availability, 

strong in-store presence, and competitive 

pricing to build on the opportunity, 

particularly in South Africa. Our entire 

business in the USA is modern trade-

led, with the channel split into retail and 

beauty stores. We continue to leverage 

strong channel partnerships and joint 

business planning to drive distribution and 

new product listing, compelling in-store 

presence, and competitive pricing.

Leveraging modern 
trade to boost sales
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We are moving beyond traditional retail 

to build other new-age channels such 

as salons. The restructuring of our salon 

channel in Africa will be a big focus as 

salon partnership programmes are key to 

generating demand in Hair Fashion as well 

as Hair Care. We also intend to leverage this 

channel to drive last-mile distribution.

Equipping our team members to best 

serve the changing landscape is critical. 

We continue to drive multiple capability 

building initiatives, which were enhanced 

over the past year and were moved online.

Building on 
the salon channel

Training and capability building 
for frontline teams

Inside our Darling Professional 
Stylists’ Academy in Nigeria 

In India, our in-house training academy, the 

‘Godrej Sales Academy’, moved completely 

online to encourage easy access and on-

the-go learning. In other geographies too, 

we have leveraged online training modules 

for continuous skillset improvement 

in a tough macro environment, while 

also focusing on team engagement and 

motivation.
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HIT Anti-mosquito Racquet continue to 
deliver strong performance

E-commerce represents strong 

opportunities to win in a fast-growing 

channel, while leveraging its unique reach 

to bring innovative products and brands to 

market.

Underpinning this, in India, we are building 

a strong data backbone to leverage the 

data-rich environment of e-commerce 

across the board. We are investing in 

ramping up capabilities in the e-commerce 

function by insourcing capabilities like 

graphic design, content writing, and search 

engine optimisation as well as performance 

marketing. We have a dedicated shopper 

marketing team to distil insights from 

e-commerce brands and platforms to 

visibility and promo spends. To improve 

automating our processes from the order 

receiving stage to the billing stage and 

leveraging data analytics to improve our 

forecasting methods. Our objective is to 

improve margins in the e-commerce channel 

through a better mix and optimisation of 

Through joint business planning, promotion 

strategies, and online content, we 

capabilities, which are yielding results in 

terms of on-platform conversion rates and 

off-takes. We continue to deliver strong 

performance on e-com-focused product 

innovations such as Goodknight Mosquito 

Net, HIT Anti-mosquito Racquet, and aer 

Smart Matic.

Ramping up 
e-commerce

Our e-commerce business in Indonesia 

continued to have strong growth. We 

and investments with a focus on winning 

platforms backed by strong joint business 

partnering, new product launches, strong 

cataloguing and store management, and a 

step jump in leveraging analytics.

In the USA, our efforts to strengthen 

e-commerce fundamentals paid off with the 

business growing strongly to become nearly 

4% of our overall US business this year.

headroom for growth, particularly in the 

fashion and beauty segments. Given limited 

in Africa (unlike in India, Indonesia, and the 

USA), we launched our own D2C platform 

in Nigeria.

This has been more than just a sales 

leverage, like the immediate availability of 

new products, controlled brand building, 

consumer data, seeding new products, 

ability to cross-sell/upsell, experiment 

with untested product bundles and price 

assessment, and opportunities for focused 

consumer research. We have set up a new 

e-commerce team in Latin America and 

are investing in multiple ways to grow our 

presence on different digital platforms and 

marketplaces.
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We have integrated different technology 

solutions across the value chain in India, 

starting with our sales people on the 

ground, through our many channel partners. 

Predictive analytics enables our urban 

sales people to sell the right assortment 

at a store. We are moving our distributor 

billing software and handheld terminals to 

cloud-based servers to bring more agility to 

the sales ecosystem. We have completed 

cloud transformation for our urban and rural 

businesses. We are currently exploring the 

usage of Global Policy and Strategy locations 

to drive the in-market execution of our 

sales team in both urban and rural markets. 

We also have plans in place to move our 

distributors to an automated replenishment 

system by the end of the coming year, which 

will enable us to minimise sales loss due to 

stock-outs.

Going forward, we are building a strong 

analytics platform to forecast sales with 

higher levels of accuracy by considering 

external as well as internal factors. This is a 

key organisational priority and will enable us 

to predict demand better and thus improve 

Leveraging technology 
and analytics

Technology continues to play a key role in 

Indonesian business. Handheld terminals 

guide and track on-ground decision-making, 

and analytics and dashboards help drive 

sharper execution. Regional distributors are 

connected and serviced through an online 

A trade spend optimiser tool helps 

drive return on in-store investments 

for modern trade. We will continue to 

integrate technology across all execution 

touchpoints. We have also built stronger 

visibility in e-commerce analytics on 

Amazon, which we are translating into 

action points.

In SAARC, we are leveraging potential 

tech partnerships and analytics to help 

augment our traditional trade expansion 

through systems like cloud-based document 

management systems, micro-targeting, 

SOQ, and TPM. Through this, we aim to 

ensure that our primary aim remains to 

expand distribution in traditional trade 

in both Bangladesh and Sri Lanka and 

We ramped up channel partner 

engagement over the past 2 years. One of 

our foremost priorities has been to ensure 

the health and safety of our partners and 

their networks.

Fostering win-win 
partnerships

We are also leveraging automation to 

streamline other functions such as inventory 

management and claims management.

In Africa, salesforce automation has been 

expanded to cover most feet-on-street in 

South Africa and Nigeria. This has helped 

expand coverage and improve brand 

visibility across the subcontinent. The focus 

will now be on scaling up distribution, 

accountability across all channels and 

regions.

We have also leveraged technology in 

consumer insights, like taking consumer 

insights from the D2C channel in Nigeria 

to product bundles and price points that 

can work, and shifting to virtual consumer 

and stylist interactions to continue having 

a strong pulse of the on-ground trends and 

for agile action planning.

In India, we have introduced a medical 

insurance policy for all our sales people in 

extended networks. This initiative is one of 

on our distributor payrolls will also receive 

To increase digital connect, we scaled up 

our industry-pioneer Android app called 

‘Bandhan’, which is a one-stop for all GCPL-

related information, communication updates, 

and training for all our distributors. We also 

have a comprehensive approach to improve 

return on investment for our distributors to 

enhance engagement.
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Our regional distributor network 

in Indonesia contributed a 

We continued to partner to 

help drive stronger returns and 

coverage. We supported our 

salesforce and distributors with 

timely medical assistance during 

COVID-19 waves.

Salons and stylists are our key 

partners in the Hair Care category 

in Africa. In addition to initiating 

training programmes for stylists, 

which help them become self-

employed, we are scaling up salon 

connect programmes to drive 

penetration and usage as well as 

build engagement and advocacy. 

Our partnership with retail chains 

in the USA marked an exclusive 

foray into Hair Extensions for 

both Godrej and organised 

retail. Walmart and Target offer 

and unparalleled shopper 

footprint, and we have strong 

consumer understanding as the 

only Hair Extension brand in the 

USA with African roots and the 

only player with an integrated 

Hair Care portfolio. This provides 

a great opportunity for a lasting 

win-win partnership, unlocking 

tremendous value for the overall 

category while serving our 

consumers.

Leveraging our Bandhan app 
to connect and engage with 
distributors on ground

Engaging with in-store 
associates through Roanto, 
our merchandising app

Leveraging our Bandhan app 
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5Making our supply 
chain best-in-class
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Strategic 
Priorities

Capitals Impacted

• Customer service

• Employee engagement and 

productivity improvement 

• Industry 4.0 

• Sustainability of the 

process 

• Bottom line growth

• Customer service

• Environment

• Community

Key Focus Areas

Key Impact Areas

• 

engagement and 

workplace safety

• Localised manufacturing 

technology

• Dispersed manufacturing 

footprint

• Engagement with our 

business partners and 

suppliers

• Good & Green vision

Enablers

• Supply chain risks due to 

the pandemic

• 

• Labour-intensive product 

portfolios in some 

geographies

• Potential disruption due to 

political risks

• Localised competition

• Regulations

• Sustainable packaging

• R&D 

• Building inclusive and 

prosperous communities 

• Occupational health and 

safety 

Risks

Material Issues 
Impacted

• High customer service levels through ready availability of a 
diverse product range

• Best-in-class value delivery to customers at optimised costs
• Freshness of products supplied to consumers

Manufactured 
Capital

Social and 
Relationship 

Capital

Financial
Capital

Human
Capital

Natural
Capital

Intellectual
Capital
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Value
Created
Our future-ready investments are aimed at 

market. This helps us being more competitive 

Manufactured Capital

strengthening our Financial Capital. 

We are enhancing our Intellectual Capital 

by scaling up technology and capabilities 

and evolving best practices. We are also 

improve Human Capital. 

base and build Social and Relationship Capital. 

of our process and make a positive impact on 

Natural Capital.

For more details, refer to the sustainable development goal mapping on our website

United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals

• Saved over 3 crore

through sustainable manufacturing

•  Stock availability in India is 96.84%
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Supply chain 
strategic priorities

1. Incorporating best practices and 

strengthening supply chain processes 

across geographies to become more 

agile 

2. 

engagement initiatives to international 

businesses 

3. Building a safe workplace through 

training and capability building 

4. Sustainable manufacturing and supply 

chain practices, thereby resulting in 

water consumption, carbon footprint, 

waste generation, and renewable 

energy across the value chain

5. Working on cutting-edge 

replenishment practices 

6. Responding to constantly changing 

consumer demand patterns, thereby 

7. Improving the ‘freshness’ of products 

for sale, better logistics practices, 

product traceability, and reduced 

obsolescence 

8. Increasing manufacturing capacity 

across geographies through fresh 

investments and de-bottlenecking of 

capacities 

9. Enhancing the IoT in manufacturing 

and logistics

demands

employee engagement globally

Making future-ready investments to further 

improve productivity

1. Customer service

2. Employee engagement and 
productivity improvement

3. Industry 4.0 

Key focus areas 
and initiatives

Driving sustainability initiatives across the 

supply chain and extending them to key 

vendors through sustainable procurement 

policies

4. Sustainability of the process
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We had a strong rebound in our service 

level across all our regions. This helped 

us mitigate the disruptions caused by the 

pandemic. 

We rolled out multiple digitisation initiatives 

at our manufacturing and supply chains. 

We setup the Transportation Management 

System in our logistics to manage our entire 

transportation operations, lower freight 

costs, and optimise routes and loads. We 

automated scheduling and planning to 

integrate our supply chain to run majority 

of processes and decisions in real-time. 

We have also made progress on crucial 

projects on future network footprint for our 

distribution network and replenishment-

driven sales for our distributors. 

1. Customer service

India

Kenya

Argentina 98.70

Nigeria

Mozambique

Indonesia 98.80

South Africa

Tanzania

Chile

Ghana

USA

Fill rate of
FY 21-22 (%)

Country

96.84

95.00

95.20

82.59

94.40

89.00

97.00

87.60

92.70
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A. Total quality management

We drive total quality management through 

across geographies. As a part of this 

in TPM, Lean, Quality Circles, Task Force, 

and Kaizen.

In line with demand patterns, we 

focused on improving the agility of our 

manufacturing capacity across geographies. 

In our manufacturing and supply chain, we 

have also adopted sustainable practices 

such as using renewable energy resources 

at our manufacturing sites and increasing 

rail mode of transportation for our stocks, 

among many other initiatives. 

To cater to the shifts in consumer 

purchasing habits, we have enabled 

demand-led forecasts for growing our 

organised trade channels. 

We have adopted best-in-class 

manufacturing practices such as Theory 

of Constraints, TPM, Lean, Kaizen, and 

low-cost automation, across our global 

supply chain from procurement through 

manufacturing and shipping. 

We are constantly exploring new 

technologies and solutions to improve the 

utilisation of our assets, materials, and 

resources to ensure enhanced freshness of 

our products. 

2. Employee engagement and 
productivity improvement

Our leaders engage with 
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B. Productivity and safety improvement 

in Africa to improve manufacturing safety 

processes, employee connects, and 

relations.

All team members are encouraged to 

suggest changes to improve process 

safety. Our key activities included the 

launch of safety month, emergency 

evacuation trainings, safety trainings 

and interactions, and safety-related 

communication, among others. 

Indonesia, and Africa are helping solve 

problems related to their own jobs 

through quality circles, a participatory 

management technique. 

Safety awareness initiatives organised by 
our Africa and Indonesia factory teams

His Excellency, Mozambique’s President Filipe Jacinto Nyusi, 
inaugurates Beleza—our manufacturing plant in Mozambique 
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Our factories across our locations in India, 
Africa, Latin America, and Indonesia
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In our North East Cluster, data insights 

lines and Lokhra unit’s Godrej Expert Rich 

Crème and Goodknight Jumbo Fast Card 

lines helped us identify issues in production 

and arrange for preventive maintenance. 

unit improved the Overall Equipment 

Effectiveness (OEE) by 1.4%. We installed 

that helps in streamlining the detection 

of defects and reducing faults during 

operation. We also trained our operators 

to focus on improvement of machines and 

productivity. At our Lokhra 2 units where 

we manufacture Crème and Ezee, we 

started monitoring data machine-wise and 

improved the OEE of the Crème developer 

machine and autopack machine by 2.64% 

and 8.42%, respectively. We installed 

digital twins in the Ezee section, which 

facilitated changes in layout for improved 

reduction in manpower, energy savings, 

and better space utilisation. We also 

installed an energy management system 

at our New Conso unit that will help us 

achieve 5%-6% saving in electrical energy 

consumption. 

Data insights from IoT in our Baddi and 

Katha soap lines in our North Cluster 

helped in taking timely decisions to improve 

soap line number 1, our OEE improved by 

5%. We recently installed IoT in soap line 

number 3 that helped to improve the OEE 

by 3%.

 3. Industry 4.0

We reduced the manpower requirement by 

auto screwing system in MMN plant’s 

device assembly line, a case erector at the 

Conso plant, and auto inner carton stacker 

in Coil-7 plant. 

In Argentina, under our ‘Make or Buy’ 

(MoB) initiative, we operationalised the 

installed the previous year. This helped 

our dependency on a third party. We 

also operationalised a new case packer 

machine that helps eliminate manual labour 

and solves the capacity constraint to 

produce hair colour kits. We made several 

improvements in our powder mixing area 

to increase the capacity to attend customer 

demand, improve people and product 

safety, and improve productivity. This 

included mixer automation, installation  of a 

new system to handle raw materials, layout 

redesign, and recipe redesign.

In Indonesia, after the digitisation of shift 

logbooks, we will be leveraging IoT in 

the production line. This will allow more 

accurate analysis, eliminating human 

intervention. Through this initiative, we are 

expecting to improve the OEE by 5%-8%.

In our Central Cluster, we implemented 

several IoT projects at our Malanpur Soap 

plant. We installed a Programmable Logic 

Controller (PLC)-based Supervisory Control 

and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system in 

our Soap Noodle plant 1 for monitoring and 

controlling. This resulted in improvement 

in noodle productivity by 2 MT/day. We 

installed a PLC-based temperature control 

system in 11 RO storage tanks that resulted 

in the reduction of steam consumption, 

helping us save 6.9 lakh/annum. We 

provided online monitoring of electrical 

parameters on SCADA of the HT section to 

take immediate actions. We also automated 

machine and overwrapping machines for 

promotional offer packs. This helped reduce 

the manpower requirement.

In our South Cluster, we installed IoT in the 

LV line at the Conso plant in Puducherry 

that will help in monitoring real-time 

data and taking timely decisions, thereby 

improving the OEE by 2%. We implemented 

a manufacturing portal in all the Coil lines 

of our KKL plants and Coil-9 plant. It helps 

track and analyse breakdowns and enables 

Auto SAP booking. As a result, we are 

receiving an auto email with production 

and downtime details for monitoring and 

improvement. We installed a coil inner 

wrapping with auto coil feeding and auto 

at the Coil-9 unit. We also installed several 

automation projects such as a vision camera 

detect and eject defective products in all 

sections. 
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Manufacturing

As part of our Good & Green vision, we 

26. We aim to make one-third of all our 

products greener than those in 2020. We 

also aim to be neutral on Scopes 1 and 2 

carbon emissions, source at least 35% of 

our energy mix from renewable sources, 

with our EP100 commitment, and maintain 

our water positivity and zero waste to 

to announce our commitment towards 

the global Science-Based Targets initiative 

(SBTi) and publish our roadmap and 

targets for emission reduction in line with 

the globally agreed 1.5-degree reduction 

scenario. 

We track energy, emissions, water, waste, 

and renewable data for all the locations 

where we have 100% operational control. 

We are in the process of validating and 

imbibing carbon and water pricing to 

our emissions and water use and build 

sustainability into decision-making at every 

point in the value chain. 

4. Sustainability of the process 

Our process includes the following:

• Extensive meetings with multiple 

stakeholders to align on priorities, 

the year

• Setting targets to help drive 

environmental sustainability in our 

manufacturing process and brands 

• Cascading an annual operating plan 

where sustainability targets are made 

part of the key responsibility areas for 

‘green champions’

• An internal sustainability monitoring 

tool collects and analyses data, and 

monthly reports highlighting key 

indicators are generated, including the 

carbon footprint as per the set GHG 

protocol

• Identifying and circulating best 

practices on multiple platforms for 

wider adoption

• A strong governance mechanism 

to monitor, review, and improve 

sustainability performance

• Strategic improvement planning for 

underperforming units

• An innovation cell to look at   

bleeding-edge sustainability solutions 

for the medium to long term

• Participating in multiple ESG 

disclosures to measure our 

performance against peers engaging 

external consultants when required for 

climate risk assessments

Ensuring judicious use of 

natural resources 

To measure our progress against our 

environmental goals, we use the standards, 

methodologies, and assumptions entailed 

in the ‘IPCC Guidelines for National 

Greenhouse Gas Inventories, 2006’ and 

the ‘IPCC AR5 Assessment Report’. Our 

performance is guided by the sustainability 

team at the corporate level and driven 

by manufacturing cluster heads and team 

members at each of our manufacturing 

locations. 
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4. Emission
Reduced GHG emission intensity by 45% 

by 2025 (vs 2011 baseline) and carbon 

neutrality for Scopes 1 and 2 emissions  

Approach

• Adopting cleaner fuels such as 

biomass and continually improve 

Performance****#

• Reduced our GHG emission intensity 

by 42% 

5. Greener products 
Ensure a third of all our products are 

greener than those in 2020

Approach

• Carry out LCAs for products covering 

80% of revenue

• 

reduce the environmental impact 

from our products, thus making them 

‘greener’ 

Performance*****

• LCA carried out for products covering 

50% of revenue 

1. Energy
• 

by 40% by 2025 (vs 2011 baseline)

• Increase renewable energy portfolio to 

35% by 2025 (vs 2011 baseline)

Approach

• Improvements in processes and 

• Adoption of green energy sources 

such as solar and biomass 

• Upgradation of technologies

Performance*#

• 

consumption by 33% 

• Increased the renewable energy 

portfolio to 29.4% 

Our goals and performance for 2025-26

2. Water
Reduced water intensity by 40% by 2025 

(vs 2011 baseline) while maintaining water 

positivity

Approach

Innovative water management systems, 

technological improvements, and 

integrated watershed management 

programme 

Performance**#

• Reduced water intensity by 38% 

and achieved water positivity (we 

are conserving three times more 

water than we use in our operations 

through rainwater harvesting within 

our facilities and our community 

watershed programme). 

3.  Waste 

zero liquid discharge 

Approach

• Judicious and innovative use of 

materials, including reuse and recycling 

and greater circularity

Performance***#

• 

reduced by 100% (diverted 100% 

the quantity of liquid discharge and 

developed a plan to achieve zero 

liquid discharge

#Performance 
*

**Water usage 
***Waste generated
****Emissions

*****LCAs 
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1. Energy
Our energy performance this year is 

on track with our vision 2025. We have 

recovered from the delays of last year’s 

COVID-19 impact. We implemented 80 

green initiatives across all our locations. 

2021-22:

• In Ghana, we installed a BOOT 

model rooftop solar power plant. The 

installation does not involve any capex, 

and the unit rate of power is 15% 

cheaper. The plant will serve nearly 50% 

of the energy load of the Spintex plant. 

The solar plant will help us save nearly 

USD 1 million over the project life.  

• In India’s North East Cluster, we 

replaced the thermal drying system 

energy consumption by 45%. 

• In India, we have installed solar 

rooftop PV plants at Katha and Thana 

in the North Cluster and at Conso in 

the South Cluster to further add to our 

renewable energy portfolio. 

• In Indonesia, we have replaced diesel 

fuel with comparatively cleaner natural 

gas for our oil heaters. 

Share of renewable energy in energy mix (%) - India

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

10.4
9.2

7.8

10.2

16.1

25.6

30.2 30.7 30.0
28.9

29.9
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Share of renewable energy in energy mix (%) - Global

2011-12 2011-12 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

2,664

3,436

3,251

3,044

2,906

2,792

2,905

2,976

2,827
2,867

2,840

79.59

84.9

4.344.46

0 0
0 0

0 02020-21 2021-22

Indonesia Africa Latin America USA SAARC
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Energy report - Global

2020-21 2021-22

1,830

1,233

2020-21 2021-22

12,990
14,544

998
1,080

2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22

1,642

1,333

2020-21 2021-22

918

1,137
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2. Water
We evaluate and implement innovative 

consumption. Our performance is in line 

with our set targets. 

2021-22:

• In Indonesia, we reduced chemical 

usage in the demineralisation water 

plant with the help of RO. We have 

diverted the water rejected from RO 

to be used for plantation and other 

domestic usages. 

• In Argentina, our team developed a 

new washing system to reduce water 

consumption during Mespack machine 

cleaning. This initiative also helped 

increase our capacity in the main 

packing line of our operation. 

We continue to source our water from 

sustainable sources and have also 

supported integrated watershed projects to 

replenish groundwater levels. 

• In Sri Lanka, our water consumption 

has increased due to manufacturing of 

new products such as water-based air 

freshener and shampoo. 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

1,806

1,731

1,685

1,760

1,670

1,452

1,412

1,299

1,5331,693

1,800
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2021-22:

• In Chile, we continue to segregate 

and manage our solid waste. We have 

destroyed 100% of our hazardous 

waste with minimal effect. In addition, 

we have lowered the proportion of 

hazardous waste, with respect to the 

2022. We continue to increase the 

proportion of waste sent for recycling. 

paper and cardboard, glass, metals, 

and other materials that constitute 

45% of the total waste generated.

• In Mozambique, we have started 

diverting waste to recycling. 

We undertook several initiatives to reduce 

waste generation and divert waste from 

from our Malanpur plant to co-processing 

at a cement plant and have already 

operations. 

We are also on track with our EPR 

commitment. We use approximately 

19,500 MT of plastic packaging for our 

products. We are now plastic neutral, 

which means we take back the equivalent 

amount of plastic that we send out to 

our consumers. In addition, we continue 

to invest in community solid waste 

management programmes. 

3. Waste

6,527 6,423

4,944

2,704

2,349

385

4,319

2,488

1,009

2,806

2020-21 2021-22

Indonesia Africa Latin America USA SAARC
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2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

1.06
1.00

1.28

1.06 1.08

0.48

0.005 0.005 0.008 0.000 0.000

4.02

15.70

3.82

0.90

23.00

29.30

15.90

4.04

3.42

0.66

2020-21 2021-22

Indonesia Africa Latin America USA SAARC
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4. Emission 
All our manufacturing units have systems 

in place for monitoring GHG emissions 

and short-term reduction targets with 

the long-term aim of achieving Scopes 1 

and 2 carbon neutrality. Our initiatives on 

consumption have helped us reduce our 

GHG emissions. Some of these initiatives 

2021-22:

• In Ghana, we installed a BOOT model 

rooftop solar power plant. The solar 

plant will help reduce the GHG 

footprint by approximately 126 tonnes 

of CO2 equivalent per annum. 

include switching to renewable biomass 

for boilers, increased procurement of 

from boilers for process utilisation, and 

among others. In addition, we continue 

to invest in community carbon mitigation 

programmes. 

*Represents Scopes 1 and 2 emission intensity due to fuel and electricity consumption within our operations  

2

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

247

224

201

188

182

193 195

178
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2

164

236

229

304
295

198

193

168

113
128

2020-21 2021-22

Indonesia Africa Latin America USA SAARC

Besides greening our manufacturing 

process, we aim to make a third of our 

products greener than they were in 2020. 

We also aim to carry out LCAs for our major 

products that cover 80% of our revenue by 

to manufacture greener products and 

implement a sustainable framework for all 

new product developments. 

2021-22:

• We completed LCA for 5 products—

Godrej No.1, Goodknight Gold Flash 

liquid vapouriser, Godrej Expert Rich 

Creme, and Godrej Ezee, Goodknight 

Jumbo Coil—which constitute 

approximately 50% of India revenue.

5. Greener products  

Innovating sustainable packaging

As an FMCG business, packaging plays an 

extremely important role in maintaining 

product integrity. We use delightful 

design and packaging to differentiate our 

products, and we aim to do this in an 

eco-friendly manner. Several of our 

products are known for unique packaging, 

which balances utility and recyclability. 

In addition to our Good & Green targets, 

2024-25. 

• For Goodknight Activ liquid 

vapouriser, we have started trials 

using PCR for the bottle and cap.
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Strengthening business outcomes

The need

India generates over 3.4 million tonnes 

of plastic waste annually, of which only 

one-fourth is recycled. As an FMCG 

company, we use close to 20,000 MT of 

plastic packaging every year. We collect 

100% of post-consumer plastic waste as 

part of our EPR compliance. We also aim to 

reuse this PCR plastic back in our packaging 

and replace the virgin plastic we use.

 

Our aim for this eco-friendly switch is to be 

cost-effective, ensure the same or superior 

quality, and that it continues to provide a 

delightful experience for our consumers. 

The solution

We made Goodknight coil poly bags out of 

90% PCR plastic for our South Coil units. 

circular economy project. The recycled 

granules used to make the poly bags are 

sourced from a solid waste management 

site in Hyderabad and are processed at 

a facility that was co-funded by us. We 

also use them back in our packaging. We 

successfully implemented the replacement 

after several trials and detailed assessment.

 

We have replaced 50% of all our South Coil 

unit’s requirement with this initiative, and 

aim to replace 600 tonnes of virgin plastic 

on full-scale implementation.

Moving towards green packaging 
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Optimising packaging for 
Goodknight Jumbo Coil 
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Our goals and performance

1. Reduce packaging 
consumption per unit of 
production by 20% from the 

Approach

• Process improvements and 

collaboration with packaging vendors 

Performance

• Established a monitoring system 

to track and implement initiatives 

packaging intensity by 6% 

2021-22:

• We made Goodknight coil poly bags 

out of 90% PCR plastic for our South 

kind on circular economy in India. 

The recycled granules used to make 

the poly bags are sourced from our 

solid waste management project 

in Hyderabad. We collect the post-

consumer plastic waste as part of 

our EPR obligation, get it processed 

in a facility that was co-funded by 

us, and use it back in our packaging. 

We successfully completed the pilot 

implementation after several trials 

and detailed assessment. We have 

replaced 50% of our virgin plastic need 

for coil poly bag manufacturing in our 

South Cluster.   

• 

dimensions for the 1.5 litre pack, 

resulting in annual savings of 1.8 

crore. 

• All material and weight-saving 

sustainable packaging initiatives 

resulted in an annual plastic saving of 

1,706 MT, paper savings of 169 MT, 

tin savings of 144 MT, and total cost 

savings of approximately 25 crore. 

2. Ensured 100% of the 
packaging material be recyclable, 
reusable, recoverable, or 
compostable 

Approach

• Upgrade to newer technologies and 

innovate for alternate packaging 

materials 

Performance

Assessing status of packaging materials 

3. Use at least 10% PCR content 
in plastic packaging (this target 

will be revised based on the new, more 

stringent plastic use guidelines)

Approach

• Partner with vendors and enterprises 

to enable the use of PCR plastic 

instead of virgin plastic

Performance

• Using 3.5% PCR content in plastic 

packaging 
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Supply chain

sustainability commitment expectations 

for suppliers, linked to our Good & 

Green goals. This is detailed in the GCPL 

Sustainable Procurement Policy. All our key 

suppliers are expected to align with this, 

and we are committed to enabling them to 

get there. Existing and new suppliers are 

expected to conform to the expectations 

listed under the policy. We are committed 

to helping our suppliers make their 

operations more sustainable through the 

following ways: 

• 

2 

emissions

• Identify and mitigate ESG concerns

• 

reduce the use of hazardous and toxic 

materials, and responsibly dispose 

toxic waste, if any 

• Recommend the use of renewable 

sources of energy, wherever possible

As part of our supplier scoring process, we 

collate qualitative and quantitative data and 

develop a composite score based on the 

responses. To drive continuous adherence, 

we schedule self-declarations from 

suppliers, as well as external audits, identify 

category-wise targets, and share industry 

best practices and suggested actions.

As a part of supplier assessments in 

India, we have evaluated 135 suppliers 

so far (accounting for around 72% of our 

procurement spends) on being quality 

centred, ethically driven, green inspired, 

and socially focused. 

Due to the pandemic, we conducted only 

paper audits and no physical site visits. 

Of 125 vendors with historical scores, 51 

vendors showed a positive improvement, 

however at an overall level, the average 

showed any non-compliance on ethical 

suppliers in the sustainability risk zone.

To drive continuous improvement, we 

have shared industry best practices 

and suggested actions. Additionally, 

sustainability assessment through a self-

declared questionnaire has become a part 

of our new vendor initiation protocol. 

In Argentina, we are assessing 14 

vendors (accounting for nearly 50% of 

our purchases), including raw materials 

suppliers, packaging suppliers, and local 

material vendors. We have made efforts to 

execute an online audit of our vendors and 

have been monitoring their issues and risks.  

In Chile, we are assessing 8 vendors 

(accounting for nearly 27% of our 

purchases). We are auditing our vendors 

for sustainability of their process and have 

been monitoring their issues and risks.  

In Indonesia, we continue to work with 18 

of our vendors (accounting for 65% of our 

purchases) to monitor sustainability of their 

process. 

Know more about 

our Sustainable 

Procurement Policy
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Fostering an 
inclusive, agile, and 
high-performance 
culture
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Strategic 
Priority

Capitals Impacted

• Living the Godrej Way 

• Prioritising wellness and 

safety 

• Building a culture of agility 

and experimentation 

• Fostering a diverse and 

inclusive GCPL 

• Enabling bespoke learning 

• Leveraging digital to 

engage meaningfully 

• Being among the best 

companies to work for

Key Focus Areas

• The Godrej Way: Our 

purpose and values 

• Our Employee Value 

Proposition (Tough Love, 

Whole Self, and Your 

Canvas) 

• Our leadership behaviours 

anchored in the Godrej 

Capability Factors 

• An entrepreneurial and 

inclusive culture backed by 

enabling people practices 

• Our global footprint 

and the option to 

build global careers in 

emerging markets in three 

continents 

• Competitive remuneration 

based on the principle of 

sharing value created

Enablers

• Competitive market 

conditions and new 

entrants leading to 

attrition enablers

Risk

Attracting, developing, engaging, and retaining 
high-quality talent

Social and 
Relationship 

Capital

Human
Capital

Intellectual
Capital

• Governance and 

accountability 

• Occupational health and 

safety 

• Skill development and 

training

Material Issues 
Impacted
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Value
Created We are committed to building an inspiring 

place to work, grounded in the Godrej Way. 

Our culture aims at fostering diversity, agility, 

and experimentation. Through our people, 

policies, and values, we are empowering our 

team members, enhancing capabilities in line 

with business ambitions, thereby creating more 

impactful Human Capital and Intellectual 

Capital. 

Most of our engagement translates through 

Social and Relationship Capital partnerships 

and enhanced team member connects, 

especially in the context of our multi-geography 

presence.

• Over 10,000 direct team members

• ~34 nationalities

• Team members from 17 countries

• 76% of team members are based outside India

• Average age of team members (white collar) is  

40 years

• 26.3% of white collar and 51.8% of blue collar 

team members are women

• 27% women are in senior leadership roles (Vice 

President and above)

• Helped 1.35 lakh people get vaccinated against 

COVID-19 in India 

• Great Place to Work® Institute’s (India) Best 

Workplaces in Manufacturing (2022)

• Received the 2022 Indonesian Best Employer Brand 

Award for the third consecutive year

• Workplace by Facebook helps engage and connect 

~3,000 people across geographies
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The Godrej Way, which we call our purpose and values, is the cultural cornerstone that 

guides our choices and actions. Over the past year, we have done our best to truly 

embrace and live our distinctive purpose and values. We continue to explore ways to 

build a more purposeful Godrej for all our stakeholders.

Culture around the
Godrej Way

Living the
‘Godrej Way’

Keeping our people safe while 

continuing to serve our communities 
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Our employee 
value proposition

Our exciting and ambitious growth plans 

allow us to offer unparalleled career 

opportunities relatively early on.

We expect a lot from our team members, 

differentiate based on performance and 

potential through career opportunities and 

rewards, and lay particular emphasis on 

developing, mentoring, and training.

We believe that passionate, well-rounded 

individuals with diverse interests make for 

better Godrejites. We understand that our 

team members play multi-faceted roles. 

Therefore, we not only encourage them 

to explore their whole selves but also 

create an enabling space for them to do 

so. We are committed to being an equal 

working policies around part-time work, 

work from home, working hours, employee 

self-help resources, and professional 

counselling to enable better productivity 

and effectiveness.

Your Canvas Tough Love Whole Self

We take much pride in fostering an inspiring workplace with an agile and high-performance 

culture to attract, develop, and retain the best global talent.
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All our people policies and practices are founded on the leadership capability 

factors of ‘Leading Self’, ‘Leading Others’, and ‘Leading Business’.

Godrej Capability Factors

Leading Others

Leading Others is an important skillset 

that helps drive both performance and 

organisational growth. This year, we 

focused on building people management 

capabilities through an in-house 

programme, ‘Leading Others for Impact’.

Leading Self

Much of our success depends on whether 

we can unleash the unique and powerful 

potential of each Godrejite. An in-house 

programme built around our Godrej 

Capability Factors, called the pillar of 

Leading Self, enables people to introspect 

and better understand and channelise 

personal drive.

Prioritising 
wellness and safety

We strongly believe that vaccination is the 

against the COVID-19 pandemic. We 

consistently ensured that our people 

(on-roll and off-roll), business partners, 

their families, household helpers, and our 

communities, across geographies, have 

access to vaccination. 

Vaccination

Leading Business

Strategic orientation and execution 

are emerging learning needs at middle 

management levels. We ensure this through 

a blended learning approach with on-the-

job implementation.

We hosted several vaccination drives and 

engaged in partnerships to ensure access to 

vaccination for all. We also shared extensive 

information around vaccination to build 

more awareness. In India, we helped 1.35 

lakh people get vaccinated. 
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Vaccination drives hosted across 

our geographies 
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We introduced and enhanced several safety 

and for our Sales team members on 

ground. This included extensive sanitisation 

measures, safety kits and protocol, 

working plans to ensure social distancing 

measures. In line with local government 

guidelines, we shifted to remote work for 

our team members, as and when required. 

Safety

Sanitation efforts at Godrej One, our 

headquarters in Mumbai 

‘Back to Godrej One’, our ready-reckoner 

on hygiene best practices as our people 



169

Ensuring health and well-being of our teams has continued to be our key priority. Given the 

our manufacturing facilities operational to ensure that our products reach our consumers 

and markets on time.

• A COVID-19 support helpdesk 

leveraged internal resources and the 

Godrej networks to help.

• A COVID-19 support group on 

Workplace by Facebook, our internal 

social media platform, and Microsoft 

shared resources related to COVID-19 

support.

Apart from expanding the existing 

hospitalisation and medical policies for 

all Godrejites, we introduced additional 

measures for partners in our extended 

networks in India, for example: 

• Introduced COVID-19 medical 

insurance and life insurance to our 

extended workforce, including 

salesmen on distributor rolls, CFAs, 

and drivers and computer operators. 

• Covered home quarantine expenses, 

which are not a part of regular 

hospitalisation policies, for team 

members in frontline roles in 

Manufacturing, R&D, and Sales. 

• Introduced safety measures around 

commuting to work.

• Partnered with Apollo, a     

healthcare service provider, for 

a 24×7 doctor-on-call service in 

India, and with Fab Hotels for hotel 

quarantine facilities in India. 

We realised early on that while our 

central and local teams were doing 

their best to help our people, given the 

magnitude of the crisis, especially during 

the second wave of the pandemic in 

India, our collective reach and empathy 

difference. Therefore, we set up platforms 

to leverage our shared network at Godrej.

Health and 
medical support

Our COVID-19 support group 

on Workplace by Facebook

Internal communication 

around vaccination, and 

partnerships with Apollo 

Healthcare and Fab Hotels 

• Godrejites volunteered their time to 

help with essential medicines and 

supplies (including the availability of 

oxygen and plasma), hospital beds, 

and other support.
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Mental wellness webinars held 

by senior therapists 

Work from home initiatives 

launched during the lockdowns

Ensuring the well-being of our team 

members continues to be our key priority. 

In line with this objective, we have 

partnered with Inner Hour, a mental health 

platform, to create an Employee Assistance 

wellness services. Through this service, our 

team members can avail personalised plans 

with multiple resources such as self-help, 

short daily courses, articles, activities, and 

access to trained therapists. 

We are deeply committed to ensuring that 

our team members continue to bring their 

‘whole selves’ to work, even when working 

from home. Enabling and equipping them 

to navigate the challenges of working 

from home has been the key objective. 

We launched a series of initiatives to 

support them, including regulating work 

hours, respecting weekends and holidays, 

Meeting-free Thursdays (rescheduling any 

for better focus and deep-thinking work), 

‘A day to myself’ (a mandatory day off 

once a month to recharge and reset), and 

importantly, leadership role modelling for 

all these goals.

Mental 
wellness 

Striking a balance while 
working from home

We have extended the services of Inner 

Hour to the dependents of Godrejites, 

including parents, partners, siblings, 

and children. We are encouraging open 

conversations around the importance of 

mental health by organising webinars with 

senior therapists and leaders on self-care 

strategies, strengthening relationships, 

social media, and mental health, among 

other themes.
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Committing to a culture 

of safety and health at our 

operations in India

Safety initiatves organised 

by our Africa team 

Occupational health 
and safety

We continue to focus on inculcating a 

culture of safety and health and creating 

an incident-free organisation. We are 

committed to providing a safe and healthy 

work environment for the well-being of 

all our employees and stakeholders. In 

addition to this, our focus is on investing 

in world-class safety infrastructure and 

implementing the best safety systems. 

Throughout the year, we organised various 

safety campaigns across all our operations, 

with our employees across levels actively 

participating in them.  

Fiscal year 2021-22 started with a safety 

cascade, where we launched a series of 

cardinal rules around safety and shared 

our vision and commitment for the year. 

More than 500 employees across our India 

and SAARC business pledged for safety 

improvement. This was followed by the 

launch of our behaviour-based safety (BBS) 

programme at one of our factories in 

Malanpur. 

Our Africa manufacturing team led the 

initiatives from the front and celebrated 

safety month with the launch of Leadership 

Attributes for Safety and the Safety GEMBA 

Walk. Through these initiatives, we have 

covered more than 30,000 employees.
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we celebrated Road and Occupational 

Safety initiatives, with active participation 

from all our site teams. We witnessed some 

of the most innovative communications 

and awareness initiatives such as safety 

songs and training material prepared by 

our teams. 

These initiatives have played a key role 

safety issues. 

The key highlight of this campaign was the 

involvement of our leadership team and 

their continued drive towards ensuring the 

‘Score Zero’ safety vision.

Road and Occupational Safety initiatives 

organised across all our operations  

More importantly,  we are seeing 

improvements in employee involvement at 

all levels and leading indicator reporting 

across the company.
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Our safety performance was also 

recognised by various renowned national 

agencies, and we won 10 external 

recognitions. Godrej aer’s Guwahati plant 

received the prestigious National Safety 

Award by the Government of India, and the 

Godrej Maraimalai Nagar unit in Chennai 

received the ‘Bronze’ award at the CII EHS 

Excellence Award 2021. 

Our Maraimalai Nagar unit in Chennai received the 

‘Bronze’ award at the CII EHS Excellence Award 2021

11% 27%

158% 750%

Improvement across GCPL Improvement across GCPL.

Improvement in GAUM Improvement in GAUM

Near-miss reporting

15,779
17,719

2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22

1.639

1,642
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*Injury rate is calculated as per IS 3786: Number of reportable accidents*1,000)/Average number of employees
Reason for increse in injury rate in GAUM is as follows:

In Africa, this year, we have restructured our safety system and lots of focus is given on safety awareness and reporting.  
We have seen good results of our efforts and the number of safety incident reporting is increasing as expected. 
We are focusing on Africa in a big way to build a strong safety culture.

Number of people trained on safety 

(employees and contractors) 

Increase in near-miss reporting 

Injury rate*

Disabling incidents

Number of fatalities 

Number of LTIs

Global data (except GAUM)

Global data (except GAUM)

Global data (except GAUM)

Global data (except GAUM)

Global data (except GAUM)

Global data (except GAUM)

GAUM

GAUM

GAUM

GAUM

GAUM

GAUM

Key priorities FY 20-21 FY 21-22

27,552

19.1%

2.02

3

0

16

54,288

-67%

0.53

0

1

8

28,848

22%

0.56

0

0

5

1,15,410

750%

1.69

0

0

32
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Strengthening business outcomes

The need

In an industrial chimney, smoke stack 

thickness inspection is critical to identify the 

health and predict any future breakdown 

of the equipment. However, it’s a tedious 

and risky operation as it requires the setting 

up of temporary scaffolding up to a height 

of 35 meters to reach the chimney. There 

is also the need to shut down operations 

for 2-3 days and supervise the process 

trained workers to perform this job and 

there’s always a risk of mishap. 

The solution

We knew that the use of technology 

could help us in resolving this need safely. 

Therefore, after exploring several options, 

drones for this inspection. Using these 

drones, we’ve been able to eliminate high 

risks while continuing to collect more 

accurate data. As the time for inspection 

presence of any person was not required, 

we didn’t need to shut down operations 

while we carried out the inspection.

Use of drones for stack inspection

Using drones for smoke stack 

inspection at our industrial chimneys  
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Building a culture of agility, 
ownership, and experimentation

Our international growth has been through 

acquisitions. Unlike traditional multi-

nationals, we have a multi-local operating 

model centred on value-based partnering 

and operational autonomy at the local level. 

This helps sustain the agile, entrepreneurial 

spirit that made these companies successful 

processes and scale brought by Godrej. 

Striking a balance between our global 

identity and the ability to appreciate the 

consumer needs is our competitive 

advantage.

In line with our operating model, we are 

building strong collaborations across 

geographical clusters and function teams 

through shared accountability and clearly 

Over the last couple of years, there have 

way we work. Many of our team members 

spent the better part of their time working 

remotely and reimagining how we run our 

businesses and collaborate with our teams. 

As we initiate a return to more full-time 

create new ways of hybrid working to make 

Godrej a more inclusive and agile place to 

work at. 

Going forward, we do not believe there 

we work because there are some teams 

and types of work that require people 

to be together in a physical space, while 

some other types of work require people 

Working remotely can offer several 

to invest more time in their ‘whole selves’ 

and improving productivity by allowing 

them to work in a more focused way. At 

the same time, there are collaborations 

and conversations that require in-person 

interactions for a greater impact. 

nature of work by:

• 

arrangement models to be more 

• Making our people processes and 

policies more agile to support these 

changing work models

• Introducing new ways of working, 

including how we collaborate and 

conduct meetings, to make hybrid 

work models more effective 

 

As a part of these efforts, we intend to 

starting with a hybrid work approach. 

Our unique multi-local 
operating model

Cluster-function 
ways of working

Introducing a hybrid 
work approach

Internal communication 

around hybrid work
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Fostering a diverse 
and inclusive GCPL

As a global conglomerate, delighting over 

a billion consumers, becoming inclusive is 

not just in our DNA and the right thing to 

do but it also makes an excellent business 

sense. We take pride in being an equal 

opportunity employer. We recognise merits 

and encourage diversity.

We respect human rights of every 

individual. We do not discriminate on 

the basis of gender, sexual orientation, 

gender identity, religion, political opinion, 

nationality, race, colour, social origin and 

status, indigenous status, disability, age, 

or any other personal characteristic or 

status. We do not tolerate disrespectful 

or inappropriate behaviours, harassments, 

intimidation or unfair treatment, or 

retaliation of any kind.

Our Diversity and Inclusion Council, 

comprising business leaders and senior 

team members, anchors and drives 

conversations around different dimensions 

of diversity. 

Towards Inclusive Leadership is an exclusive 

programme we hosted for some of our 

most senior team members (for example: 

CEOs, CHROs, CXOs). Through this, we 

aimed to make them more mindful of the 

power that resides with them as change 

using that power to further diversity, equity, 

and inclusion (DEI) in their teams and 

serve as better allies to women, persons 

with disabilities, LGBTQIA+, and other 

dimensions of diversity.

The programme had two core elements: 

(1) Diversity perspectives from the 

corporate world and (2) A deeper empathy 

journey. Hosted across 6 months, we have 

had a mix of conversations and sharing 

sessions with DEI experts and practitioners. 

This has served as an incredible learning 

experience for our leaders, who are now 

journey and translating it into bold bets in 

their businesses.

Sub-Saharan Africa is a key geographic 

cluster for us. Given the diversity in 

gender, nationality, race, and educational 

background, we see tremendous 

opportunity in leveraging synergies. 

We are extremely focused on building a 

diverse talent pool, enabling local, ethnic 

hiring for all open positions across roles 

and designations. 

Diversity and 
Inclusion Council

Building senior 
leader sponsorship

Diversity champions 
in Africa 

We hosted Towards Inclusive Leadership, an 
exclusive programme for our senior leaders
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We believe in fostering a culture of trust, 

respect, and acceptance. Through our 

conversations regarding different needs of 

for women to be able to take time off from 

travel or work during menstruation. This 

need was more pronounced for women in 

work, coupled with limited or no access 

to clean and hygienic washrooms, causes 

extreme discomfort. 

To support our women team members,  

we have introduced the following concepts:

• Encouraging women to make use 

of our Unlimited Sick Leave Policy, 

whenever required

• Availing ‘work from home’ options in 

• Improving the existing infrastructure 

like the availability of clean washrooms 

at our major distributor points. 

Our Sales Leadership Team also hosted 

sensitisation workshops on menstruation-

sales roles. 

Menstrual wellness for women in 

resource group in India, is built on peer-

to-peer networking and senior leadership 

support. Through this group, we are 

building trusted professional and personal 

relationships to share ideas and learn and 

co-create tangible solutions to challenges 

faced by women in sales. The team focused 

on two big areas this year: building 

awareness around menstrual wellness and 

networking. 

Through the year, we organised a series 

of virtual networking events with women 

leaders from across the FMCG sector. We 

believe that this sharing of experiences will 

inspire our young managers to share and 

build their own networks. 

As a result of our efforts to foster a 

holistic, supportive workplace for women, 

the representation of women managers 

and senior leadership (Vice President and 

above) has increased to approximately 28% 

and 23%, respectively. 

 

care facilities, we have a Caregiver Travel 

Policy, which enables new mothers to bring 

a caregiver and children up to 1 year of age, 

for necessary work-related travel.

Employee resource group for 
women in sales

Networking

Women and 
leadership

To help build a culture of inclusion among 

senior leaders and managers, we organised 

‘Winning with Empathy’, a conversational- 

unconscious biases. Through the workshop, 

we focused on bringing unconscious biases 

among team managers to the surface, 

building the emotional intelligence of our 

people managers, and creating an inclusion 

framework for managers.

Networking series 
organised for our 
women team members
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and a Gender-neutral Anti-harassment 

Policy protect the rights of our lesbian, gay, 

bisexual, transgender, queer, and intersex 

team members. We have extended medical 

domestic partners of Godrejites. We offer 

a choice to any team member to choose a 

spouse/domestic partner as a dependent. 

This also covers same-sex dependents, 

AIDS patients, and fertility treatments. 

Our Adoption Policy, too, is designed 

with a gender-neutral primary caregiver 

Policy to support team members who wish 

to undergo gender transition. Godrejites 

can claim reimbursements towards 

non-cosmetic surgeries and hormone 

replacement therapy.

We are reviewing amenities and 

infrastructure facilities for LGBTQIA+ team 

up 2 gender-neutral washrooms at our 

headquarters, Godrej One, in Mumbai. 

The Godrej Group was also one of two 

Indian companies to win ‘gold’ in India’s 

LGBT+ advocacy group Stonewall, India’s 

LGBT+ rights Keshav Suri Foundation, and 

LGBT+ inclusion consultancy Pride Circle. 

On December 13, 2018, we launched a 

‘Manifesto for Trans Inclusion in the Indian 

Workplace’. Through this programme, 

we aimed to highlight the position and 

circumstances of trans people in the Indian 

society and the steps corporate India can 

take to improve them. 

At Godrej, we are deeply committed 

towards enabling a safe and inclusive 

workspace for all our team members, and 

by extension, for our customers, clients, 

partners, visitors, and other members of 

our communities and ecosystem, who 

interact with us. We recently reviewed and 

strengthened our policy and processes 

around the prohibition, prevention, and 

redressal of sexual harassment, in each of 

the countries where we operate. We have 

also introduced an online platform for 

redressal to ensure stronger governance. 

LGBTQIA+ inclusion Prevention of 
sexual harassment

Our anti-sexual harassment training module 
focuses on building awareness around sexual 
harassment at the workplace 

We continue to build awareness through 

specially designed, compulsory trainings for 

our Redressal Committee members and all 

Godrejites at regular intervals. 
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Enabling bespoke 
learning

As we stepped into the second year of the pandemic and with reimagined ways of working 

and learning, our philosophy of continuous learning has become more robust. This year, we 

merged our e-learning solutions with in-house training programmes, enabling a blended 

To upskill our team members in functional 

and behavioural capabilities, we partnered 

with best-in-class online learning platforms, 

such as Udemy, Coursera, and EdX, and 

leveraged our Learning Management 

System to drive learning. We covered nearly 

50% of our people through various learning 

initiatives centred around knowledge 

gained through adoption of these 

platforms.

With a vast library of well-structured 

courses across various domains, Udemy 

was a popular learning platform. Nearly 

1,000 unique learners signed up for several 

courses related to both functional and 

behavioural areas. We also introduced 

courses for our blended learning initiatives.

We leveraged Coursera and EdX to improve 

the capabilities of middle and senior 

management team members, who actively 

signed up for courses offered by some of 

the best institutes globally. High-quality 

content along with regular assessments 

ensured that the learning retention was 

high. As a result, several of our team 

members honed critical capabilities in 

areas such as digital marketing, project 

management, and strategic thinking.

We continued our partnership with Harvard 

Business School Online, which offers access 

to Harvard’s world-class case study content 

on areas such as strategy, innovation, 

leadership, negotiation, business analytics, 

and entrepreneurship. The programme is 

highly engaging and allows participants to 

think from the lens of a business leader.

As a step towards offering best-in-class 

learning solutions coupled with a seamless 

user experience, we partnered with the 

SAP MIT Digital Library to offer curated 

employee learning resources on leadership 

and digital transformation. In total, 200 

Godrejites across various functions, levels, 

and geographies had access to a range of 

learning resources related to formats such 

as articles, courses, videos, e-books, and 

audiobooks. 

The courses on leadership are curated 

by the MIT Sloan Management Review. 

Learning resources on digital transformation 

have been designed by thought leaders, 

with a focus on digital as a mindset and 

business strategy, and cover new-age 

digital technologies such as big data, 

learning. 

The platform houses 500 courses on the 

Godrej Capability Factors. We organised 

several group-focused campaigns to 

promote online courses and witnessed 

more than 490 enrolments through the year. 

Functions like HR, logistics, manufacturing, 

procurement, sales, and sourcing had 

focused learning campaigns relevant to 

their areas of work. We used available 

data to identify areas of improvement and 

recommend courses.

E-learning Harvard Business 
School Online

SAP MIT 
Digital Library 

My Learning Space



181

Venturing beyond traditional solutions for e-learning, we partnered with Knolskape to 

introduce learning through simulations. This is being used in conjunction with existing 

training programmes and learning interventions to build on key concepts in an engaging 

true potential of non-conventional modes of digital learning.

Learning through 
simulations

Encouraging team members to 
sign up for online learning 

Online courses to foster 
remote working 
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Our transition programmes followed a 

blended learning approach, with learners 

completing a self-paced course, followed by 

group-based learning sessions. We hosted 2 

transition programmes this year.

A 6-month blended learning programme 

for people transitioning to the role of 

General Manager, focused on building 

critical capabilities and equipping people 

with the necessary tools to help them in 

their new roles.

We designed this programme to manage 

the transition of people to managerial roles, 

with a focus on building critical capabilities 

around the Godrej Capability Factors 

of Acting Strategically, Leading Teams, 

Awareness.

We designed and delivered this customised 

people management programme virtually, 

with a focus on key aspects of effective 

leadership. The sessions were run in 

6 segments, with each focusing on a 

particular skill and leveraging a mix of 

technological platforms and brainstorming 

tools, interactive tools, and learner 

engagement platforms. It was hosted 

for people managers across different 

levels, covering nearly 70 managers, and 

customised to the scope and complexity of 

each level. 

Role transition 
programmes

Discover Evolve Leading Teams for Impact

Leading Teams for Impact is our customised 
people management programme designed 
to build leadership skills 
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To bolster our learning efforts, we also organised training workshops via video calls by 

partnering with external vendors and facilitators. Internal training programmes facilitated 

by the Learning and Development team allowed for increased customisation of instructional 

design and learning interventions.

Focused capability 
development initiatives 

15 of our key supply chain team 

members, who negotiate deals for the 

company with our vendors and partners, 

participated in a 4-day workshop on 

negotiation skills training.

Focused on building crucial capabilities for 

data-based decision-making and leading 

teams of sales managers, Accelerate is a 

blended learning journey that is anchored 

internally and comprises online simulations, 

virtual workshops, and projects. About 33 

managers participated in Accelerate this year.

P&L understanding, 14 mid-managerial 

sales leaders participated in a 3-month 

learning journey that comprised online 

modules, case studies, and a 1-day in-

person workshop. 

Thirty of our quality control team members 

were trained in skills of content design and 

facilitation for use in quality control-related 

workshops across various plant locations in 

the country.

Approximately 110 team members from 

our marketing and allied teams all across 

the globe participated in virtual training 

workshops of several hours to further craft 

their understanding on building brands and 

creating a lasting legacy.

Negotiation 
skills

Accelerate

business decisions

Train 
the trainer

Building 
brand mastery

Online courses around the 
Godrej Capability Factors
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Accel is a specially crafted 9-month 

development opportunity for women 

leaders across Godrej Industries. It is 

designed to sharpen women’s to their 

ability to deliver value across all the 

Godrej Capability Factors through a 

journey of holistic development: a mix of 

masterclasses and one-on-one coaching 

with industry-leading faculty, mentoring by 

Godrej Leadership Forum members, and 

self-paced online learning content. 

Building 
women leaders

Accel is our exclusive cohort for women 
leaders across Godrej Industries

It allowed the participants to deeply 

understand the capabilities required 

for the next leadership level and learn 

to action the change through capstone 

for them to build strong networks with 

peers across the Group. 
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The need

As we stepped into the second year 

of the pandemic, ways of working 

and learning were reconceptualised. 

It became crucial to strengthen our 

philosophy of continuous learning. There 

was a transition from working from home 

to a hybrid mode of working, which 

put a strain on employees’ bandwidth 

to learn, in turn forcing us to redirect 

our conventional learning campaigns to 

become more learner-friendly.

The solution

Our goal was to ensure that a majority 

of people in the organisation—across 

learning initiatives. We planned to 

campaigns and tools. 

Enabling a culture of self-paced learning

A holistic learning needs approach was adopted through the following four levers:

1. Functional

Head of each function to highlight the importance of functional training. Some of these 

campaigns were as follows: 

a. Learning marathon: An e-learning competition among the 4 manufacturing clusters 

across  months, with recognition given to the winners

b. 

R&D employees according to their learning needs

c. Other functional learning campaigns: e-learning courses from various platforms were 

assigned to employees from Supply chain, Sales, and HR functions

2. Behavioural
The need of honing behavioural skills around the work environment prompted us to launch 

the following campaigns:

a. GCF campaign: A 3-month long campaign to provide 6 MOOC courses on the Godrej 

Capability Factors

b. 

etc., participants of our virtual workshops were provided simulation licences that 

bolstered learning

3. Technical
We recognised the importance of enhancing on our employees’ technical skills, and so we 

launched: 

PowerPoint) and selected the best available technical course across all MOOC platforms. 

At the end of each course, learners also earned credits. 

4. Topical
The shift in working was a cue to introduce courses that made living in the new normal 

easier:

a. Remote working: Courses related to working from home and the skills needed to 

manage remote work and team management.

b. Mental health and well-being: A month-long campaign releasing courses that 

emphasised wellness, mental health, and promoted a healthy work culture.

Through these learning courses, our team members learned several skills which were 

good balance between work and training.

 

Strengthening business outcomes
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Leveraging digital 
to engage meaningfully

Our senior leadership team engages 

through different platforms, including 

town halls and one-on-one conversations. 

We made a shift and continued to move 

from static point in-time conversations 

and surveys to a culture of continuous 

listening, with an aim to understand the 

pulse of our company in real-time for taking 

immediate action. These conversations have 

been extremely crucial in the context of 

navigating the COVID-19 pandemic. 

We continue to leverage Amber, a chat 

bot, to interact with team members across 

geographies. Currently, 1,800 people 

are being reached out to via Amber. 

Through this platform, we capture people’s 

on their tenure in the company. The 

feedback has helped us take both faster 

individual actions and make organisation-

level changes based on emerging themes.

COVID-19 lockdowns encouraged our 

leadership teams to reimagine new ways 

to connect. As lockdowns eased, our 

leadership teams gradually resumed 

market visits and spent time with our 

Sales and Manufacturing teams. Our 

on-ground teams, including our suppliers 

and partners, have been our true heroes 

throughout the pandemic, serving our 

consumers and communities through 

some of the toughest lockdowns.

Authentic conversations Leadership connects
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Our leadership engaging and 

connecting with teams on ground 
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As the lines between work and home 

blurred due to lockdowns and employees 

continued working from home, we 

introduced initiatives to promote work–life 

balance. Initiatives such as ‘No meeting 

Thursday mornings’, one day off a month, 

and ‘No weekend working’ were all aimed 

balance. As a part of our recognition 

programme, we also ran ‘Thank you 

Thursdays’ to ensure that appreciation does 

not take a backseat in the virtual world and 

our employees continue to stay motivated.

Our business heads regularly engage 

on-one conversations. However, this year, 

due to the global lockdowns, we had to 

completely relook at how we connect. 

We continued to conduct virtual town 

halls to share our business performance 

on a quarterly basis and hosted online 

interactive sessions to answer questions 

and share feedback and ideas. 

Leveraging technology 
to connect 

Appreciating our team 

members through the 

‘Thank you Thursdays’ 

initiative

We also continued to host the Real Deal, 

our in-house talk show that encourages 

open conversations on important topics. 

Some of the topics that we covered this 

year were: mental wellness, dealing with 

grief during COVID-19, and working from 

home. 
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We continue to build an engaging, inclusive 

employer brand on business school campuses. 

year, we recrafted Godrej LOUD (Live Out 

Ur Dream), our engagement platform, as 

a immersive experience around various 

touchpoints. The all-digital format allowed us 

to engage closely with 5,500 students from 16 

business schools for over 40 days. 

Through our conversations, we encouraged 

personal purpose and values and the kind 

of change they can drive in our world. The 

conversations were driven by the belief that 

purposeful, determined young people can 

grow into the future leaders at Godrej. 

Innovative approach to 
recruitment

Workplace by Facebook is our in-house 

social media and engagement platform 

that helps us stay connected with our 

teams globally. This year, we had 56% 

active users and 12.6% engaged users. 

Connecting with our 
global teams

Watch the highlights of 

a very special edition of 

Godrej LOUD 2021

Engaging with 

our global teams 

through town halls 
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Recognising and celebrating 
high performance

Recognising talent and performance 

at the Godrej Awards 2022

To recognise people for behaviours in line 

with our values—Trust, Be Bold, Show 

Respect, Own It, Be Humble, and Create 

Delight—we organise the Godrej Way 

Awards every quarter.

The most prestigious awards at GCPL, 

the Superstar Awards, recognise the 

excellence of our team members across 

all business functions.

The Godrej Way Awards

The Godrej Awards, organised across the 

Godrej Group, is dedicated to recognising 

outstanding performers. After 2 years 

of the pandemic, we brought back our 

in-person celebration and facilitated our 

winning team members at a special event at 

our headquarters Godrej One in Mumbai.

The Godrej Awards 2022

Superstar Awards

To motivate our team members in India 

amidst a highly challenging environment, 

we selected the theme ‘unleash the 

behaviours, namely (1) Overcoming fear, 

(2) Possibility thinking, (3) Hyper agile 

execution, (4) Leading from the front, and 

(5) Thriving in beautiful constraints. This 

programme helped us set the tone for the 

year and ensure a clear sense of direction 

within teams. We also launched the 

Challenger Club Spot Recognition, as a part 

of this programme, to recognise employees 

displaying these challenger behaviours.

Challenger Club Spot Recognition
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The Godrej Leadership Forum is our 

annual leadership conclave that brings 

together senior leaders from across 

Godrej businesses for a day of learning, 

The Godrej Leadership Forum

Themed around ‘Back to the Future’, this 

where our leaders came together to not 

collectively reinforce our ambitions for the 

future, including our commitment towards 

becoming more sustainable and inclusive.

The Godrej Leadership Forum is our annual conclave that 

brings together senior leaders from across the Godrej 

21
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Being among the 
best companies 
to work for

We have been among the best companies 

to work for. We were recognised on Great 

Place to Work® Institute’s (India) Best 

Workplaces in Manufacturing (2022) for 

creating a high-trust, high-performance 

culture. Our Godrej Indonesia business 

was awarded the 2022 Indonesian Best 

Employer Brand Award by the Employer 

Branding Institute, World HRD Congress, 

for the third consecutive year.

Godrej Indonesia won the 2022 

Indonesian Best Employer Brand Award 

Volunteering, 
the socially 
distanced way

For the second consecutive year, we 

conducted our annual Godrej Global 

Volunteering Week online. Our week-

long initiative encouraged teams across 

Godrej to participate in small, sustainable 

living tasks that could be performed from 

anywhere and at any time.
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Human rights in 
the workplace

GCPL is committed to ensuring that 

human rights are core to our vision of 

helping build a more equitable, inclusive, 

and greener world. Our respect for and 

commitment to human rights is central 

to our values. We believe our primary 

human rights responsibilities are to our 

employees, the communities where we 

operate in, our suppliers and business 

partners, and customers and consumers. 

Our commitment to human rights are 

for Employees, Senior Managers, and 

Directors, all of which are available on our 

website. We adopted the Human Rights 

Policy in 2017, and have since then focused 

on the following aspects:

• Ensuring that all new recruits certify 

that they understand and accept the 

GCPL Code of Conduct, which includes 

our human rights commitment.

• Conducting a self-assessment across 

our plants and locations in India to 

ensure compliance with the policy.

• Conducting a self-assessment across 

our plants and location in our GAUM 

cluster covering 7 countries.

• Our Sustainable Supply Chain Policy 

focuses on responsible conduct with 

all stakeholders and ensures employee 

health and safety, local community 

development, business integrity and 

ethics, and human rights. In India, we 

have conducted third-party audits 

comprising 135 suppliers thus far 

(accounting for around 72% of our 

procurement spends), and none of our 

suppliers were non-compliant. Please 

refer to the Making our supply chain 

best-in-class section. 

Visit our website 

to view our Codes 

and Policies

Going forward, we aim to work on some of 

our salient human rights with the support of 

commit to: 

1. Carrying out self-assessments to 

identify and resolve critical issues 

across our remaining clusters 

2. Articulate our ambition to work 

on select salient aspects from 

stakeholders by 2030 

3. Create an action plan to help us 

achieve the stated ambition
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Building 

a more inclusive 
and greener world
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Strategic 
Priority

Capitals Impacted

• Establishing COVID-19 

recovery initiatives 

to revive livelihoods 

and spread COVID-19 

vaccination awareness

• Ensuring judicious use of 

natural resources

• Enhancing employability of 

beauty professionals

• Protecting people from 

vector-borne diseases

• Enabling sustainable 

communities

• Fostering volunteerism

Key Focus Areas

• Good & Green vision

• Godrej values

• Godrej purpose

• Godrej’s legacy of 

philanthropy

Enablers

• Disruptions due to 

outbreaks of infectious 

diseases

• Regulatory compliance

• Social licence to operate

• Community unrest

• Building inclusive and 

prosperous communities

Risks

Material Issues 
Impacted

Building an inclusive 
and greener world

Manufactured
Capital

Intellectual
Capital

Natural
Capital

Human
Capital

Social and 
Relationship

Capital
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Value
Created Meanwhile, we continued to remain committed 

to innovating and exploring new technologies 
and improving our processes to become more 
sustainable through enhanced Manufactured 

Capital and Intellectual Capital. 

We continued to focus on and invest in social 
programmes that align with our CSR and 
sustainability goals. We continued to leverage 
our Human Capital through volunteering 
efforts to maximise Natural Capital and Social 
and Relationship Capital. 

We channelled one-third of our resources to 
support livelihood recovery from the pandemic 
for nano and micro entrepreneurs and 
communities working in the informal sector. We 
also took on the responsibility of vaccination 
awareness drives that helped reach out to low-
income and underserved communities around 

warehouses. This directly impacted our Social 
and Relationship Capital.

For more details, refer to the sustainable development goal mapping on our website

United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals
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Godrej
Trusts

Approximately 23% of the promoter holding of the Godrej Group is held in trusts 
that invest in the environment, healthcare, and education.

Environment HealthcareEducation

We are proud to protect, develop, and 

maintain the largest privately managed belt 

of mangrove forests in Mumbai since the 

1940s.

The Godrej Memorial Hospital aims 

to provide high-quality healthcare at 

affordable costs. One such initiative is 

our partnership with Smile Train, a USA-

based NGO, which helps in performing 

corrective cleft lip and palate surgery 

in children from low-income families. 

We offer surgery and hospitalisation to 

these children free of cost.

The Godrej Udayachal pre-primary and 

primary schools focus on the all-round 

development of children. The Udayachal 

high school has been accredited with the 

International School Award in recognition 

of its global education curriculum and 

innovation in classroom teaching.

We also support Teach For India, a 

nationwide movement involving outstanding 

college graduates and young professionals 

who commit 2 years to full-time teaching 

in under-resourced schools and become 

lifelong leaders working towards the pursuit 

22, the movement covered 250 under-

resourced schools in India, with over 900 

fellows impacting over 28,000 children. 

Teach For India has a strong network of 

over 6,200 alumni, serving over 33 million 

children. A recent study also revealed that 

the alumni community has founded over 150 

organisations.

We own and care for mangrove 

forests around our headquarters 

Godrej One in Mumbai

The Godrej Udayachal school 

focuses on the holistic 

development of its students 
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Good 
& Green

Our key focus areas and corresponding initiatives

COVID-19 recovery initiatives to revive livelihoods and 
COVID-19 vaccination awareness
• Ensuring food relief to the most vulnerable communities during 

the second wave in India

• Supporting livelihood recovery and revival programmes

• Raising vaccination awareness among the most vulnerable people 

in our ecosystem

• Enabling economic relief by enabling unlocking of government 

entitlements for underserved communities around our 

Enhancing employability of beauty professionals 
• Building resilience and providing support to micro and nano 

beauty entrepreneurs

• Enabling economic empowerment 

Fostering volunteerism 
• Initiatives to get our team members to connect more 

meaningfully with our communities 

Ensuring judicious use of natural resources
• Green projects to conserve energy, water, and materials and 

improve environmental sustainability at our manufacturing plants

• Sustainable supply chain initiatives 

• Product sustainability through LCAs

• EPR compliance and exploring circular economy

• Innovation for sustainable packaging 

Enabling sustainable communities 
• Implementing a range of environmental sustainability and 

community development initiatives 

Protecting people from vector-borne diseases
• Through our Elimination of Mosquito Borne Endemic Diseases 

(EMBED) project, we support the Government’s initiatives to 

eradicate mosquito-borne diseases 

• Strengthen public healthcare systems in 3 states of India

Sustainability at GCPL is guided by our 

Group’s Good & Green Vision 2025 that 

aims to create a more inclusive, equitable, 

and greener world. As a part of this, we 

will work with over 33 million people in the 

regions where we operate.

We have a comprehensive CSR Policy that 

outlines programmes and projects to create 

a positive impact on our stakeholders. 

Our CSR Committee reviews, monitors, 

and provides strategic inputs on our 

sustainability efforts.

We have aligned our initiatives with the 

United Nations’ Sustainable Development 

Goals, the Government of India’s social 

development priorities, and the needs of 

our local communities to deliver high-

impact programmes.

support COVID-19 recovery programmes 

for livelihood revival and added vaccination 

awareness drives.

Know more about

our CSR Policy
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I. COVID-19 recovery initiatives to 
revive livelihoods and COVID-19 
vaccination awareness

The impact of COVID-19 has been felt as 

a public health crisis of unprecedented 

proportions. It is also a long-term economic 

disaster impacting the lives and livelihoods 

of billions of people worldwide. Even when 

vaccinations began, people from low-

income and underserved communities were 

left behind. In emerging markets where 

GCPL operates, this is further complicated 

by pre-existing inequalities.

Donating food supplies among local 

communities in India

Livelihood recovery and 
revival programmes

We provided need-based food relief 

kits to the most vulnerable in the 

geographies of key interest, such as 

and warehousing facilities. Furthermore, 

we provided support such as livelihood 

recovery training, access to returnable 

grants, training on business recovery, 

and handholding nano and micro 

entrepreneurs to ensure they were able 

to successfully emerge from the second 

and third COVID-19 waves in India. 

Responding to the need of the most 

vulnerable communities such as informal 

sector workers, domestic help, and 

other such communities, we provided 

6,365 food kits to people across Goa, 

Gujarat, Jammu & Kashmir, Karnataka, 

Kerala, Maharashtra, Rajasthan, 

Uttar Pradesh, Uttarakhand, and 

West Bengal. Moreover, we donated 

medical equipment (such as ventilators, 

oxygen concentrators, hospital beds, 

and intensive-care-unit monitors) and 

consumables worth 2.5 crore to 20 

hospitals in key locations for GCPL pan-

India. Finally, 4.94 lakh units of masks, 

sanitisers, and soaps were distributed 

during the second wave to frontline 

workers and the most vulnerable 

communities.
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We provided relief packages and hygiene essentials 

to people from vulnerable communities 

We donated critical medical 

equipment to hospitals across India 

In Kolkata and Guwahati, we provided 

livelihood recovery training and support 

to 7,166 street vendors—one of the most 

vulnerable and at-risk occupation groups 

within the informal sector workers. We 

trained them on health, hygiene, safe 

product handling, proper waste disposal, 

digital payment methods. We also raised 

awareness on various social entitlements 

and social protection schemes available to 

them, and over 1,600 people applied for 

various schemes and entitlements.

In Thane and Palghar, we mobilised 

90 entrepreneurs to establish micro 

enterprises in rural areas that will 

positively impact over 600 people and 

help them set up market platforms. 

The project has a special focus on 

women and returned migrant worker-

led enterprises. We developed 

enterprises in farm produce value 

addition, aggregation, and trading. We 

are also creating marketplaces for rural 

entrepreneurs by setting up farmer 

markets. These pop-up marketplaces 

will help connect buyers (urban India) 

and sellers (from rural India), leading to 

responsible consumption and production. 

Close to 75% of the entrepreneurs are 

active, and we are enabling their access to 

In Baddi, Jammu, Pune, and Lucknow, we 

helped provide formal sector jobs to 3,353 

out-of-work adults and enabled 1,575 

adolescents to stay in school. We placed 

3,228 people in the formal sector with an 

average salary of 11,367. We engaged 

with adolescents and provided learning 

opportunities, enhancing their life skills, and 

building their resilience
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Enabling access to entitlements

Raising vaccination awareness

National and state governments have 

announced various welfare schemes for 

those who have been hit the hardest by 

the pandemic, and we are working with our 

In Mumbai, we provided support to 4,993 

individuals to get government identity 

documents (IDs) and avail access to 

entitlements. This has unlocked over 34 

lakhs for the people and their families.

COVID-19, we started vaccination 

awareness drives in communities 

around several of our manufacturing 

plants and warehousing facilities across 

6 states of India.

In Malanpur, we set up an entitlement 

facilitation centre to ensure people get 

access to and avail their basic entitlements 

of various state and central government 

individuals and capacitated, trained, and 

handheld them to avail entitlements. We 

helped submit over 700 applications, which 

unlocked close to 1.3 lakhs in provident 

fund claims, savings of 2.5 lakhs, and 

insurance cover of 2.45 crore.

In Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka, Puducherry, 

Telangana, Tamil Nadu, and Assam, we 

partnered with NGOs and local government 

healthcare workers to raise awareness and 

enable door-to-door vaccination services to 

low-income and underserved communities 

that have so far been left out. We have 

reached out to over 1,05,000 people and 

helped them get vaccinated.

Building vaccine awareness among 

underserved and vulnerable communities
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Strengthening business outcomes

The need

Vaccination is our best defence against 

severe symptoms and implications of 

COVID-19. The Government of India’s 

campaign to drive vaccination was massive, 

the most vulnerable people such as those 

communities, migrants, street vendors, 

construction workers, daily wagers, and 

domestic help, among others, who have 

therefore get underserved. At GCPL, we 

fully appreciated the fact that without 

accelerated vaccination, we wouldn’t 

vaccination process might have kept rolling 

on for years. 

The solution

To support vulnerable communities around 

our factories and warehouses, we partnered 

with Swasti Health Catalyst to help 

vaccinate over 1,05,000 vulnerable people. 

This includes 30,000 people in Cuddalore 

and Karaikal blocks of Puducherry who 

faced barriers to access the vaccine 

and were at higher risk of contracting 

COVID-19. 

We adopted an agile, inclusive, and 

community-centric approach and engaged 

local community champions, leaders, 

organisations) to effectively facilitate end-

to-end vaccination by mobilising people 

to vaccination sites and camps, providing 

logistic support for organising the camps, 

navigation support to members to reach 

the vaccine sites, and enrolling/registration 

assistance for people.

 

Ensuring vaccination for all 

The programme aimed to bridge the gap 

by catering to the needs of individuals 

and tailored the interventions to suit 

their requirements, including completing 

necessary documentations such as 

enrollment/registration assistance for 

visually impaired people, enabling 

infrastructure (wheelchair-friendly centers) 

and doorstep vaccination, and facilitating 

the entire vaccination process with empathy 

by putting not just individuals but entire 

communities at the forefront.

Partnering with local healthcare workers to 

offer door-to-door vaccination services 
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II. Ensuring judicious 
use of natural 
resources

As part of our Good & Green vision, we 

26. We will ensure one-third of all our 

products are greener than they were in 

2020. We aim to be neutral on Scopes 1 

and 2 carbon emissions, source at least 

35% of our energy mix from renewable 

100% in line with our EP100 commitment, 

and maintain our water positivity and zero 

we will also announce our commitment to 

the global science-based targets initiative 

and publish our roadmap and targets for 

emission reduction in line with the globally 

agreed 1.5-degree reduction scenario.

For more information on 
initiatives, please refer to the 
following: 

Making our supply chain 
best-in-class > Sustainability 
of the process

We track energy, emissions, water, waste, 

and renewable data for all the locations 

where we have 100% operational control. 

We are in the process of validating and 

imbibing carbon and water pricing to 

our emissions and water use and build 

sustainability into decision-making at every 

point in the value chain.

At the product level, we have started 

monitoring green parameters and are 

working on LCAs for products comprising 

50% of our India revenue. Our teams are 

working on implementing opportunities 

We have also extended our ESG parameters 

to our supply chain and are working closely 

with around 135 of our suppliers (covering 

72% of our procurement spends) on 

improving their sustainability performance.. 
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4. Emission
Reduce GHG emission intensity by 45% 

(vs 2011 baseline) and carbon neutrality 

for Scope 1 and 2 emissions

Approach

• Adopt cleaner fuels such as biomass 

and continually increase process 

Performance****#

• Reduced our GHG emissions intensity 

by 42%

5. Greener products
Ensure one-third of all our products are 

greener than they were in 2020

Approach

• Perform LCAs for products covering 

80% of revenue

• 

reduce the environmental impact 

of our products, thus making them 

greener 

Performance*****

• LCA conducted for products covering 

50% of revenue 

2. Water
Reduce water intensity by 40% (vs 2011 

baseline) while maintaining water positivity

Approach

• Innovative water management 

systems, technological improvements, 

and integrated watershed 

management programme

Performance**#

• Reduced water intensity by 38% and 

achieved water positivity (we are 

conserving three times more water 

than we use in our operations through 

rainwater harvesting within our 

facilities and our community watershed 

programme). 

#Performance 
*Energy use
**Water usage 
***Waste generated
****Emissions
*****LCAs  for products covered by India revenue 

1. Energy
• 

by 40% (vs 2011 baseline)

• Increase renewable energy portfolio  

to 35% (vs 2011 baseline)

Approach

• Improve processes and increase the 

• Adopt green energy sources, such as 

solar and biomass

• Technology upgradation

Performance*#

• 

consumption by 33%

• Increased our renewable energy 

portfolio to 29.4%

Our goals and performance

3.  Waste 

zero liquid discharge 

Approach

• Judicious and innovative use of 

materials, including reuse and recycle 

and greater circularity

Performance***#

• 

by 100% (diverted 100% waste from 

of liquid discharge and developed a 

plan to achieve zero liquid discharge) 
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III. Enhancing 
employability for 
beauty professionals

Our livelihood programmes focus on 

economic empowerment and are a part 

of our CSR initiatives. They are guided 

by our Good & Green vision and our CSR 

policy and are reported under Schedule 

VII, Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013 in the Directors’ Report. We follow a 

shared value approach that addresses the 

critical economic needs of marginalised 

and underprivileged sections of society 

2025-26, we aim to empower another 

2,00,000 women with beauty skills in 

emerging economies.

programmes that train and work with 

women in the beauty industry.

Salon-i is a vocational training programme 

for women. It is designed entirely in-

house to train young women in basic skills 

of beauty, skin, hair care, and mehendi 

application. In addition, life skills and 

entrepreneurship development modules 

enable women to take up jobs or pursue 

self-employment depending on their 

unique skillsets and circumstances. Though 

Salon-i’s employability goal is small 

compared with the country’s overall need, 

aims at employability, entrepreneurship, 

and empowerment of women. From 2012-

13, we have trained over 2,27,300 young 

restarted Salon-i after 18 months due to the 

impact of COVID-19 on the beauty sector. 

We trained a small batch of over 588 young 

girls this year. 

A third-party impact assessment of Salon-i 

showed a three-fold increase in our trainees 

participating in paid work, from 14% to 

in the workforce.

Salon-i and Beautypreneur 
in India

As an extension of Salon-i, we support 

women micro entrepreneurs in the beauty 

and wellness sector in various parts of 

the country to grow their businesses. The 

Beautypreneur project aims to handhold 

nano entrepreneurs to help them stabilise 

year 2016-17, we have supported over 

4,910 women entrepreneurs and in 2021-22 

we welcomed 750 new entrepreneurs to 

the cohort. In addition, we have expanded 

our work with barbers and have trained 

and supported over 130 young men in 

advanced hair styling skills and enterprise 

development. 

A third-party impact assessment 

undertaken this year found that despite the 

pandemic, our programme saw a return of 

7.75 for every rupee invested. Further, the 

study found:

• The median peak season monthly 

income of the entrepreneurs went 

up from 11,857 to 18,780 post the 

programme. 
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As part of our Beautypreneur and Barber programme, we have 

trained and supported hundreds of small-scale entrepreneurs   

• Their average annual savings also rose 

over 40%, from 16,022 before the 

training to 22,683. 

• Several Beautypreneurs stated that 

their technical skills have improved 

post training. Additionally, 83% rated 

their technical skills between 8 and 

10 post training in comparison to         

pre-training, which was 24%.

• The average number of services a 

customer availed per visit before 

attending the training was 5.55, while 

the average number of services a 

customer availed after receiving the 

training was 6.90. 

• 91% of Beautypreneurs stated that 

their business management skills have 

improved post training in comparison 

to 30% before training.

These results  were achieved by introducing 

them to a package of practices to 

rationalise their service rates, personal care 

and hygiene standards, share ideas on how 

to attract and retain a client base, and train 

them on record keeping.
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COVID-19 pivot

Our partner—Samhita Social Ventures—in 

their study revealed that the income of 

small beauty parlours led by women was 

lockdown. These micro businesses are 

business. Moreover, their savings were 

many reported job loss of their spouses, 

leaving them cash crunched. The second 

wave in India further compounded the 

scenario with many losing family members 

and/or having to deal with high medical 

bills.

Supporting small beauty parlours through 

COVID-19 with returnable grants assistance 

In continuation of our partnership with 

Samhita’s Revive initiative—a returnable 

grant model that provides access to timely 

grants and technical assistance to people 

and small businesses—we supported 681 

5,000 and 20,000 with a repayment 

period of 12 months, was used to buy 

safety equipment and salon consumables 

and, in some cases, to diversify into a new 

income stream, such as tailoring or catering. 

Through this process, the women have 

skills. More than 75% of the Beautypreneurs 

have repaid the returnable grants they have 

availed. After the devastating second wave 

of COVID-19, we issued a moratorium to 

ease the burden of repayment.
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Our Darling Academy (hairstyling skills 

training for youth) programme is aimed at 

youth empowerment through employability 

to tackle unemployment and poverty in 

Africa. The programme originally began in 

Kenya, and this year, it has expanded to 

Nigeria and the Republic of South Africa.

The Darling Stylists’ Academy focuses 

on skilling youth from poor socio-

economic backgrounds. To have a uniform 

transformative experience for all trainees, 

the GCPL GAUM CSR and brand teams 

have crafted and standardised training 

manuals for trainee experience, training 

centre operation, and governance. In 

addition to training, the trainees are 

provided start-up kits and avenues for 

placement within our salon network. Across 

the cluster, we are aiming to train 20,000 

new stylists by 2025.

Training programmes
in Africa

In Kenya, the programme is a way of 

providing support to young mothers and 

girls from poor backgrounds who dropped 

out of school with no formal skills or stable 

income sources. The programme runs 27 

centres, and over the years, it has helped 

over 5,350 women start working at a job or 

we trained 1,050 young women. In addition 

to our own centres and partnerships with 

county government vocational training 

centres, the team set up a knowledge 

partnership with a local NGO, and this year, 

it trained 27 students of whom 10 have 

been placed in salons.

In Nigeria, we have trained 128 women, 

and a survey of 30 alumni revealed that 

97% of alumni experienced an increase in 

their income and attributed it to the Darling 

Academy training.

batch with 20 young women from weak 

socio-economic backgrounds. In total, 18 

trainees completed the 3-month intense 

programme after successfully meeting the 

training outcomes. Most of the women 

are looking to set up their own hairstyling 

businesses. Our South Africa brand team 

has provided them with a start-up kit and 

will continue to support them by exploring 

avenues of placement in our salon network.

The Darling Stylists’ Academy focuses  

on skilling of youth from poor  

socio-economic backgrounds in Africa 
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IV. Protecting people 
from vector-borne 
diseases

Overview

Project EMBED started in 2015 in Madhya 

Pradesh in partnership with the Ministry of 

Health & Family Welfare’s National Centre 

for Vector Borne Diseases Control (erstwhile 

NVBDCP) focusing on malaria elimination in 

line with the Government of India’s mission. 

Over the past 6 years, we extended our 

initiative to Uttar Pradesh and Chhattisgarh, 

focused on dengue and chikungunya 

prevention in urban areas. We collaborate 

with NGOs and state governments to run 

intensive behaviour change programmes in 

regions with a high annual parasite index, 

where the case burden is the highest. We 

work in each location for 3 years, spreading 

awareness among households and people 

at the bottom of the pyramid and those 

from vulnerable and marginalised groups.

Our urban dengue and chikungunya project 

in four cities focuses on increasing the 

awareness of urban poor communities 

regarding the spread of mosquito-borne 

diseases and educating them regarding 

how to keep their families and communities 

safe. The project currently runs in Bhopal 

and Gwalior in Madhya Pradesh and 

Lucknow and Kanpur in Uttar Pradesh. It 

aims to reduce dengue and chikungunya 

cases and associated mortality. 

The interventions under this project cover:

• Home visits to provide education 

and awareness on the diseases and 

prevention

• Community campaigns for mass 

awareness

• Digital outreach with SMS, WhatsApp, 

interactive voice response, and 

community radio

• Training public healthcare providers

• Engaging with private healthcare 

practitioners

• Engaging with local public health 

authorities, schools and colleges, 

resident welfare associations, and 

professional associations

Our third project under EMBED focused 

on providing technical support to the 

Government of India and Government 

of Uttar Pradesh to help develop an 

integrated vector management protocol 

and support the roll out of the same in 

endemic states. This project aims to:

• Develop integrated vector 

management (IVM) protocols for short 

and long-term interventions 

• Information, education, and 

communication of and behaviour 

change communication activities for 

at-risk communities by using an IVM 

approach to vector-borne disease 

control 

• Strengthen existing health systems and 

providers through capacity building 

and referral and providing technical 

support

• Foster sustainable partnerships across 

multi-sectoral stakeholders to employ 

a collaborative approach 

• Built the capacity of the state and 

district for outbreak investigation and 

management

In 2015, Madhya Pradesh was a Category 

3 state with high malaria incidence. In 

2021, it has been declared a Category 1 

state and is well on its way to eliminate 

malaria. Our EMBED programme has 

been the only private-funded malaria 

elimination programme running in Madhya 

Pradesh since 2015 in partnership with the 

Government of Madhya Pradesh. Between 

2015 and 2020, the malaria caseload in the 

state has reduced by 93.28%, with malaria 

deaths reducing by 95.83%. This is the 

highest percentage drop in malaria cases in 

a state in India during this time period.

Through the successful implementation of 

we aim to protect 30 million people against 

vector-borne diseases.
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COVID-19 pivot 

During the second wave of COVID-19 from 

April to June 2021, we distributed hand 

sanitizers to frontline workers, healthcare 

providers, and community members. 

We raised awareness and mobilised 

communities for COVID-19 vaccination 

and following COVID-19-appropriate 

behaviour. Numerous people were 

vaccinated due to the mobilisation carried 

out by our programme team. Additionally, 

we supported fever screening along with 

healthcare providers, linking fever cases 

for testing and treatment services and 

following up home isolation cases with 

local healthcare (Accredited Social Health 

Activist, ASHA) workers.

We conducted a third-party impact 

assessment of the rural malaria 

intervention in 4 districts of Madhya 

Pradesh, namely Shivpuri, Sheopur, 

Alirajpur, and Jhabua—one and a half years 

post completion of project from December 

2021 to February 2022. The study revealed 

that community awareness about malaria 

symptoms remains high at 98%, and 

testing for malaria when people have fever 

is at 70% among the respondents. 

Creating awareness around vector-borne 

diseases through Project EMBED

This has led to frequent testing, timely 

treatment, and faster recovery. Of the 

households that participated in the study, 

92% are actively taking measures to keep 

their house and surroundings clean to 

ensure there are no mosquito-breeding 

spaces in the community. 

The SROI value for the overall programme 

is 12.57, that is, for every rupee invested, 

the programme provides a value of 12.57. 

 

Outreach 

• 

programmes reached out to 1,32,759 

households in 778 villages in 7 districts 

across Madhya Pradesh, Uttar Pradesh, 

and Chattisgarh.

• Our urban dengue programme 

reached out to 71,199 households in 

406 urban settlements and 4 cities in 

Uttar Pradesh and Madhya Pradesh.

• Through technical support we offered 

to the Government of India and 

Government of Uttar Pradesh on 

the integrated vector management 

project, we reached out to 7 million 

people.

• In total, 1,083 ASHA workers were 

trained in the prevention and control 

methods of vector-borne diseases.

• In total, 522 participants attended 

training on entomological surveillance, 

clinical management of malaria, and 

outbreak investigation.

• We carried out 10 outbreak 

surveillance visits with the NVBDCP 

and the Government of Uttar Pradesh 

to manage dengue and Zika outbreaks. 

Impact

• In our rural malaria project, while we 

have met the target of zero malaria 

cases in 2 of 7 districts (Shivpuri and 

Sheopur). Additionally, all districts 

have shown a remarkable drop 

in the number of positive malaria 

cases (between 12% and 95% across 

districts). Similarly, the slide positivity 

rate has also reduced in all intervention 

districts (56%-98%) and testing rates 

have increased by anywhere between 

8% and 510% across the districts.

• In our urban dengue project, 

dengue outbreaks occured across all 

intervention geographies, with Zika 

occuring in a couple of locations. 

Changing rainfall patterns and 

intermittent preventive measures due 

to focus on COVID-19 created perfect 

conditions for mosquitoes to thrive. 

Our implementation partners worked 

in tandem with the local government 

to carry out outbreak surveillance and 

management, identify and implement 

strategies for source reduction, and 

train local teams including domestic 

breeder checkers, ASHA workers, and 

community volunteers to help contain 

the outbreaks and limit damage.
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V. Enabling 
sustainable 
communities

is to work towards the sustainable 

development of communities to ensure 

that current needs are met without 

compromising future requirements. Our 

programmes look to address the challenges 

of climate change, urbanisation, and 

economic growth.

Overview

Our efforts towards solid waste 

management extend beyond our 

manufacturing plants and immediate areas 

of operations. As part of our CSR efforts, 

we support community waste management 

projects, in partnership with local civic 

authorities, by using circular economy 

principles.

partnered with the Puducherry Municipal 

Corporation to implement a community 

waste management project. We have 

reached out to 16 wards in 3 zones of 

Puducherry covering over 35,000 people. 

We are digitally tracking the waste 

management process and raising awareness 

on door-to-door collection and source 

segregation. 

Waste
management 

We have diverted over 7,300 kg of waste 

and have established a sanitation park. 

We provided 204 waste workers with 

occupational ID cards, and 26 workers 

enrolled on the PMJAY welfare scheme, 

which has unlocked a cover of 5 lakhs per 

family per year. 

Under the project, we have established a 

sanitation park or advanced segregation 

centre, in partnership with the Municipal 

Corporation. Through this centre, we aim 

of waste per day from Puducherry to work 

towards a circular economy ecosystem for 

the city.

We are also working with a social enterprise 

in Guwahati to recycle forest and agri 

residue into briquettes for use as biofuel, 

and in another project to convert plastic 

waste into fuel. Through this project, we 

aim to divert 50 metric tonnes of waste 

is currently under construction and will be 
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Strengthening business outcomes

The need

Puducherry generates close to 170 MT of 

waste per day. The region is known for 

tourism and, as a result, experiences severe 

issues with littering. No waste was being 

segregated and everything ended up in 

serious health issues they face due to their 

Before we initiated the waste management 

programme in partnership with the 

Puducherry Municipal Corporation and 

Recity (our implementation partner), the 

unsegregated waste was collected by the 

appointed Collection and Transportation 

Concessionaire, M/s Swachatha 

Corporation, and was deposited at the 

material was salvaged by waste collectors 

and sold to vendors in the informal market 

for recycling. Due to this, the remainder 

material was often of low value and, 

therefore, left behind, further increasing the 

burden of waste and disease.

The solution

Our integrated waste management 

programme approach is three-fold. 

professionalise waste workers, and ensure 

a sustainable waste management business 

we built a sanitation park with our partner, 

Recity. 

planned and ensures that the segregated 

waste is sorted into different material 

types, baled to ensure optimal logistics, and 

sent to appropriate end-of-life solutions 

through various partnerships. The Facility 

Management Solutions helps keep record 

of material movement offering insights 

on eliminating redundancies and deriving 

maximum visibility of snags, if any. By July 

2022, the sanitation park will process 4 MT 

waste/day. 

Sanitation Park at Puducherry
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Overview

Our integrated watershed development 

project is helping restore the ecological 

balance in the drought-prone district 

of Siddipet in Telangana. Currently, 

groundwater levels are lower than 400 ft 

in many areas, and as a result, farmers are 

under acute pressure. We are partnering 

with NABARD and a local NGO to 

rejuvenate the land, recharge groundwater 

levels, facilitate necessary irrigation, 

increase cropping cycles, improve the 

quality and quantity of produce, enhance 

livelihoods, and ensure sustainable 

agriculture practices.

Watershed
management

Output

We have completed treating 1,486 

hectares of land covering 46% of the total 

area under the project. To date, we have 

provided over 6 lakh saplings for direct and 

seed dibbling. 

We brought 150 acres of barren land 

into cultivation through water table 

improvement by approximately 15 ft. 

Vegetable cultivation also increased from 5 

acres of land to 23 acres. To diversify their 

income, we enabled 40 women farmers 

to avail livelihood loans between 20,000 

and 50,000 for dairy farming, setting up 

general stores, etc. 

We also captured 1.5 million KL of water in 

become a water-positive company.

3,234 hectares of land, conserve 3.5 million 

KL of water per year, sink 30,000 tCO2 per 

annum, as well as build the capacity of the 

whole community on water management 

and sustainable agriculture.

Watershed structures in Siddipet, Telengana  
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Overview

Another focus of our CSR programme is 

working closely in communities around our 

manufacturing plants. 

we rolled out a WASH initiative led by 

youth called ‘Youth ki Awaaz’. The project 

aims to bring about behavioural change 

regarding hygiene, sanitation, and waste 

management. It is led by young people to 

bring about change in overall public health 

parameters in the three villages around our 

plant.

In response to the second wave of 

COVID-19, the project pivoted to a 

local response initiative led by 81 young 

people to mobilise and raise awareness on 

vaccinations by reaching out to over 2,000 

people in intervention villages. The project 

team was issued identity cards from the 

health department and has been working 

closely with Gram Panchayats, Panchayat 

Secretaries, Public Distribution Shops, and 

ASHA and Anganwadi workers. 

Youth from the local villages participated 

in water and sanitation activities such as 

repairing handpumps, cleaning drainage, 

cleaning garbage dumps, and engaging 

school children to reduce single-use plastic. 

The programme also organised adolescent 

health and menstrual hygiene awareness 

camps. Over 300 girls were trained, and 

sanitary napkins were made available to 

them. The youth also raised community 

awareness on single-use plastic and reached 

out to over 1,100 households. In addition, 

we engaged school children on various 

WASH activities and awareness drives.

Community
initiatives

Around our Baddi plant in our North 

Cluster, we recently built a public toilet 

and washroom facility for the community 

centre around our plant. The community 

centre caters to the people of Baddi 

and neighbouring villages and can 

accommodate close to 450 people. The 

maintenance of public toilets is usually 

a concern as the structures depreciate 

quickly because of the lack of water, proper 

drainage, and/or regular maintenance.

(Top) Training young community volunteers 

as part of our YUVA initiative  

(Bottom) Community toilet constructed  

in Baddi 

We’re working closely with the local 

community to put in place systems for 

maintenance of the community centre, as 

well as the toilet facility. We’ve ensured 

adequate water and sewage connections 

for ease of use. This is a permanent 

structure and our team on ground will make 

periodic visits and volunteer to ensure the 

facilities are maintained properly.
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VI. Fostering 
volunteerism

Our multi-faceted volunteering platform 

provides a range of opportunities for 

Godrejites to contribute their time and 

skills in community activities. Like the 

last year, we had limited our volunteering 

opportunities to the digital medium. 

This is our annual day of community service 

across the Godrej Industries Group. Since 

2020, we have moved the activities online 

to adhere to COVID-19 safety protocols 

and to keep our teams and communities 

safe. Our theme for the past 2 years has 

been sustainable living in line with our 

2025 Good & Green goals, and we ran the 

challenge across 1 week in December. In 

2021, over 220 of our team members across 

the globe volunteered from their homes. 

Our volunteering week focused on tiny 

tasks on sustainable living that could be 

done from anywhere and at any time.

Godrej Global Volunteering Day

Impact we created through our virtual 

Godrej Global Volunteering Week 2021

We hosted 60 tasks on the portal, and 

across the Group, we had over 1,800 

volunteers that helped save 16,420 litres 

of water, 55,142 kWh of electricity, and 

2,311 kg of waste. We also got healthier, 

as we burned 43,840 calories and took 

time off for self-care.
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We celebrated World Environment Week 

online during the week of June 5, 2021 

and explored the theme of biodiversity. 

We hosted a webinar on how individuals 

can connect with nature around them 

and hosted a photography and quiz 

contest. Over 200 of our team members 

participated over the week.

World 
Environment Day 

In total, 87 of our GCPL team members 

participated in Daan Utsav through 

one-time donations, buying hand-

made products from our NGO partner, 

participating in awareness session webinars, 

volunteering and signing up for Workplace 

Giving, and supporting our NGO partners 

Daan Utsav 
and Payroll Giving 

These are one-time volunteering 

opportunities to help make a meaningful 

impact with your skills. Our volunteers 

provided career counselling, academic 

2021-22, 55 of our team members across 

our teams volunteered for a range of virtual 

volunteering activities.

Brighter
Giving 

We were one of BW Businessworld India’s 

Most Sustainable Companies 2022

• Awarded ESG India Leadership 

Award 2021 for Leadership in 

Governance Issues by ESG Risk 

Assessments & Insights.

• Ranked #1 in CSR Journal’s annual 

ranking of companies for CSR and 

Sustainability

• Ranked India’s top Company for 

Sustainability and CSR 2021 by 

Futurescape

• One of BW Businessworld India’s 

Most Sustainable Companies 2022

Awards



218

Board’s  
Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors, with great pleasure, 

present the Annual and Integrated 

Report for the year ended March 31, 

2022.

1.  Results of Our 
Operations

year under review is given 

below.

 An overview of the 

performance of the company’s 

subsidiaries in various 

geographies is given separately 

in the Board’s Report.

 The shareholders may also 

refer to the Management 

Discussion and Analysis 

section, which gives more 

details on the functioning of 

the company.

` (Crore)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Total revenue from operations 12,276.50 11,028.62 6,951.56 6,254.33

Other income 89.71 67.07 69.18 64.74

Total income 12,366.21 11,095.69 7,020.74 6,319.07

10,201.48 8,970.85 5,316.50 4,709.77

equity accounted investees, and tax
2,164.73 2,124.84 1,704.24 1,609.30

Exceptional items (9.75) (44.47) (58.21) (15.38)

income tax)
0.28 (0.01) - -

2,155.26 2,080.36 1,762.45 1,593.92

Tax expense 371.87 359.54 283.30 369.58

1,783.39 1,720.82 1,479.15 1,224.34

Other comprehensive income 376.56 (163.63) 0.82 1.11

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of 

the company

2,159.95 1,557.19 1,479.97 1,225.45
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2. Dividend

A. Dividend Declared

 The board did not declare any 

Interim Dividends during the 

 The Board of Directors 

adopted the Dividend 

Distribution Policy pursuant to 

the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (Listing Regulations), 

which requires the top 1,000 

listed companies (by market 

capitalisation) to formulate the 

same. The company’s Dividend 

Distribution Policy may also be 

accessed through the following 

link [1].

3. Board of Directors

 Four board meetings were 

held during the year. The 

details of the meetings and 

the attendance record of the 

directors are given in the 

Corporate Governance section 

of the Annual Report.

 During the ancial year, the 

Board at its meeting held 

on May 11, 2021, appointed 

Mr. Sudhir Sitapati as the 

Managing Director & CEO 

of the Company with effect 

from October 18, 2021, and 

the shareholder’s approval 

for the same was received at 

the Annual General meeting 

held on August 4, 2021. At the 

same meeting, the Board also 

approved the continuation of 

Ms. Nisaba Godrej as Whole-

time Director of the Company 

for the reminder of her term 

i.e. till September 30, 2022. 

Ms. Nisaba Godrej continues to 

be the Executive Chairperson 

of the Company as per the 

prevailing regulations. Since 

the term of Ms. Nisaba Godrej 

as Whole time Director is 

ending on September 30, 

2022, the notice of the 

Annual General Meeting 

contains a resolution for her 

reappointment for a further 

from October 1, 2022, for the 

approval of shareholders. 

 Mr. Adi Godrej stepped down 

from the Board of Directors 

of the Company with effect 

from September 30, 2021. He 

continues to be the Chairman 

Emeritus of the Company. 

The Board of Directors 

places on record their sincere 

appreciation for his vision 

and guidance that has helped 

shape and transform our 

company.

 Mr. Aman Mehta’s second term 

as Independent Director ended 

on August 31, 2021. The Board 

of Directors places on record 

their sincere appreciation of 

the contribution made by  

Mr. Mehta during his tenure  

on the Board.

 In the forthcoming AGM, Mr. 

Jamshyd Godrej and Ms. Tanya 

Dubash will retire by rotation, 

and being eligible, they will be 

considered for reappointment 

as per the provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013, Listing 

Regulations and Articles of 

Association of the Company.

 Your Company has an Audit 

Committee in compliance with 

Section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 

of Listing Regulations. The 

tenure of Mr. Aman Mehta 

completed on August 31, 

2021, and subsequently Mr. 

Sumeet Narang has been 

appointed as the Chairman 

of the Committee with effect 

from September 1, 2021. The 

Committee now consists of 

following Directors, viz., Mr. 

Sumeet Narang, Chairman 

of the Committee, and, Mr. 

Narendra Ambwani, Dr. Omkar 

Goswami, Ms. Ireena Vittal,  

Ms. Ndidi Nwuneli,  

Ms. Pippa Armerding,  

Mr. Pirojsha Godrej, all being 

members of the Committee. 

[1] -and-policies
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 All the Independent Directors 

have given their declaration 

the criteria of independence 

as prescribed under the 

provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Listing 

Regulations, and the same has 

been noted by the Board of 

Directors. The Independent 

compliance with the code 

of conduct for directors and 

senior management.

 During the year, the 

Independent Directors were 

familiarised with the Annual 

year 2021-22. Additionally, 

at all the Board meetings, 

detailed presentations 

covering business performance 

made. The programmes were 

conducted by the members 

of the company management. 

The details of the same are 

available on the website of the 

company and can be accessed 

through the following link[2].

 The company has in place a 

Board Diversity Policy, which 

is attached as . 

The criteria for determining 

attributes, and independence 

of Directors are as per 

the Board Diversity Policy, 

Listing Regulations, and the 

Companies Act, 2013.

  The company’s Remuneration 

Policy for Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel (KMP), 

and other employees is 

attached as . 

The company’s total rewards 

framework aims at holistically 

and variable compensation, 

and perquisites, and non-

compensation elements 

(career development, work–life 

balance, and recognition). 

The Non-executive Directors 

receive sitting fees and 

commission in accordance 

with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

 The remuneration of 

Directors is in accordance 

with the Remuneration Policy 

formulated in accordance with 

various rules and regulations 

for the time being in force. 

The disclosure on the details 

of remuneration to Directors 

and other employees 

pursuant to Section 197 

read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, is given 

under . With 

respect to the information 

under Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of 

the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, members may request 

the same by sending an email 

to the company at investor.

relations@godrejcp.com from 

their registered email address, 

quoting their name and folio 

number.

 We conducted a formal Board 

effectiveness review, as part 

of our efforts to evaluate the 

performance of our Board 

and identify areas that need 

improvement to enhance the 

effectiveness of the Board, its 

Committees, and Individual 

Directors. This was in line 

with the requirements of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Listing Regulations.

 The Corporate Human 

Resources team of Godrej 

Industries Limited and 

Associate Companies worked 

directly with the Chairperson 

and the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee 

of the Board to design and 

execute this process. It was 

later adopted by the Board.

 Each board member 

online questionnaire, sharing 

vital feedback on how the 

Board currently operates and 

how its effectiveness could 

[2]    
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be improved. This survey 

included four sections on the 

basis of which feedback and 

suggestions were compiled:

Members

 The criteria for Board 

processes included Board 

composition, strategic 

orientation, and team 

dynamics. Evaluation of each of 

the Board Committees covered 

objectives and the correct 

composition and whether 

they achieved their objectives. 

The criteria for Individual 

Board Members included 

skills, experience, level of 

preparedness, attendance, 

extent of contribution to Board 

debates and discussions, and 

how each Director leveraged 

their expertise and networks 

to meaningfully contribute to 

the company. The criteria for 

the Chairperson’s evaluation 

included leadership style and 

conduct of Board meetings. 

The performance evaluation 

criteria for Independent 

Directors included a check 

independence criteria and 

their independence from the 

management.

 The following reports were 

created as part of the 

evaluation:

Feedback Report

Report

 The overall board feedback 

was facilitated by Ms. Ireena 

Vittal with the Independent 

Directors. The Directors put 

forth their views regarding 

the Board functioning 

areas that showed scope 

for improvement. Feedback 

from the Committees and 

Individual Board Members was 

shared with the Chairperson. 

Following her evaluation, a 

Chairperson’s Feedback Report 

was compiled.

 Pursuant to the provisions 

contained in Section 134 (5) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, 

your Directors, based on the 

representation received from 

the Operating Management 

the following points:

 a) In the preparation of 

annual accounts, the 

applicable accounting 

standards have been 

followed and no material 

departures have been 

made from the same.

 b) They have selected such 

accounting policies and 

applied them consistently 

and made judgements 

and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent 

to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs 

of the company at the 

company for that period.

 c) They have taken proper 

the maintenance of 

adequate accounting 

records in accordance 

with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, 

for safeguarding the 

assets of the company 

and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other 

irregularities.

 d) They have prepared the 

annual accounts on a 

going concern basis.

 e) They have laid down 

to be followed by the 

company, and such 

are adequate and 

operating effectively.

 f) They have devised 

a proper system to 

ensure compliance with 

the provisions of all 

applicable laws, and this 

system is adequate and 

operating effectively.

4.  Transfer to Investor 
Education and 
Protection Fund

 In accordance with the 

applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Investor Education and 

Protection Fund (Accounting, 
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Audit, Transfer, and Refund) 

Rules, 2016 (IEPF Rules), 

all unclaimed dividends are 

required to be transferred 

by the company to the IEPF 

after completion of 7 years. 

Further, according to IEPF 

Rules, the shares on which 

dividend has not been claimed 

by the shareholders for 7 

consecutive years or more shall 

be transferred to the demat 

account of the IEPF authority. 

Accordingly, ` 1,25,06,051 

were transferred during the 

No shares were required to be 

transferred during the current 

year.

 The company has appointed 

provisions of IEPF Regulations, 

the details of which are 

available on the company 

website and can be accessed 

through the following link[3].

 The company has uploaded 

the details of unpaid and 

unclaimed amounts lying with 

the company as on March 31, 

2021, on the company website, 

which can be accessed through 

the following link[4]. The details 

of unpaid and unclaimed 

amounts lying with the 

company as on March 31, 2022, 

will be available on the same 

link within 60 days of the AGM.

5. Finance

 The details of loans, 

guarantees, and investments as 

required by the provisions of 

Section 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the rules made 

thereunder are set out in 

the Notes to the Standalone 

Financial Statements of the 

company.

 In compliance with the Listing 

Regulations, the company has 

a Policy for Transactions with 

Related Parties (RPT Policy). 

The RPT Policy is available 

on the company website and 

can be accessed through the 

following link[5].

 Apart from the Related Party 

Transactions in the ordinary 

course of business and on 

arm’s length basis, the details 

of which are given in the 

Notes to Financial Statements, 

no other Related Party 

Transactions require disclosure 

in the Board’s Report for 

complying with Section 134(3)

(h) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Therefore, the disclosure of 

Related Party Transactions as 

required under Section 134(3)

(h) of the Companies Act, 

2013 in Form AOC-2 is not 

applicable.

6.  Subsidiaries, 
Associates, and Joint 
Venture

 During the year, the following 

companies ceased to be the 

subsidiaries of your company:

Limited on account of 

its voluntary dissolution 

with effect from August 3, 

2021.

account of its voluntary 

dissolution with effect 

from December 27, 2021.

 During the year, Bhabani Blunt 

Hair Dressing Private Limited 

has ceased to be an associate 

of your company with effect 

from February 14, 2022.

 Furthermore, Godrej Consumer 

Care Limited was incorporated 

as a wholly owned subsidiary 

of your company on January 4, 

2022.

 The details of the cluster-wise 

performance are given below:

challenging one for Indonesia, 

with the Covid-19 pandemic 

challenging the business 

environment through the year. 

The overall business top line 

declined at 4 percent in INR 

[3] 

[4] -dividend

[5] -and-policies
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terms (5 percent decline in 

over a 2 year period. Despite 

a challenging year with tough 

macros in Indonesia, we 

focused on strengthening the 

fundamentals for the future. 

Saniter continued to make 

strong forays with Saniter 

Aerosol becoming the product 

of choice during the Covid 

waves. HIT had muted growth 

as the category slowdown 

continued.  Air Fresheners 

showed strong growth with 

the Home care segment 

showing a strong recovery. 

We faced strong headwinds 

in our Baby wipes segment, 

competitive intensity from new 

have started to clawback 

accelerated our Go-To-Market 

efforts with strong distribution 

expansion in General Trade, 

continued to strengthen our 

in-store execution in Modern 

Trade and also doubled down 

into ecommerce.

 We also continued our focus 

on cost savings to fuel our 

macro environment & also 

will continue to focus sharply 

on category development 

with breakthrough innovation, 

strong brand building and 

strengthening GTM.

 

continued strong growth for 

our Africa, Middle East, and 

business top line grew by 22 

per cent in constant currency 

terms. West and South clusters 

grew strongly at a break-out 

pace of 36 and 17 per cent in 

market also delivered 8 per cent 

growth in constant currency 

terms, though over a small 

base, despite various macro 

cost headwinds across markets 

- input cost increases, adverse 

forex movement, & continued 

tendency of consumers to 

shift away from value-added 

products resulting in adverse 

portfolio mix. However, our 

robust cost optimization 

programs and timely price 

increases helped in maintaining 

EBITDA margins in line with 

previous year. Overall, despite a 

challenging year, we focused on 

strengthening the fundamentals 

for future. We witnessed 

continued momentum on 

braid premiumization in South 

Africa. We grew strongly in the 

newly launched HI category in 

Nigeria and strengthened our 

by expanding our partnership 

to Target in addition to 

accelerated our GTM efforts 

in Nigeria, particularly last 

mile distribution through van 

model. Going forward, our 

focus would be to strengthen 

last mile distribution across 

markets (including the salon 

channel), continue improving 

margins by driving operational 

excellence, strengthening 

our portfolio, investing in the 

consumer, & accelerating Wet 

maintain laser sharp focus on 

strong governance controls and 

maintain an unrelenting focus 

 Our Latin America cluster 

closed a strong year in a 

challenging environment. Net 

Sales (INR) grew 15 percent 

while EBITDA grew at 33 

percent versus last year.

 Argentina business closed 

growth. In a context of COVID 

restrictions and lockdowns, 

the team delivered a Top 

Line growth of 45 percent in 

constant currency (21 percent 

in INR), driven by Go-To-

Market Improvements, COMEX 

expansion and Innovation. 

EBITDA grew 50 percent 

in constant currency (24 

percent in INR) achieving an 

EBITDA margin of 15 percent 

improvements were also driven 

by a healthy NWC reduction.

 Our Chile business grew 

Net Sales at 5 percent CC (4 

percent in INR) driven by a 

strong performance of Hair 

Color, Hair Removal and 

Traditional Channel. EBITDA 

grew by 50 percent in CC 

(49 percent in INR) driven 

 Looking ahead, we will 

growth and working capital 

management to strengthen our 

Latin America businesses.
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 In compliance with the 

Listing Regulations, the 

Board has adopted a policy 

for determining material 

subsidiaries. This policy is 

available on the company 

website and can be accessed 

through the following link[6].

 A statement containing the 

of the company in the 

prescribed Form AOC-1,  

a part of consolidated 

in compliance with Section 

129(3) and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the 

Act read with Rule 5 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014.

 The said form also highlights 

of each of the subsidiaries 

and joint venture companies 

included in the CFS of the 

company pursuant to Rule 8(1) 

of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014.

7.  Sexual Harassment 
of Women at 
Workplace 
(Prevention, 
Prohibition, and 
Redressal) Act, 2013

 Your company has complied 

with the provisions relating to 

the constitution of the Internal 

Committee in compliance 

with the Sexual Harassment 

of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition, 

and Redressal) Act, 2013, 

to consider and resolve all 

sexual harassment complaints 

reported by women. During 

the year, awareness regarding 

sexual harassment among 

employees was created 

through emails to employees. 

There were two complaints 

reported during the calendar 

year 2021, and accordingly, 

complaint report with the 

concerned authorities in 

accordance with Section 22 of 

the aforementioned Act.

8.  Talent Management 
and Succession 
Planning

 Your company has the talent 

management process in 

place with the objective of 

developing a robust talent 

pipeline for the organisation, 

which includes the senior 

leadership team. As part of 

the talent process, we identify 

critical positions and assess 

the succession coverage for 

them annually. During this 

process, we also review the 

supply of talent, identify high-

potential employees, and plan 

talent actions to meet the 

organisation’s talent objectives. 

We continue to deploy 

leadership development 

initiatives to build succession 

for key roles.

9. Annual Return

 In compliance with the 

provisions Section 134(3)(a) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, 

the Annual Return as per 

Section 93(3) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, is available on 

the company website, which 

can be accessed through the 

following link[7].

10. Risk Management

process in place to ensure 

and mitigation of risks. The 

Risk Management Committee 

of the company has been 

entrusted by the Board with the 

and mitigation plans for the 

‘Risks that Matter’.

 Elements of risks to the 

company are listed in the 

Management Discussion and 

Analysis section of the Annual 

and Integrated Report.

11.  Vigil Mechanism

 Your company has adopted a 

Whistle Blower Policy as a part 

of its vigil mechanism.

 The purpose of the policy is to 

enable any person (employees, 

customers, or vendors) to 

raise concerns regarding 

unacceptable improper 

practices in the organisation 

without the knowledge of the 

management. All employees 

shall be protected from any 

adverse action for reporting 

[6] -and-policies

[7] -reports
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any unacceptable or improper 

practice, fraud, or violation of 

any law, rule, or regulation. 

This policy is also applicable to 

the directors of the company.

 Mr. V Swaminathan, Head 

Corporate Audit and 

Assurance, has been appointed 

and his contact details have 

been mentioned in the policy. 

Furthermore, employees are 

free to communicate their 

complaints directly to the 

Committee, as stated in the 

policy. The policy is available 

on the internal employee 

portal, and the company 

website and can be accessed 

through the following link[8]. 

The Audit Committee reviews 

reports made under this policy 

and implements corrective 

actions, wherever necessary.

12. Annexures

 of this report 

provides information on 

the conservation of energy, 

technology absorption, foreign 

exchange earnings, and outgo 

required under Section 134(3)

(m) of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, which 

forms a part of the Board’s 

Report.

 The corporate social 

responsibility (CSR) Policy 

is available on the company 

website under the following 

link[9]. The CSR Report, along 

with details of CSR projects, 

are provided in  

of this report.

 The company has a stock 

option scheme named as 

‘Employee Stock Grant 

Scheme, 2011’. The number 

and the resulting value of stock 

grants to be given to eligible 

employees are decided by the 

Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, which are based 

on the closing market price on 

the date of the grants.

 The grants vest in one or 

more tranches as per the 

decision of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee 

with a minimum vesting period 

of 1 year from the grant date. 

employee can exercise the 

grants and acquire equivalent 

shares of the face value of 1. 

The difference between the 

market price at the time of 

grants and that on the date of 

to the employee. The details 

of the grants allotted under 

the Godrej Consumer Products 

Limited Employee Stock 

Grant Scheme, 2011 and the 

disclosures in compliance with 

(SEBI) Regulations, 2014 and 

Section 62 1 (b) read with 

Rule 12 (9) of the Companies 

(Share Capital and Debentures) 

Rules, 2014 are set out in 

. Your company 

has not given a loan to any 

person under any scheme 

for or in connection with the 

subscription or purchase of 

shares in the company or the 

holding company. Hence, there 

are no disclosures on voting 

rights not directly exercised by 

the employees.

13. Listing

 The shares of your company are 

listed on the BSE Limited and 

National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited. The applicable annual 

listing fees have been paid to 

the stock exchanges before the 

due dates. Your company is also 

listed on the Futures and Options 

Segment of the National Stock 

Exchange of India.

14.  Business 
Responsibility 
Report

 Pursuant to Regulation 34 of 

the Listing Regulations, the 

Business Responsibility Report 

highlighting the initiatives 

taken by the company in the 

areas of environment, social, 

economics, and governance is 

available on the website of the 

company and can be accessed 

through the following link[10].

[8] -and-policies

[9] -and-policies

[10] -reports
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15.  Auditors and 
Auditors’ Report

 In accordance with Section 139 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

B S R and Co. LLP, Chartered 

Accountants (Firm Regn. No. 

appointed as the statutory 

the conclusion of the 17th AGM 

on July 31, 2017, until the 

conclusion of the 22nd AGM in 

the year 2022 at a remuneration 

as may be approved by the 

of the statutory auditors will 

be completed at this AGM, 

and the company has received 

an eligibility letter for their 

appointment for the second 

term of 5 years, a resolution 

for their reappointment for the 

second term has been included 

in the Notice of AGM for the 

approval of shareholders.

 The company is maintaining 

requisite cost records for 

its applicable products. 

Pursuant to directions from 

the Department of Company 

and Co., Cost Accountants, 

were appointed as cost auditors 

for the applicable products of 

2021-22. They are required to 

submit the report to the Central 

Government within 180 days of 

the end of the accounting year.

 The Board had appointed  

Company Secretaries, to 

conduct a secretarial audit for 

Secretarial Audit Report for 

March 31, 2022, is attached 

herewith as . The 

Secretarial Audit Report does 

reservation, or adverse remark.

16.  Corporate 
Governance

 Pursuant to the Listing 

Regulations, the Report 

on Corporate Governance 

is included in the Annual 

and Integrated Report. The 

Practising Company Secretary’s 

company’s compliance with 

the requirements of corporate 

governance, in terms of the 

Listing Regulations, is attached 

as .

17.  Management 
Discussion and 
Analysis

 Management Discussion 

and Analysis as stipulated 

under the Listing Regulations 

is presented in a separate 

section forming a part of this 

Annual and Integrated Report. 

The details pertaining to the 

adequacy are also a part of the 

Annual and Integrated Report.

 a. Your company is in 

compliance with the 

applicable Secretarial 

Standards issued by the 

Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India.

 b. There have been no 

material changes and 

commitments affecting 

the company that have 

occurred between March 

31, 2022, and the date of 

this Board’s Report.

 c. There have been no 

instances of fraud 

reported by the auditors 

under Section 143 (12) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, 

and the rules framed 

thereunder, either to 

the company or to the 

Central Government.

 d. The company has not 

accepted any deposits 

from the public, and 

as such, no amount on 

the account of principal 

or interest on deposits 

from the public was 

outstanding as on the 

date of the balance sheet.

2021-22, there were no 

orders passed by the 

regulators or courts 

or tribunals that can 

adversely impact the 

going concern status 

of the company and its 

operations in the future.

19. Appreciation

 Your Directors wish to extend 

their sincere thanks to the 

employees of the company, 

central and state governments, 

as well as government 

agencies, banks, customers, 

shareholders, vendors, and 

other related organisations that 
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have helped in your company’s 

progress, as partners, through 

their continued support and 

co-operation.

 

Nisaba Godrej 

Mumbai, May 19, 2022

The company is committed to 

equality of opportunity in all 

aspects of its business and does 

not discriminate on the grounds of 

nationality, race, colour, religion, 

caste, gender, gender identity or 

expression, sexual orientation, 

disability, age, or marital status. 

The company recognises merit and 

continuously seeks to enhance the 

effectiveness of its Board.

The company believes that for an 

effective corporate governance, the 

Board should have the appropriate 

balance of skills, experience, and 

diversity of perspectives. Board 

appointments will be made on a 

merit basis, and candidates will 

be considered on the basis of 

objective criteria, with due regard 

Board. The Board believes that 

such merit-based appointments will 

best enable the company to serve 

its stakeholders. The Board will 

regularly review this policy to ensure 

its effectiveness.

GCPL’s Total Rewards Framework 

aims at holistically using elements 

compensation, long-term incentives, 

compensation elements (career 

development, work–life balance, and 

recognition).

The rewards framework offers 

customise different elements based 

on need. The framework is also 

integrated with GCPL’s performance 

and talent management processes 

and is designed to ensure sharply 

differentiated rewards for our best 

performers.

The total compensation for a given 

factors: position, performance, and 

potential. As a broad principle, 

for high performers and potential 

employees, GCPL strives to deliver 

the total compensation at the 75th 

percentile of the market.

The employees’ total cash 

compensation has the following 

three components:

1. ‘Fixed Compensation’ 

comprising the basic salary, 

such as the provident fund and 

gratuity.

2. ‘Flexible Compensation’ 

predetermined component 

of employees’ compensation. 

The employees can allocate 

this amount to different 

components, as per their grade 

3. ‘Variable Compensation 

(Performance-Linked Variable 

Remuneration)’ comprising 

employee rewards for 

delivering superior business 

results and individual 

performance. It is designed 

upside earning potential for 

overachieving business results. 

It has a ‘Collective’ component, 

linked to the achievement 

relative to the target set 

an ‘Individual’ component, 

based on an employee’s 

performance, as measured by 

the performance management 

process.

This scheme aims at driving a culture 

of ownership and focusing on 

long-term results. It is applicable to 

Godrej Leadership Forum members. 

based stock grants are awarded. 

The value of the stock grant is 

proposed by the management and 

approved by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee.
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AN

A. 

No.

2021-22 2021-22

1 Nisaba Godrej Executive Chairperson NA 92.38

Note:

1. Ms. Nisaba Godrej had 

voluntarily waived off the 

remuneration for FY 2020-21 

due to COVID, due to which 

her current year’s remuneration 

is not comparable with the 

previous year.

2. Mr. Sudhir Sitapati, Managing 

Director & CEO, Mr. Sameer 

and Mr. Rahul Botadara, 

Company Secretary & 

appointed during the course 

of the year and Mr. Adi Godrej 

ceased to be a Board Member 

during the year and Mr. V 

Srinivasan served as Chief 

Secretary only for part of the 

year due to which their current 

year’s remuneration is not 

comparable with the previous 

year and hence data is not 

provided in the above table.

 

No.

 

1 Jamshyd Godrej (8.00) 4.36

2 Nadir Godrej (3.85) 4.73

3 Tanya Dubash (8.00) 4.36

4 Pirojsha Godrej (0.00) 4.73

5 Narendra Ambwani (2.38) 7.77

6 Pippa Armerding (4.76) 7.58

7 Omkar Goswami (4.76) 7.58

8 Aman Mehta Not Applicable** Not Applicable**

9 Ndidi Nwuneli (4.76) 7.58

10 Ireena Vittal (4.76) 7.58

11 Sumeet Narang*  - -

 *Mr. Sumeet Narang has voluntarily waived the remuneration receivable from the company.

 ** Mr. Aman Mehta served as Independent Director only for part of the year due to which his current year’s 

remuneration is not comparable with the previous year and hence data is not provided in the above table.
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(i) The median remuneration of all 

the employees of the company 

lakhs

(ii) The percentage increase in 

the median remuneration of 

2021-22: 7.76%

(iii) The number of permanent 

employees on the payrolls of 

the company as on March 31, 

2022: 2601

(iv) The average percentile 

increases already made in the 

salaries of the employees, 

other than the Managerial 

year and its comparison with 

the percentile increase in the 

managerial remuneration and 

 Total managerial remuneration 

comprises the remuneration 

of the Whole-Time Directors 

and commission paid to 

Non-Executive Directors. 

The Whole-Time Directors’ 

remuneration is as per the 

resolution approved by the 

shareholders and will not 

exceed 10% of the company’s 

the Companies Act, 2013. The 

Non-Executive Directors are 

also eligible for a sitting fee 

of ` 1 lakh per Board meeting 

attended and ` 20,000 per 

committee meeting attended. 

The shareholders at the AGM 

held on July 30, 2018, has 

authorised the payment of 

Non-Executive Directors at 

the rate not exceeding 1% of 

with authority to the Board 

to determine the manner 

and proportion in which the 

amount be distributed among 

the Non-Executive Directors. 

The Board has authorised 

a base commission of ` 20 

lakhs per annum to each 

Non-Executive Director. All 

the Independent Directors are 

paid an additional commission 

linked to their attendance at 

various committee meetings 

and Independent Directors’ 

meetings. There is no change 

in the base amount of the 

sitting fees payable to 

Non-Executive Directors for 

attending meetings of the 

The percent change in 

remuneration represents a 

change in the pay-out based on 

actual attendance at meetings 

of the Board or Committee 

thereof for each of the Non-

Executive Directors, compared 

with that in the previous year.

 The average change in the 

salary of employees other 

than the Managerial Personnel 

is a decrease of 17 per cent 

whereas that in salary of 

the Managerial Personnel 

is decrease of 4 per cent. 

The difference is mainly 

due to payment of higher 

performance linked variable 

remuneration to employees 

last year. Two of the promoter 

directors had voluntarily 

waived their remuneration last 

year. 

(v) The remuneration is as per the 

Remuneration Policy of the 

company.

 Steps taken or impact of 

initiatives for conservation of 

energy, and steps taken by 

the company to use alternate 

sources of energy.

 The major energy conservation 

initiatives are as follows:

connected load (from 5 

to 3 KW); annual energy 

savings—12,000 KWh

water from the distillation 

unit; annual energy 

savings—1,080 KWh

and lighting connected 

to solar panels in the 

Sikkim unit; annual energy 

savings—2,700 KWh

ranges in shrink 

tunnels; annual energy 

savings—85,363 KWh
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system installed for ETP 

blower; annual energy 

savings—12,960 KWh

 Awards

AER unit has won 

the National Safety 

Award 2018 in ‘Winner 

category’, organised 

by the Directorate 

General Factory Advice 

Service and Labour 

Institute, Ministry of 

Labour & Employment, 

Government of India.

the NSCI Safety Award 

2021 (Manufacturing 

Sector) organised by the 

National Safety Council. 

Meghalaya Coil received 

the 4th level award 

PRASHANSA PATRA, 

and the Sikkim unit 

Appreciation’.

organised by the Indian 

Chamber of Commerce—

Kalapahar. AER received 

the award in the Gold 

category, and New 

Conso, Lokhra II, and 

Meghalaya Coil received 

awards in the silver 

category.

New Conso, Lokhra II, 

KP Coil, & Meghalaya 

unit of North East 

cluster participated in 

‘National Convention on 

and received three Par 

Excellence awards & two 

Excellence awards.

 The total capital investment 

on energy saving initiatives is 

` 144 lakhs, and the saving in 

energy consumption is ` 9.16 

lakh KWh per annum, which is 

equivalent to ` 103 lakhs per 

annum. Some of the energy 

conservation initiatives are as 

follows:

independent 11 KV 

feeder to eliminate DG 

operations because of 

power failure due to 

neighboring factories.

400 KVA rooftop solar 

systems.

all soap line machines.

wrapping outputs with 

servo conveyor.

intermediate conveyors 

with machines to 

eliminate idle running.

taping machines with the 

merging of two wrapping 

outputs.

bore well pipelines & 

motors.

motors of the soap plant 

motors.

chiller in NPF.

existing cooling fan with 

E glass fan in the cooling 

tower.

HVAC system to reduce 

power consumption.

motors of Soap Plant with 

Pump house replaced old 

normal motors with IE3 

motors (5hp - 2nos 3 HP 

= 4 no’s).

reduction from 450 to 

400 KW.

IE4 motor on Plodder.

ordinary common AC with 

rating ACs.

compressor CFM 30 kw.

of lights inside the plant, 

as well as replacement of 

regular lights with LED 

lights.

provided).
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pumps with venturi 

arrangement.

provided at N2 of 40 cfm.

motors.

HP to 0.5 HP on line 3.

MPC ordinary motors 

with IE4 motors.

servo system for mould 

punching & pushing.

bore well—saving on 7.5-

HP pump.

conveyor with roller 

conveyor in premix bag 

transfer in the Kneading 

section.

 The total capital investment in 

water conservation initiatives 

is ` 17.5 lakhs, and savings in 

water consumption is 1,895 

KL per annum. The water 

conservation initiatives are as 

follows:

gardening purposes.

level sensors for water 

storage tanks.

softener water in admin 

toilet water tank.

system on cooling tower.

bore well pipeline to 

eliminate leakages.

gardening purposes.

based water taps in 

all the washrooms and 

canteen areas.

& Restorative Category 

at 40th CII National Kaizen 

Competition 2021.

in Restorative Kaizen at 

CII Challengers trophy 

2021.

three Excellence awards 

for energy conservation 

year 2021-22 was ` 180.2 

lakhs.

consumption through the 

installation of energy-

solar-based lightings, 

BLDC fans, installation 

of servo-based coil 

punching cylinders and 

mould bed pushers, and 

rooftop solar panels have 

all resulted in savings 

covering all units.

Carbon Footprint, use of 

Bio waste fuels, instead 

of Furnace oil, in our 

hot air generators in our 

Pondicherry Coil Factory, 

to the extent of 4,114 MT.

installed in the CONSO 

unit with the capacity of 

99.6 kWp.

coil manufacturing—the 

replacement of punching 

and bed pushing with 

servo-based cylinders 

have resulted in 2,45,000 

KWh units being saved 

per annum from Nallur 

Coil-9 Factory.

has been swapped with 

battery-operated forklift 

at Conso Factory as a 

part of Green Project.

 Awards

received the Bronze 

award in the CII-EHS 

Excellence Award 2021.

Safety Awards—

CONSO unit, Coil 6 

unit, and MMN unit 
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Appreciation’ towards 

NSCI Safety Award 2021.

 

Systems (IMS): South 

completed IMS 

audits without any NCs 

(ISO 9001:2015, ISO 

14001:2015, and ISO 

45001:2018).

of Japanese Scientist 

received by the CONSO 

and MMN units in 2018 

and 2019, respectively. 

On completion of 3 

years, the Conso unit has 

a stringent audit by the 

 

4-day vaccination camps 

were conducted in June 

September 2021 (second 

dose) at CONSO and 

MMN units—750 persons 

including employees and 

their families and workers 

ventilators with trolleys 

and oxygen concentrators 

to the Puducherry 

Government both at 

June 2021.

measure, we have used 

disinfectant sprays to 

disinfect local villages 

near our factory in 

collaboration with 

the Bahour commune 

panchayat.

approximately 1,000 

hand sanitisers and 

1,000 masks to Bahour 

Commune Panchayat & 

Madagadipet Commune 

Panchayat, Pondicherry, 

each to help frontline 

workers protect 

themselves.

Community Development 

Programme, the company 

in collaboration with 

an NGO Recity and 

Pondicherry Municipality 

is running a ‘Keep 

Pondicherry Clean’ 

Project—training, 

educating, and hand-

holding with sorting 

and disposal of wastes 

in a segregated 

manner throughout the 

Municipality is being 

done. A Sanitary Park 

has been developed 

and commissioned 

for carrying out the 

segregation of dry 

wastes, baling, and 

generating revenue.

among the public, we 

collaborated with the 

Puducherry Pollution 

Control Committee. 

Puducherry Government 

sponsored the stall 

to promote cloth bag 

awareness to eliminate 

single-use plastics.

regarding the use of cloth 

bags instead of single-use 

plastics, we sponsored 

cloth bags to the 

Puducherry Government 

(approximately 1000 

nos), Bahour Commune 

Panchayat at Pondicherry, 

and Nedungadu 

Commune Panchayat at 

Karaikal (500 nos).

monthly celebrations 

have been organised in all 

units for the past 7 years.

provided in the units are 

ambulance, horizontal 

and vertical life-lines, 

boom lift, aluminium 

scaffolding, machine 

guarding, LOTO, visitor 

safety training KIOSK and 

electrical safety, etc.

was celebrated based on 

the theme ‘Ecosystem 

Restoration’ across the 

South Cluster, and tree 

saplings were planted in 

all the units.

rd National Road 

Safety was celebrated 

across the South Cluster.

st National Safety 

Week was celebrated 

across the South Cluster 

based on the theme 

Nurture Young Minds to 

Develop Safety Culture.
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Breast Feeding Week 

during August 2021, 

we organised a Breast 

Feeding Awareness 

Session for contract 

female workers through 

Venkateswara Medical 

College.

Programme was 

organised for contract 

female workers in 

February 2022 in 

collaboration with 

Venkateswara Medial 

College Doctors.

space for women in 

our factories across the 

South Cluster, we have 

initiated a mega drive 

on Prevention of Sexual 

Harassment (POSH) 

awareness. This drive 

covering all our workforce 

including casual and 

contractual labourers. In 

covered 545 participants 

with over 1,600 manhours 

of classroom training 

through this drive; 

this turns out to be 

approximately 40% of our 

total workforce.

warning system with a 

view to prevent  incidents 

pertaining to sexual 

harassments, we have 

established a POSH 

Employee Resource 

all-women participation 

from the contract labours. 

This Employee Resource 

Group meets every 

quarter and discusses 

possible areas of concern, 

which are then addressed 

by the POSH committee.

Day across the South 

Cluster where various 

competitions were 

conducted for contract 

workers and prizes 

were distributed to the 

winners.

 The total CAPEX used 

for energy conservation 

measures during the year 

is `400 lakhs. The various 

energy conservation initiatives 

undertaken during the year are 

as follows:

head, the following initiatives 

were implemented:

rooftop solar lights, 

which reduced the load 

on electricity board and 

reduced GHG emissions, 

leading to the saving of 3 

lakhs unit per annum.

street lights, reducing 

GHG emissions.

usage of briquette 

consumption. The 

briquette consumption 

increased by 14% with 

2020-21.

Consumption head, the 

following initiatives were 

implemented:

Mechanical Vapour 

Compressor in chemical 

plants, which resulted 

in saving energy 

consumption by ` 93 

lakhs (265 MT of furnace 

oil).

cooling towers, resulting 

in potential saving of 

power consumption by 

auto control system in 

RO storage tanks for 

controlling temperature 

through a PLC-based 

control system to reduce 

steam consumption, 

resulting in energy saving 

by 20 MT of furnace oil.

pipelines to cater to the 

supply to all lines from 

a single point during 

the winter season, thus 

resulting in a reduction in 

power consumption by 

28,000 units annually.

technology-based 

aeration in ETP, resulting 

in potential saving of 

power consumption by  

` 1 lakh units per annum.
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of Atlas make in the soap 

water ring pumps, 

resulting in saving of 

power consumption by  

` 1 lakh units per annum.

condenser in water 

chilling units, resulting in 

saving of ` 1.2 lakh units 

per annum.

control system to 

control the harmonics in 

electricity, resulting in a 

potential saving of ` 60 

lakhs per annum.

motors with high 

motors, resulted in 4-6 

percent saving in power 

consumption.

preheater in CP3 

for improvement in 

temperature, thereby 

improving productivity.

heat exchanger in FADP1.

  

the following initiatives were 

taken:

developing pathways in 

an eco-friendly manner 

instead of disposal to co-

processor.

 

 the following 

initiatives were taken:

systems.

water in cooling towers.

 In addition, the Malanpur 

team improved productivity 

of soap noodle and feed rates 

of chemical plants, which 

contributed towards the 

consumption.

day, resulting in energy-

rates from 476 to 481.2 

 

 (a) GCPL Malanpur received 

the following awards in 

Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu, 

 (b) GCPL Malanpur received 

the following awards 

in the International 

Control Circles November 

2021 held in Hyderabad.

Excellence

 (c) GCPL Malanpur also 

bagged a total of 21 

awards in case study 

presentation at INSAAN, 

New Delhi, in various 

categories such as 

competition.

B. 

 The Research and 

Development function of your 

organisation played a key 

role in ensuring the successful 

launches of the following 

year 2021-22:

 1. Jumbo Fast Card

 2.  HIT one push aerosol in 

Indonesia

 3.  Roll on

 4.  AER Power Pocket Range

 5.  Godrej Professional new 

shades

 6.  E-commerce-led 

products—Good Knight 

mosquito repellent 

anti-mosquito skin spray, 

Goodness.me range, etc.

 7.  Hair colours with 

colorplex with strong 

bond

 8.  Inecto hair colour clay

 10.  Sanitor handwash

 11.  Stella aerosol

 12.  Mega growth anti-

dandruff range in Nigeria

 The current year, like previous 
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years, also saw a sharp focus 

on consumer-centric and 

relevant design-led innovation. 

The company focuses 

extensively on innovation 

in new technologies, which 

gives value for money to the 

consumer.

 1. Home Care, which 

includes household 

insecticides, air 

fresheners, and fabric 

care.

 2. Personal Care, which 

includes soaps & toiletries 

and hygiene range.

 3. Hair care and hair colours

 4. Wet hair & dry hair.

 R&D has played pivotal role in 

developing new technologies 

in AER, Hair Colours, Personal 

Wash and HI areas. Strong R&D 

led initiatives with innovative 

projects have led to successful 

launches of several new 

products in the marketplace in 

company has launched range 

of health & hygiene products 

under different brands and 

has shown strong agility in 

development & technology 

commercialisation. R&D is 

continuously protecting its 

innovations through Design 

and Product patents. The 

patents both in India and 

abroad. R&D has played a 

pivotal role in improving cost 

optimization across product 

categories by contributing 

through both product and 

process related innovations 

and improvements. 

 We believe that the three key 

pillars viz. consumer centricity, 

new product innovation & 

development and training-led 

skill up-gradation will continue 

to propel your Company ahead 

of competition in its strategy of 

innovation led value creation.

 R&D shall continue to play a 

key role in the advancement 

and successful execution 

of newer innovations in the 

marketplace for both domestic 

and international businesses. 

Our R&D team shall constantly 

endeavour to deliver superior 

innovative products, thereby 

delighting both domestic 

and international customers 

through the following means:

 1.  Ensuring successful 

commercial launches 

within Hair Care, 

Household Insecticides, 

Room Freshener, and 

Personal Care categories 

for the coming year.

 2.  Engaging in providing 

support on global 

innovation strategies 

for various product 

categories within our 

international businesses 

and extending support 

on relevant product 

development for 

international markets.

 3. Focusing on newer 

consumer-relevant 

product experiences 

within all categories 

such as Household 

Insecticides, Hair Care, 

AER, Fabric Care, and 

Health & Hygiene.

 4. Maintaining a strong 

focus on R&D training 

needs and people 

development.

 5. Partnering collaborations 

with external 

stakeholders and leading 

institutions.

` Crore

 
2021-22

 
2020-21

Capital 0.08 0.72

Recurring 20.57 22.68

20.66 23.40

Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of total sales turnover 0.30% 0.38%
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` Crore

 
2021-22

 
2020-21

I. Foreign exchange used 737.10 487.16

II. Foreign exchange earned 264.49 232.93

GCPL is committed to the Godrej 

Group’s ‘Good & Green’ vision 

of creating a more inclusive and 

greener India. The GCPL CSR policy 

focuses on addressing the critical 

social, environmental, and economic 

needs of the marginalised and less 

privileged sections of society. We 

adopt an approach that integrates 

the solutions to these problems 

into the strategy of the Company 

deliver social and environmental 

impacts. The Company has framed 

a CSR Policy in compliance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013. The policy as well as projects 

and programmes under the CSR 

Policy are available on the Company 

website and can be accessed 

through the following link.[11]

An overview of the projects or 

programmes undertaken during the 

We have aligned our programmes to 

national priorities and missions, and 

they are categorised as follows.

 The impact of COVID-19 has 

been felt as a public health 

crisis of unprecedented 

proportions. It is also a 

long-term economic disaster 

impacting the lives and 

livelihoods of billions of 

people worldwide. Even 

when vaccinations began, 

people from low-income and 

underserved communities 

were left behind. In emerging 

markets where GCPL operates, 

this is further complicated by 

pre-existing inequalities.

 

 We provided need-based 

food relief kits to the most 

vulnerable in the geographies 

of key interest, such as around 

our manufacturing units, 

facilities. Furthermore, we 

provided support such as 

livelihood recovery training, 

access to returnable grants, 

training on business recovery, 

and handholding nano and 

micro entrepreneurs to ensure 

they were able to successfully 

emerge from the second and 

third COVID-19 waves in India. 

 Responding to the need of the 

most vulnerable communities 

such as informal sector 

workers, domestic help, and 

other such communities, we 

provided 6,365 food kits to 

people across Goa, Gujarat, 

Jammu & Kashmir, Karnataka, 

Kerala, Maharashtra, Rajasthan, 

and West Bengal. Moreover, 

we donated medical 

equipment (such as ventilators, 

oxygen concentrators, hospital 

beds, and intensive-care-unit 

monitors) and consumables 

worth ` 2.5 crore to 20 

hospitals in key locations for 

GCPL pan-India. Finally, 4.94 

lakh units of masks, sanitisers, 

and soaps were distributed 

during the second wave to 

frontline workers and the most 

vulnerable communities.

 In Kolkata and Guwahati, we 

provided livelihood recovery 

training and support to 7,166 

street vendors—one of the 

most vulnerable and at-risk 

occupation groups within 

the informal sector workers. 

We trained them on health, 

hygiene, safe product handling, 

proper waste disposal, 

and digital payment methods. 

We also raised awareness on 

various social entitlements 

and social protection schemes 

available to them, and 

over 1,600 people applied 

[11] -and-policies
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for various schemes and 

entitlements.

 In Thane and Palghar, we 

mobilised 90 entrepreneurs to 

establish micro-enterprises in 

rural areas that will positively 

impact over 600 people and 

help them set up market 

platforms. The project has a 

special focus on women and 

returned migrant worker–led 

enterprises. We developed 

enterprises in farm produce 

value addition, aggregation, 

and trading. We are also 

creating marketplaces for rural 

entrepreneurs by setting up 

farmer markets. These pop-up 

marketplaces will help connect 

buyers (urban India) and sellers 

(from rural India), leading 

to responsible consumption 

and production. Close to 

75% of the entrepreneurs are 

active, and we are enabling 

government schemes.

 In Baddi, Jammu, Pune, and 

Lucknow, we helped provide 

formal-sector jobs to 3,353 

out-of-work adults and enabled 

1,575 adolescents to stay 

in school. We placed 3,228 

people in the formal sector 

with an average salary of  

` 11,367. We engaged with 

adolescents and provided 

learning opportunities, 

enhancing their life skills and 

building their resilience.

 

 National and state 

governments have announced 

various welfare schemes for 

those who have been hit the 

hardest by the pandemic, and 

we are working with our non-

funds.

 In Mumbai, we provided 

support to 4,993 individuals 

to get government identity 

documents (IDs) and avail 

access to entitlements. This has 

unlocked over ` 34 lakhs for 

the people and their families.

 In Malanpur, we set up 

an entitlement facilitation 

centre to ensure people get 

access to and avail their basic 

entitlements of various state 

and central government 

welfare schemes. The project 

capacitated, trained, and 

handheld them to avail 

entitlements. We helped 

submit over 700 applications, 

which unlocked close to ` 1.3 

lakhs in provident fund claims, 

savings of ` 2.5 lakhs, and 

insurance cover of ` 2.45 crore.

 

access

 As vaccines are our best bet 

started vaccination awareness 

drives in communities around 

several of our manufacturing 

plants and warehousing 

facilities across six states of 

India.

 In Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka, 

Puducherry, Telangana, 

Tamil Nadu, and Assam, we 

partnered with NGOs and 

local government healthcare 

workers to raise awareness 

and enable door-to-door 

vaccination services to low-

income and underserved 

communities that have so 

far been left out. We have 

reached out to over 105,000 

people and helped them get 

vaccinated.

 At Godrej, we collaborate with 

social enterprises to design 

and run several employability 

training programmes for youth 

from low-income sections of 

society. We aim to improve 

the earning potential of our 

trainees by building their 

skills and by empowering 

them. Apart from core domain 

skills, our programmes also 

focus on life skills training, 

entrepreneurship development, 

and postplacement support.

 As of March 2022, we 

have trained over 4,40,981 

young people in skills that 

will enhance their earning 

potential. Our projects are:

hair care training

Home-preneur (HP) and 

Barber-preneur platform 

for nano and micro 

entrepreneurs in beauty 

industry

 In FY22, we continued to 

provide returnable grants to 

our beautypreneurs (between  

` 5,000 to 20,000). We 

supported 681 of our 

entrepreneurs to buy 

safety equipment and salon 

consumables and, in some 

cases, to diversify into a 

new income stream, such as 

tailoring or catering. Through 

this process, the women have 
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also learned important digital 

75% of the beautypreneurs 

have repaid the returnable 

grants they have availed. After 

the devastating second wave 

of COVID-19, we issued a 

moratorium to ease the burden 

of repayment.

 We restarted Salon-i after 

18 months due to COVID-19 

impact on the beauty sector. 

We trained a small batch 

of over 588 young girls this 

year. As an extension of 

Salon-i, we support women 

micro entrepreneurs in the 

beauty and wellness sector in 

various parts of the country 

to grow their businesses. The 

Beautypreneur project aims to 

handhold nano entrepreneurs 

to help them stabilise and 

expand their enterprises. Since 

have supported over 4,910 

women entrepreneurs and in 

FY22 we welcomed 750 new 

entrepreneurs to the cohort. 

In addition, we have expanded 

our work with barbers and 

have trained and supported 

over 130 young men to on 

advanced hair styling skills and 

enterprise development. 

 A third-party impact 

assessment undertaken this 

year found that despite the 

pandemic, our programme saw 

a return of ` 7.75 for every 

rupee invested in the FY21 

cohort. Further, the study 

found Their average annual 

savings also rose over 40 per 

cent, from ` 16,022 before 

the training to ` 22,683. The 

average number of services 

a customer availed per visit 

before attending the training 

was 5.55, while the average 

number of services a customer 

availed after receiving the 

training was 6.90. These 

results  were achieved by 

introducing them to a package 

of practices to rationalise 

their service rates, personal 

care and hygiene standards, 

ideas on how to attract and 

retain a client base, and record 

keeping.

 Project EMBED (Elimination 

of Vector-Borne Endemic 

Diseases) started in 2015 in 

Madhya Pradesh in partnership 

with the Ministry of Health 

& Family Welfare’s National 

Centre for Vector Borne 

Diseases Control (erstwhile 

NVBDCP) focusing on malaria 

elimination in line with the 

Government of India’s mission. 

Over the past 6 years, we 

Pradesh and Chhattisgarh, 

and in FY 21, we also focused 

on dengue and chikungunya 

prevention in urban areas. 

We collaborate with NGOs 

and state governments to run 

intensive behaviour change 

programmes in regions with 

a high annual parasite index, 

where the case burden is the 

highest. We work in each 

location for 3 years, spreading 

awareness among households 

and people at the bottom of 

the pyramid and vulnerable 

and marginalised groups.

 Our urban dengue and 

chikungunya project in four 

cities focuses on increasing 

the awareness of urban poor 

communities regarding the 

spread of mosquito-borne 

diseases and educating them 

regarding how to keep their 

families and communities 

safe. The project currently 

runs in Bhopal and Gwalior in 

Madhya Pradesh and Lucknow 

It aims to reduce dengue 

and chikungunya cases and 

associated mortality. Our third 

project under EMBED focused 

on providing technical support 

to the Government of India and 

to help develop an integrated 

vector management protocol 

and support the roll out of the 

same in endemic states. 

 Through the successful 

implementation of all three 

2025-26, we aim to protect 30 

million people against vector-

borne diseases.

 During the second wave of 

COVID-19 from April to June 

2021, we distributed hand 

sanitizers to frontline workers, 

healthcare providers, and 

community members. We 

raised awareness and mobilised 

communities for COVID-19 

vaccination and following 

COVID-19-appropriate 

behaviour. Numerous people 

were vaccinated due to the 

mobilisation carried out by our 

programme team. Additionally, 

we supported fever screening 

along with healthcare 

providers, linking fever cases 

for testing and treatment 

services and following up 

home isolation cases with local 

healthcare (Accredited Social 
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Health Activist, ASHA) workers.

 We conducted a third-party 

impact assessment of the 

rural malaria intervention in 

4 districts of MP – namely 

Shivpuri, Sheopur, Alirajpur and 

Jhabua – one and a half years 

post completion of project 

and exit from December 2021 

to February 2022. The study 

revealed that community 

awareness about malaria 

symptoms remains high at 

98%), and testing for malaria 

when people have fever is at 

70% among the respondents. 

This has led to frequent 

testing, timely treatment and 

faster recovery. 92% of the 

households that participated 

in the study are actively taking 

measures to keep their house 

and surroundings clean to 

ensure there are no mosquito 

breeding spaces in the 

community. The SROI value for 

the overall program is ` 12.57, 

i.e. for every rupee invested, 

the programme provides a 

value of ` 12.57.

 In 2015, Madhya Pradesh 

was a category-3 state with 

high malaria incidence and in 

2021, it has been declared a 

category-1 state and is well on 

its way to eliminate malaria. 

GCPL’s EMBED programme is 

the only private-funded malaria 

elimination programme running 

in Madhya Pradesh since 2015 

in partnership with Govt. of 

Madhya Pradesh. Between 

2015–2020 malaria caseload 

in the state has reduced by 

93.28% and malaria deaths 

have been reduced by 95.83%. 

This is the highest % drop in 

malaria cases in a state in India 

in this time period.

 We have initiated various 

community waste management 

projects across India. In the 

past, we have collaborated 

with Hyderabad and 

Kalyan-Dombivali municipal 

corporations for urban waste 

management. We are also 

working with a social enterprise 

in Guwahati to recycle forest 

and agri residue into briquettes 

for use as biofuel and another 

project to convert plastic waste 

into fuel. Through this project, 

we aim to divert 50 metric tons 

by 2023. The facility is currently 

under construction and will be 

operational in FY23.

 Since FY 21, we have partnered 

with the Puducherry Municipal 

Corporation to implement a 

community waste management 

project. We have reached 

out to 16 wards in 3 zones 

of Puducherry covering 

over 35,000 people. We are 

digitally tracking the waste 

management process and 

raising awareness on door-

to-door collection and source 

segregation. In FY 22, we 

have diverted over 7,300 kg 

clean-up drives and have 

set up a sanitation park. We 

provided 204 waste workers 

with occupational ID cards, 

and 26 workers enrolled on 

the PMJAY welfare scheme, 

which has unlocked a cover 

of ` 5 lakhs per family per 

have set up a sanitation park 

or advanced segregation 

centre, in partnership with 

the Municipal Corporation. 

Through this centre, we aim 

metric tons of waste per day 

from Pondicherry to work 

towards a circular economy 

ecosystem for the city.

 We are committed to ensuring 

that communities around our 

locations are inclusive and 

prosperous. In line with this, we 

support a number of initiatives 

with organisations that create 

long term value and impact in 

these communities.

 Around our factories in Bhind 

district of Madhya Pradesh and 

Solan in Himachal Pradesh, we 

supported water and sanitation 

projects (WASH) to enable local 

communities to have a better 

quality of life and prosper. We 

support MSWC Asha Sadan to 

ensure that girls rescued from 

orphans have a good quality of 

life and education in Mumbai, 

our headquarters. With a view 

to ensuring that institutes 

of higher education focus 

on sustainable technologies, 

we support the Institute of 

Chemical Technology, Mumbai. 

to Foundation for Sports and 

Games to support Indian 

athletes aspiring to prepare 

and participate in international 

games and tournaments by 

funding their training and sport 

equipment purchase as well 

as by providing them medical 

support.
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 GCPL is committed to the Godrej Group’s ‘Good & Green’ vision of creating a more inclusive and greener 

India. The GCPL CSR policy focuses on addressing the critical social, environmental, and economic needs of the 

marginalised and less privileged sections of society. We adopt an approach that integrates the solutions to these 

impacts. The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The policy as well as projects and programmes under the CSR Policy are available on the Company website and 

can be accessed through the following link.

No.

1 00591503 Nisaba Godrej Chairperson and 
Managing Director

2 2

2 00066195 Nadir Godrej Non-Executive Director 2 2

3 00026028 Tanya Dubash Non-Executive Director 2 1

4 00236658 Narendra Ambwani Independent Director 2 2

5 09197063 Sudhir Sitapati Managing Director & CEO 2 1

 -and-policies 

 

 

beautypreneur-sroi-and-impact-assessment-report-2022.pdf

 EMBED link - 

No.
`) (in `)

1 NIL
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 ` 1523.09 Crore

 

  ` 30.46 Crore

  NA 

  NA

  ` 30.46 Crore

(` Crore)

135(5)

30.46 6.23 27 April 2022 - - -
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 ` 76.31 lakhs

 ` 20.15 lakhs

 ` 24.27 Crore

No.

(i) ` 30.46 Crore

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ` 24.27 Crore

(iii) NA

(iv)
years, if any

NA

(v) NIL

(` Lakhs)

No.
Preceding 

Financial 

FY20-21 51.00 - - - - 51.00

FY19-20 N/A

FY18-19 N/A

TOTAL 51.00 51.00

 

(` Crore)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

No.
Financial 

Financial 
Ongoing.

NIL
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(` Lakhs)

No.

 

1 30-03-2022 51.98 Recity Network Pvt Ltd Sanitation Park in partnership with 
Puducherry Municipal Corporation, 
Puducherry

2 22-10-2021 3.24 Recity Network Pvt Ltd Sanitation Park in partnership with 
Puducherry Municipal Corporation, 
Puducherry

 N/A

Sd/- 
Sudhir Sitapati 
Managing Director & CEO

Sd/- 
Nadir Godrej 
Chairman of CSR Committee
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No.

 

1 Date of shareholders’ approval for the options granted under 
the scheme

March 18, 2011

2 Total number of options approved for grants under the 
Scheme

25,00,000

3 Vesting requirements
subject to minimum 1 year from the date of grant

4 Exercise price or pricing formula ` 1 per share

5 Maximum term of options granted As may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee as per the prevalent regulatory provisions

6 Source of shares Direct allotment

7 Variation of terms of options None

8 Number of options outstanding as on April 1, 2021 1,87,421

9 Number of fresh options granted during the year 5,78,514

10 Number of options lapsed during the year 55,027

11 Number of options vested during the year 95,181

12 Number of options exercised during the year 94,806

13 Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options 94,806

14 Money realised by exercise of options 94,806

15 Number of options outstanding and exercisable at the end of 
the year

6,16,102

16 Method used to account for the options The company has calculated the employee compensation cost 
using the fair value of stock options, in accordance with IND AS

17 Weighted-average exercise prices and weighted-average fair 
values of options (shall be disclosed separately for options 
whose exercise price either equals or exceeds or is less than 
the market price of the stock)

Exercise price: ` 1.00 per share
Fair value: ` 958.87

18 Employee-wise details of options granted to —

i) Senior Managerial Personnel

ii)  Any other employee who receives a grant in any one 
year of option amounting to 5 per cent or more of the 
option granted during that year

As per Note 1 below

any one year, equal to or exceeding one per cent of 
the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and 
conversions) of the company at the time of grant

Nil

19 Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) pursuant to issue of 
shares on exercise of option calculated in accordance with 
Accounting Standard (AS) 20 ‘EPS’

` 14.46 per share (standalone)
` 17.44 per share (consolidated)

20
used during the year to estimate the fair values of options, 
including the following weighted-average information:

The fair value of the options granted has been calculated using 

assumptions made in this regard are as follows:

i) Risk-free interest rate 5.34 per cent

ii) Expected life 3.64years

iii) Expected volatility 34.73 per cent

iv) Expected dividends NIL

v) The price of the underlying share in the market at the 
time of option grant

` 977.30
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2022 2022 2022
March 31, 2022

Akhil Chandra, Business Head-ASEAN                 2,529                    5,001                    5,319          12,849 

Venkateswara Yadlapalli, Head-R&D                     607                    1,200                    1,277            3,084 

Omar Momin, Head-M&A                 1,012                    2,000                    2,128            5,140 

Rahul Gama, Head - Human Resources                 1,700                    3,361                    3,574            8,635 

Robert Menzies, Head-Category & Innovation                 1,265                    2,500                    2,659            6,424 

                    607                    1,200                    1,277            3,084 

Sudhir Sitapati*- Managing Director & CEO                        -                             -                 499,826       499,826 

*Option granted was more than 5 per cent of the options granted in 1 year

The above disclosures can also be accessed through the Company website— -reports

ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 

9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members, 

Godrej Consumer Products Limited

We have conducted the secretarial 

audit of the compliance of 

applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate 

practices by Godrej Consumer 

Products Limited (hereinafter called 

the ‘Company’). The Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner 

that provided us a reasonable 

basis for evaluating the corporate 

expressing our opinion thereon.

Company’s books, papers, minute 

other records maintained by the 

company as well as the information 

provided by the Company, its 

representatives during the conduct 

of secretarial audit, we hereby report 

that in our opinion, the Company 

has, during the audit period covering 

31, 2022 complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and 

also that the Company has proper 

Board processes and compliance 

mechanism in place to the extent, in 

the manner reported and subject to 

the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, 

papers, minute books, forms and 

maintained by company for the 

2022 according to the provisions of: 

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 

(the Act) and the rules made 

thereunder; 

(ii)  The Securities Contracts 

(Regulation) Act, 1956 and the 

rules made thereunder; 

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and 

the Regulations and Bye-laws 

framed thereunder; 

(iv)  Foreign Exchange 

Management Act, 1999 and 

the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, 

Overseas Direct Investment 

and External Commercial 

Borrowings; 

(v)  The following Regulations and 

Guidelines prescribed under 

the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 

Act’):- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Substantial 

Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Issue of Capital 
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and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Share based 

Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Issue and 

Listing of Non-Convertible  

Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Registrars to 

an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act 

and dealing with clients; Not 

applicable

(g) The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Delisting of 

Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009; (Not applicable) and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Buyback of 

Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

(Not applicable)

We have also examined compliance 

with the applicable clauses of the 

following: 

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued 

by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India.

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) 

Agreements entered into by 

the Company with the BSE 

Limited and The National 

Stock Exchange of India 

Limited - Except for Prior 

approval for certain related 

party transactions with 2 

listed group companies were 

not  obtained, however, the 

committee  in subsequent 

meeting. As per the 

management representation, 

the transactions were routine 

business transactions in an 

ordinary course and at arms 

length and are not material 

in relation to the turnover or 

Company.

During the period under review 

the Company has complied with 

the provisions of the Acts, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 

etc. mentioned above except signing 

of register of contracts.

The other laws, as informed and 

applicable to the Company based on 

a. Insecticide Act, 1968 and rules 

made thereunder.

b. Legal Metrology Act and rules 

made thereunder.

c. Drugs & Cosmetics Act, 1940.

We report that, having regard to 

the compliance system prevailing in 

the Company and on examination of 

the relevant documents and records 

in pursuance thereof on test check 

basis, the Company has complied 

with the above laws applicable 

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the 

Company is duly constituted with 

a proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors 

and Independent Directors. The 

changes in the composition of the 

Board of Directors that took place 

during the period under review were 

carried out in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all 

directors to schedule the Board 

Meetings; the agenda and related 

detailed notes on agenda were 

sent at least seven days in advance. 

Further, since all the Board and 

committee meetings were held 

virtually, attendance for all the 

meetings were recorded in the 

minutes itself as physical signatures 

could not be obtained. Also, signed 

minutes could not be circulated 

to the Board members as Board 

has signed the minutes at a future 

date. Circular resolutions passed by 

before the next committee meeting, 

but presented before the Board 

on quarterly basis. Furthermore, a 

system for seeking and obtaining 

on the agenda items before the 

meeting exists for meaningful 

participation at the meeting. 

All the decisions were passed by 

majority in the meetings of the 

Board and there were no dissenting 

views from the Board members.

We further report that there are 

adequate systems and processes 

in the Company, commensurate 

with the size and operations of the 

Company, to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the 

audit period the company has:
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1. Issued and listed Commercial 

papers with National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited

2. Issued shares on exercise of 

options under the Employee 

Stock Grant Scheme.

3. Appointed Mr. Sudhir Sitapati 

as Managing Director & CEO.

For A. N. Ramani & Co. 
Company Secretaries

Unique Code - P2003MH000900

Bhavana Shewakramani 
Partner 

FCS - 8636, COP – 9577 

Place : Thane
Date : 19th May, 2022

Note: This report is to be read with 

our letter of even date which is 

annexed as Annexure A and forms 

an integral part of this report.

The Members, 

Godrej Consumer Products Limited

Our report of even date is to be 

read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Statutory 

and other records are 

the responsibility of the 

management of the company. 

Our responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these records 

based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit 

practices and processes as 

were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurances about 

the correctness of the contents 

was done on test basis to 

ensure that correct facts 

believe that the processes and 

practices, we followed provide 

a reasonable basis for our 

opinion.

the correctness and 

records and books of Accounts 

of the company. We have 

relied on the report of the 

Statutory Auditor in respect of 

the same as per the guidance 

of the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India.

4. In view of work from home 

policy continued by the 

organisation, we have 

conducted our audit on the 

provided by company through 

mode.

5. Wherever required, we have 

obtained the management 

representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of 

events etc.

6. The Company is following a 

system of obtaining reports 

from various departments 

to ensure compliance with 

applicable laws. The company 

is following an electronic 

compliance management 

system for compliance 

management to ensure 

compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines.

7. The compliance of the 

provisions of Corporate and 

other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and standards 

is the responsibility of the 

management. Our examination 

of procedures on test basis.

8. The Secretarial Audit Report 

is neither an assurance as 

to the future viability of the 

effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted 

the affairs of the company.

For A. N. Ramani & Co. 
Company Secretaries

Unique Code - P2003MH000900

Bhavana Shewakramani 
Partner 

FCS - 8636, COP – 9577  

Place : Thane
Date : 19th May, 2022
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Governance

The Members, 

Godrej Consumer Products Limited

We have examined the compliance 

of conditions of corporate 

governance by Godrej Consumer 

Products Limited (‘the company’) 

for the year ended on March 31st 

2022, as stipulated in Regulation 

17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of 

regulation 46(2) and para C, D and 

E of Schedule V of the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(‘Listing Regulations’)

The Compliance of conditions 

of Corporate Governance is the 

responsibility of the Company’s 

Management including the 

preparation and maintenance of all 

relevant supporting records and 

documents.

Our examination was limited to 

procedures and implementation 

thereof, adopted by the company 

for ensuring compliance with 

the conditions of Corporate 

Governance. It is neither an audit 

nor an expression of opinion on the 

In our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to 

the explanations given to us and 

the representations made by the 

Directors and the Management, 

we certify that the Company has 

complied with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance as stipulated 

in above mentioned Listing 

Regulations as applicable during the 

year ended March 31, 2022.

We further state that such 

compliance is neither an assurance 

as to the future viability of the 

effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the 

affairs of the company.

the purpose of complying with the 

aforesaid Regulations and may not 

be suitable any other purpose.

For A. N. Ramani & Co. 

Company Secretaries 

Bhavana Shewakramani 

Partner 

FCS -8636, COP –9577 

Place : Thane 

Date : 19th May, 2022
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Governance

Corporate governance refers to the 

framework of rules and practices 

through which the Board of Directors 

ensures accountability, fairness, 

and transparency in a company’s 

relationship with all its stakeholders.

The Company is a part of the 125-

year young Godrej Group, which has 

established a reputation for honesty, 

integrity, and sound governance. Its 

philosophy on corporate governance 

envisages attaining the highest levels 

of transparency, accountability, and 

equity in all facets of its operations 

and interactions – whether it is with 

shareholders, employees, lenders, 

or the government. The Company is 

committed to achieve and maintain 

the highest standards of corporate 

governance. It believes that all its 

actions must serve the underlying 

goal of enhancing the overall 

stakeholder value over a sustained 

period.

 Godrej Consumer Products 

Limited’s (GCPL) corporate 

governance practices are 

shaped by its Board of 

Directors. The Board is 

committed to protect the 

long-term interests of all our 

stakeholders, and considering 

this, it provides objective 

and prudent guidance to the 

management. Information 

related to the procedures, 

composition, committees, and 

several other factors of the 

Board is provided below.

  GCPL currently has 

a 12-member Board, 

with 6 Independent 

Directors who are 

eminent professionals 

information systems, 

marketing, and corporate 

strategy. None of the 

Independent Directors 

have had any material 

association with the 

Godrej Group in the past. 

The Board of Directors 

Independent Directors 

in Listing Regulations 

and are independent 

of management. In line 

with the accepted best 

practices, to strengthen 

the focus and quality of 

discussion at the Board, 

GCPL’s Board has Ms. 

Ireena Vittal as the lead 

Independent Director.

  The Board meets at 

least once in a quarter 

to review the Company’s 

quarterly performance 

The Board meetings 

are governed with a 

structured agenda. The 

Board periodically reviews 

compliance reports with 

respect to laws and 

regulations applicable to 

the Company.

  Before the 

commencement of 

the Audit Committee 

meeting, the 

Independent Directors 

are given an opportunity 

to have a discussion 

with Statutory Auditors 

without the presence 

of the management 

team. For all major 

items, comprehensive 

background information 

is provided to the Board 

members to enable them 

to take an informed 

decision.

  Once a year, the Board 

members participate in 

a strategy meeting, in 

which they also interact 

with the management 

team of the Company. 

The Independent 

Report on  
Corporate Governance
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Directors also have 

a meeting among 

themselves, after which 

they provide their insights 

to the entire Board and 

the management team.

  Familiarisation 

programmes for the 

Independent Directors 

covered topics such as 

the Annual Operating 

2021-22, performance 

The details of the same 

are available on the 

website of the Company 

and can be accessed 

through the following 

link[1]

  At GCPL, we recognise 

the importance of having 

a Board comprising of 

directors who have a 

range of experiences, 

capabilities, and diverse 

viewpoints. This helps 

us create an effective 

and well-rounded board. 

The capabilities and 

experiences sought in 

our Directors are outlined 

here:

 

Is or has been the 

Chief Executive 

Chief Operating 

held any other 

leadership position 

in an organisation, 

experience in 

strategy or business 

management. Brings 

the ability to identify 

and assess strategic 

opportunities 

and threats in the 

context of the 

business.

– 

Has expertise 

with respect to 

the sector the 

organisation 

operates in. Has an 

understanding of 

the ‘big picture’ in 

the given industry 

and recognises the 

development of 

industry segments, 

trends, emerging 

issues, and 

opportunities.

– 

Has expertise 

with respect to 

the geography 

the organisation 

operates in. 

macroeconomic 

environment, 

nuances of the 

business, consumers 

and trade in the 

geography. Has 

the knowledge of 

the regulations 

and legislations of 

business operates 

in.

 – 

Has expertise 

with respect to 

technologies such 

of research and 

development and 

manufacturing. Has 

experience and 

adds perspective 

on the future-ready 

skills required by the 

organisation such as 

e-commerce, digital, 

and sustainability.

– 

Has experience in 

human resource 

management such 

that they bring 

in a considered 

approach to 

the effective 

management 

of people in an 

organisation.

Governance, 

 –  

Has an 

understanding 

of the law and 

application 

of corporate 

governance 

[1] https://godrejcp.com/investors/stock
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principles in 

a commercial 

enterprise of 

a similar scale. 

Capability to 

provide inputs for 

planning, assess 

and oversee 

budgets for the 

resources. Ability 

to identify key risks 

for the business in a 

wide range of areas 

including legal and 

regulatory.

Provides diverse 

views to the Board 

that is valuable 

for managing 

our customers, 

consumers, 

employees, key 

stakeholders, and 

shareholders.

  

  The Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee 

evaluates the candidature 

of a new director in 

line with the Board 

Diversity Policy and the 

aforementioned skill 

sets and makes suitable 

recommendation to the 

The appointment of all 

Directors is also subject 

to shareholders’ approval.

Age Gender

on March 31, 
2022

and 
Governance, 

Finance, 

Ms. Nisaba Godrej 44 May 2011 F CSR, RMC, 
SC

Mr. Jamshyd Godrej 73 Mar 2001 M  -
Mr. Nadir B. Godrej 70 Nov 2000 M CSR, RMC, 

SC
Ms. Tanya Dubash 53 May 2011 F CSR, SRC, SC
Mr. Pirojsha Godrej 41 Apr 2017 M AC, SRC
Mr. Sudhir Sitapati 46 Oct 2021 M CSR, RMC, 

SC 
Mr. Narendra 
Ambwani

73 May 2011 M AC, NRC, 
CSR, SRC, SC

Mr. Sumeet Narang 46 Apr 2019 M AC, NRC
Mr. Omkar Goswami 65 Jun 2008 M AC, RMC
Ms. Ireena Vittal 53 Apr 2013 F AC, NRC
Ms. Ndidi Nwuneli   47 Apr 2017 F AC, SC
Ms. Pippa Armerding   53 Jan 2018 F AC, NRC

CSR-Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; NRC-Nomination & Remuneration Committee; RMC-Risk 
Management Committee; SRC- Stakeholders Relationship Committee; AC- Audit Committee; SC- Sustainability 
Committee

with effect from close of business hours of August 31, 2021. Apart from this, there were no changes in 

 

  The Board composition is as follows:

as on March 31, 2022

 Executive Chairperson 1
 Managing Director 1
 Non-Executive Promoter Directors 4
 Subtotal 6

6
12
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Original 
 

Held

Nisaba 
Godrej

May 02, 2011 Sister of Tanya Dubash 
and Pirojsha Godrej Executive 

Chairperson

6  
(5)

0 0 3,70,087#

Jamshyd 
Godrej

March 01, 
2001

None
Non- 
Executive

5 
(4)

0 0 Nil#

Nadir 
Godrej

November 
29, 2000

None
Non-
Executive 

8 
(5)

2 1 63#

Tanya 
Dubash

May 02, 2011 Sister of Nisaba Godrej 
and Pirojsha Godrej Non- 

Executive 

8 
(5)

2 0 66#

Pirojsha 
Godrej

April 01, 2017 Brother of Tanya Dubash 
and Nisaba Godrej

 
Non- 
Executive

6 
(3)

4 1 3,70,129#

Sudhir 
Sitapati

October 18, 
2021

None Managing 
Director & 
CEO

1 
(1)

0 0 Nil

Narendra 
Ambwani

May 02, 2011 None Non-

Independent

4 
(4)

7 1 3,000

Pippa 
Armerding

January 30, 
2018

None Non-

Independent

1 
(1)

1 0 Nil

Sumeet 
Narang

April 01, 2019 None Non- 

Independent

2 
(2)

1 1 Nil

Omkar 
Goswami

June 18, 2008 None Non-

Independent

2 
(2)

3 0 Nil

Ndidi 
Nwuneli

April 01, 2017 None Non-

Independent

1 
(1)

1 0 Nil

Ireena 
Vittal

April 30, 2013 None Non-

Independent

3 
(3)

3 0 Nil

family trusts.

  *Does not include directorships in private companies, Section 8 companies, and foreign companies. Figures 

in brackets denote directorships in listed companies.

other than public limited companies registered in India.
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31, 2022

Nisaba Godrej 1. Godrej Agrovet Limited Director

2. VIP Industries Limited Independent Director

3. Mahindra and Mahindra Limited Independent Director

4. Bharti Airtel Limited Independent Director

Jamshyd Godrej 1. Godrej Industries Limited Director

2. Godrej Agrovet Limited Director

3. Godrej Properties Limited Director

Nadir Godrej 1. Godrej Industries Limited Chairman & Managing Director

2. Astec Lifesciences Limited Chairman

3. Godrej Agrovet Limited Chairman

4. Godrej Properties Limited Director

Tanya Dubash 1. Godrej Industries Limited Director

2. Godrej Agrovet Limited Director

3. Britannia Industries Ltd Independent Director

4. Escorts Limited Independent Director

Pirojsha Godrej 1. Godrej Agrovet Limited Director

2. Godrej Properties Limited Chairman

Sudhir Sitapati NIL -

Narendra Ambwani 1. Parag Milk Foods Limited Independent Director

2. Agro Tech Foods Limited Independent Director

3. RPG Life Sciences Limited Independent Director

Pippa Tubman Armerding NIL -

Sumeet Narang 1. Sapphire Foods India Limited Director

Ndidi Nwuneli NIL -

Omkar Goswami 1. Ambuja Cements Limited Independent Director

Ireena Vittal 1. Housing Development Finance Corporation 

Limited

Independent Director

2. Wipro Limited Independent Director

Board
and 

AGM 

4, 2021

Number of Meetings held 4 4 3 2 1 2 2 3 1

Attendance of Directors

Adi Godrej* 2 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA Yes

Jamshyd Godrej 3 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA Yes

Nadir Godrej 4 NA NA 2 NA 2            2            NA Yes

Tanya Dubash 3 NA NA 1 0 NA 2 NA Yes

Nisaba Godrej 4 NA NA 2 NA 2 2 NA Yes

Pirojsha Godrej 4 2 NA NA 1 NA NA NA Yes

Narendra Ambwani 4 3 2 2 1 NA 2 3 Yes
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Board
and 

AGM 

4, 2021

Pippa Armerding 4 3 3 NA NA NA NA 3 Yes

Sumeet Narang 4 4 3 NA NA NA NA 3 Yes

Omkar Goswami 4 4 NA NA NA 2 NA 3 Yes

Aman Mehta* 2 2 2 NA NA NA NA 1 Yes

Ndidi Nwuneli 4 4 NA NA NA NA 2 3 Yes

Ireena Vittal 4 4 3 NA NA NA NA 3 Yes

Sudhir Sitapati# 2 2 NA 1 NA 1 1 NA -

 *Mr. Adi Godrej ceased to be Director with effect from September 30, 2021 and Mr. Aman Mehta ceased to be 

Independent Director with effect from August 31, 2021.

 #Mr. Sudhir Sitapati was appointed as Managing Director and CEO with effect from October 18, 2021. He 

became member of Risk Management Committee and CSR Committee with effect from October 18, 2021.

 

Committee meeting.

2022.

11, 2021.
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liable to be determined for 

retirement by rotation, and 

out of these, one-third, i.e. 

two Directors, shall retire at 

the Annual General Meeting. 

Thus, Mr. Jamshyd Godrej and 

Ms. Tanya Dubash will retire 

at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting of the Company 

and, being eligible, will be 

considered for reappointment 

as per the provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013, Listing 

Regulations and Articles of 

Association of the Company. 

Their brief resume is annexed 

to the notice of the Annual 

General Meeting.

 The Company has constituted 

an Audit Committee in 

accordance with Section 

177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 

18 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee formed in 

accordance with Regulation 20 

of the Listing Regulations and 

Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 inter alia looks 

into investor grievances. The 

Company has also formed a 

Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee in accordance with 

Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 

of the Listing Regulations, 

which looks after the 

appointment, remuneration, 

and performance evaluation 

of Directors. The Company 

also has a Risk Management 

Committee in accordance with 

Regulation 21 of the Listing 

Regulations & CSR Committee 

in compliance with Section 135 

of the Companies Act 2013.

         GCPL has also formed a 

new Committee called 

‘Sustainability Committee’ 

with effect from April 

1, 2021 in order to 

strengthen oversight and 

governance of Sustainability 

risks, opportunities and 

progress against goals. The 

Sustainability Committee 

consist of Ms. Nisaba Godrej, 

Mr. Sudhir Sitapati, Ms. Tanya 

Dubash, Mr. Nadir Godrej, Mr. 

Narendra Ambwani and Ms. 

Ndidi Nwuneli as Members. 

The Committee will meet at 

least twice in a year. 

Nisaba Godrej Promoter and Executive 
Chairperson

None None None Member Member Chairperson

Jamshyd Godrej Promoter and Non-Executive None None None None None None

Nadir Godrej Promoter and Non-Executive None None None Member Chairman Member

Tanya Dubash Promoter and Non-Executive None None Member None Member Member

Pirojsha Godrej Promoter and Non-Executive Member None Chairman None None None

Sudhir Sitapati Managing Director and CEO None None None Member* Member* Member*

Narendra Ambwani Independent Member Chairman Member None Member Member

Pippa Armerding Independent Member Member None None None None

Sumeet Narang Independent Chairman# Member None None None None

Omkar Goswami Independent Member None None Chairman None None

Ndidi Nwuneli Independent Member None None None None Member

Ireena Vittal Independent Member Member None None None None

Total Strength of the 
Committee

7 4 3 5 5 6

Number of 
Independent Directors 
in the Committee

6 4 1 1 1 2
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Number of Non-
Independent Directors 
in the Committee

1 - 2 3 4 4

Members of Senior 
Management in the 
Committee

- - - 1 - -

*Mr. Sudhir Sitapati became member of Risk Management Committee, CSR and Sustainability Committee with effect 

from October 18, 2021.

#Mr. Sumeet Narang became chairman of Audit Committee with effect from September 1, 2021.

responsible for redressing investor grievances.

 The terms of reference for the 

Audit Committee includes the 

177 of the Companies Act, 

2013 as well as Part C of 

Schedule II of the Listing 

Regulations such as:

 Financial Statements

reporting process and 

information to ensure that 

credible.

management, the annual 

auditor’s report thereon 

before submission to the 

Board for approval, with 

particular reference to:

  (a) Matters required 

to be included 

in the Director’s 

responsibility 

statement to be 

included in the 

Board’s report in 

terms of clause (c) 

of subsection (3) of 

Section 134 of the 

Companies Act, 

2013.

  (b) Changes, if any, in 

accounting policies 

and practices and 

reasons for the 

same.

  (c) Major accounting 

entries involving 

estimates based 

on the exercise of 

judgment by the 

management.

  
adjustments made 

statements arising 
out of audit 

  (e) Compliance with 
listing and other 
legal requirements 

statements.

  (f) Disclosure of 
any related party 
transactions.

in the draft audit 
report.

management, the 

statements before 
submission to the Board 
for approval.

orate 

loans and investments.

management, the 

application of funds 

raised through an issue, 

such as public, rights, 

or preferential issues; 

the statement of funds 



263

utilised for purposes 

other than those stated 

the report submitted by 

the agency monitoring 

the utilisation of proceeds 

of a public or rights issue 

and making appropriate 

recommendations to the 

Board to initiate steps in 

this matter.

management discussion 

condition and results of 

operations.

 - quarterly statement of 

deviation(s) including the 

report of the monitoring 

agency, if applicable, 

submitted to stock 

exchange(s) in terms of 

Regulation 32(1) of the 

Listing Regulations.

 - annual statement of funds 

utilised for purposes 

other than those stated 

terms of Regulation 32(7) 

of the Listing Regulations.

management, the 

performance of statutory 

and internal auditors, and 

adequacy of the internal 

control systems.

management systems.

any internal investigations 

by the internal auditors 

into matters where there 

is suspected fraud or 

irregularity, or a failure of 

internal control systems 

of a material nature, and 

reporting the matter to 

the Board.

 External and Internal Audit

for appointment, 

remuneration, and 

terms of appointment of 

auditors of the Company.

statutory auditors for any 

other services rendered 

by the statutory auditors.

letters of internal control 

weakness issued by the 

statutory auditors.

appointment, 

removal, and terms of 

remuneration of the chief 

internal auditor.

of the internal audit 

function, if any, 

including the structure 

of the internal audit 

heading the department, 

reporting structure 

coverage, and frequency 

of internal audit.

audit reports relating to 

internal control weakness.

thereon.

auditors before the audit 

commences, about the 

nature and scope of audit 

as well as post-audit 

discussion to ascertain 

any area of concern.

monitoring the auditor’s 

independence and 

performance, and 

effectiveness of the audit 

process.

with the auditors 

about internal control 

systems and the scope 

of audit including the 

observations of the 

auditors and review of 

the quarterly, half yearly, 

statements before 

submission to the Board. 

Overseeing compliance of 

internal control systems.

have access to the Audit 

Committee minutes of 

the subsidiary companies.

statements, in particular 

the investments made by 

the subsidiary companies.
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revision in the Policy for 

determining Material 

Subsidiaries to align it 

with the extant applicable 

provisions.

subsidiary exceeding  

` 100 crore or 10 per cent 

of the asset size of the 

subsidiary, whichever is 

lower, including existing 

loans and advances.

of transactions of the 

Company with related 

parties.

omnibus approval 

of transactions with 

related parties or any 

of transactions of the 

Company with related 

parties including their 

basis.

for granting omnibus 

approval to related party 

transactions.

for omnibus approval of 

related party transactions 

so that that the approval 

is in the interest of the 

Company.

approval for related 

party transactions not 

exceeding ` 1 crore per 

year.

basis, the statement of 

party transactions as 

the Committee and the 

details of related party 

transactions entered into 

by the Company pursuant 

to each of the omnibus 

approval given.

revision in the Policy on 

Material-Related Party 

Transactions and on 

dealing with Related 

Party Transactions to 

align it with the extant 

applicable provisions.

for substantial defaults 

in the payment to the 

depositors, debenture 

holders, shareholders (in 

case of non-payment of 

declared dividends), and 

creditors, if any.

effectiveness of the 

system for monitoring 

compliance with laws 

and regulations and the 

results of management’s 

investigation and follow-

up (including disciplinary 

action) of any instances of 

non- compliance. 

of any examinations by 

regulatory agencies and 

any auditor observations.

communicating the Code 

of Conduct to Company 

personnel and for 

monitoring compliance 

therewith.

with respect to the 

provisions of Insider 

Trading Regulations at 

year and verifying that 

the systems for internal 

control for compliance 

with these regulations are 

adequate and operating 

effectively.

updates from the 

management regarding 

compliance matters.

and compliances as 

regards the Company’s 

Whistle Blower Policy.

appointment of the 

after assessing the 

and background of the 

candidate.

or assets of the 

Company, wherever it is 

necessary by appointing 
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a Registered Valuer in 

terms of Section 247 of 

the Companies Act, 2013.

special investigations as 

needed.

functions and activities 

related to this terms of 

reference as requested by 

the Board of Directors.

functions as required to 

be done by the Audit 

Committee as per 

the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, 

the Listing Regulations, 

and any other laws or 

regulations from time to 

time.

 The terms of reference of the 

Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee are as follows:

criteria for determining 

positive attributes, 

and independence 

of a Director and 

recommendation to 

the Board of Directors 

a policy relating to the 

remuneration of the 

Directors, key managerial 

personnel, and other 

employees.

for the evaluation 

of performance of 

Independent Directors 

and the Board of 

Directors.

diversity of Board of 

Directors.

become Directors and 

who may be appointed 

in senior management 

in accordance with 

the criteria laid down, 

and recommending to 

the Board of Directors 

their appointment and 

removal.

extend or continue the 

term of appointment 

of the Independent 

Director on the basis 

of the report of 

performance evaluation 

of Independent Directors. 

Board, all remuneration, 

in whatever form, payable 

to senior management.

Employee Stock Grant 

Scheme of the Company 

and render all such 

functions required to 

be done under the SEBI 

(Share-Based Employee 

2015.

functions and activities 

related to the terms of 

reference as requested by 

the Board of Directors.

other functions as 

required to be done 

by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee 

as per the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, 

the Listing Regulations, 

and any other laws or 

regulations from time to 

time..

of the security holders of 

the Company, including 

complaints relating to 

of shares, non-receipt 

of Annual Report, and 

non-receipt of declared 

general meetings.

for effective exercise 

of voting rights by 

shareholders.

the service standards 

adopted by the Company 

in respect of various 

services being rendered 

by the Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent.

measures and initiatives 

taken by the Company for 

reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and 
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ensuring timely receipt of 

by the shareholders of 

the Company.

functions and activities 

related to the terms of 

reference as requested by 

the Board of Directors.

other functions as 

required to be done 

by the Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee 

as per the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, 

the Listing Regulations, 

and any other laws or 

regulations from time to 

time..

risk management policy 

which shall include:

 (a) A framework for 

and external risks 

the listed entity, in 

particular including 

sectoral, sustainability 

(particularly, ESG related 

risks), information, 

cyber security risks or 

any other risk as may 

be determined by the 

Committee. 

 (b) Measures for risk 

mitigation including 

systems and processes 

for internal control of 

 (c) Business continuity plan

appropriate 

methodology, processes 

and systems are in place 

to monitor and evaluate 

risks associated with the 

business of the Company;

implementation of the 

risk management policy, 

including evaluating 

the adequacy of risk 

management systems;

risk management policy, 

at least once in two years, 

including by considering 

the changing industry 

dynamics and evolving 

complexity;

functions and activities 

related to this terms of 

reference as requested 

by the Board of Directors 

or any of its Committees 

or the Company 

management.

functions as required 

to be done by the Risk 

Management Committee 

as per the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, 

the Listing Regulations 

and any other laws or 

regulations from time to 

time.

recommend to the 

Board a Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy that 

shall indicate the activities 

to be undertaken by the 

in Schedule VII of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

of expenditure to be 

incurred on the activities 

referred above.

Social Responsibility 

Policy of the Company 

from time to time;

 any other 
functions and activities 
related to the terms of 
reference as requested by 
the Board of Directors.

functions as required 
to be done by the 
Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee 
as per the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Listing Regulations, 
and any other laws or 
regulations from time to 
time.

Sustainability ambition, 
strategy and long-term 
thinking.

Sustainability goals across 
the company.
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risks for GCPL, set 
standards for monitoring, 
and sign off mitigation 
measures.

term Sustainability 
opportunities for GCPL 
and align Board of 
Directors as required

Formulate and 

recommend to the 

Board of Directors, key 

Sustainability policies, as 

required.

functions and activities 

related to these terms of 

reference as requested by 

the Board of Directors.

 The Remuneration Policy of the 
Company has been provided in 
the Board’s Report section of 
the Annual Report as  

.

Details of the remuneration to Directors are as follows:

Amount (`) crore

Allowances 

Whole-Time Directors

Adi Godrej - - 9.38 0.10 0.87 10.35

Nisaba Godrej - - 3.99 0.18 0.70 4.88

Sudhir Sitapati - - 2.33 0.11 0.21 2.66

- - 15.70 0.39 1.78 17.89

Non-Executive Directors

Jamshyd Godrej 0.03 0.20 - - - 0.23

Nadir Godrej 0.05 0.20 - - - 0.25

Tanya Dubash 0.03 0.20 - - - 0.23

Pirojsha Godrej 0.05 0.20 - - - 0.25

Narendra Ambwani 0.06 0.35 - - - 0.41

Pippa Armerding 0.05 0.35 - - - 0.40

Omkar Goswami 0.05 0.35 - - - 0.40

Ndidi Nwuneli 0.05 0.35 - - - 0.40

Aman Mehta 0.05 0.15 - - - 0.20

Sumeet Narang 0.00 0.00 - - - 0.00

Ireena Vittal 0.05 0.35 - - - 0.40

0.47 2.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.17

0.47 2.70 15.70 0.39 1.78 21.06
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es:

perquisites for employer’s provident fund contribution and medical insurance premium paid by the Company till 
September 30, 2021.

hospitalisation expenses, perquisites for employer’s provident fund contribution.

includes perquisites for car, perquisites for employer’s provident fund contribution.

of capital employed, components of revenue growth and innovation rate. PLVR payable to Ms. Nisaba Godrej 

Report. Mr. Adi Godrej and Ms. Nisaba Godrej had waived the remuneration including PLVR for FY 2020-21 and 

proportion in which the amount is distributed among the Non-Executive Directors. The Board has authorised a 
base commission of ` 20 lakhs per annum to each Non-Executive Director. All the Independent Directors are paid 
an additional commission linked to their attendance in various Committee meetings. In addition, all the  
Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board or Committees thereof.

originally appointed in terms of the erstwhile Listing Agreement (refer to the table containing other relevant 
details of the Directors under Para 1 of Board of Directors for the original date of appointment). After the 

f Companies Act, 2013, these Independent Directors have been appointed for a period of 5 years.

No.
Received 

1. Non-receipt of dividend Nil 55 55 0 0

2.
Non-receipt of shares lodged 

Nil 20 20 0 0

3.
Non-receipt of the Annual 

Report
Nil 0 0 0 0

4. Others Nil 41 41 0 0

Total Nil 116 116 0 0
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  Details of the last three Annual General Meetings of GCPL are as follows:

August 1, 2019 1.30 p.m. Godrej One, 1st Floor Auditorium, Pirojshanagar, 

Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli (East), 

Mumbai-400079

Reappointment of Mr. Narendra 

Ambwani, Mr. Aman Mehta, Dr. Omkar 

Goswami, and Ms. Ireena Vittal as 

Independent Directors for a second 

term of 5 years.

August 4, 2020 04:00 p.m. Video conferencing NIL

August 4, 2021 04:00 p.m. Video conferencing NIL

  No postal ballot was conducted during the FY 2021-2022.

 GCPL sends quarterly 

newsletters to the registered 

email addresses of the 

investors. Moreover, all vital 

information related to the 

Company and its performance, 

including quarterly results, 

press releases, and 

corporate presentations, and 

the information required by 

the Listing Regulations are 

posted on the Company’s 

website– www.godrejcp.

com. The quarterly, half 

yearly, and annual results of 

the Company’s performance 

are generally published in 

Business Line as well as in the 

Marathi newspaper Lokmat. 

Members of the management 

once in a quarter, and their 

transcripts are posted on the 

website. With effect from April 

1, 2022, the transcripts and 

link for audio recordings are 

The same is also available 

on the investors page of 

the Company’s website. The 

analysts and institutional 

investors are shared with the 

Stock Exchanges and uploaded 

on the Company’s website. 

The same may be accessed 

through the link given below[2]. 

system of the Bombay Stock 

Exchange (BSE) Limited and 

National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited (NSE). The same 

are also available on  

the websites of the BSE 

Limited and NSE, namely 

 

and www.nseindia.com, 

respectively.

 Shareholders who are holding 

shares in a physical form have 

to comply with SEBI Circular 

dated November 3, 2021. 

The Company has already 

sent requisite KYC forms to 

shareholders via ordinary 

posts to update their details 

as required by RTA. If the 

shareholders don’t submit 

her folio will get freezed from 

April 1, 2023. The shareholder 

shall not be eligible to lodge 

grievance or avail service 

against the folio till such time 

the documents are submitted. 

The circular can be accessed 

through link given below[3] The 

KYC forms can be downloaded 

through the link below[4].

[2] 

[3] 

 

[4]  
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Date and Time: Wednesday, August 3, 2022, 5.45 p.m. (IST)

Venue:

 B. Financial Calendar

Financial Year: April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022

  The Company’s shares are listed and traded on the following stock exchanges:

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 

Mumbai-400001

Equity 532424

INE102D01028
The National Stock Exchange of India Limited

 Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra 

(East), Mumbai-400051

Equity;

Futures and Options (F&O)

GODREJCP

  The applicable listing fees has been paid to the stock exchanges before the due date. 

 The monthly high and low prices of GCPL at the BSE Limited and the NSE in Equity series for the year ended 

March 31, 2022, are as follows:

High Price High Price

Apr-21 747.85 687.75 748.00 687.50

May-21 894.90 685.00 892.00 687.60

Jun-21 941.00 836.45 942.35 836.45

Jul-21 1009.95 869.35 1010.00 869.00

Aug-21 1100.00 957.80 1100.00 957.05

Sep-21 1138.50 1011.40 1138.00 1010.95

Oct-21 1073.00 930.20 1072.20 930.00

Nov-21 985.00 876.75 985.25 877.05

Dec-21 976.00 871.40 976.00 871.20

Jan-22 975.40 849.40 976.00 848.75

Feb-22 929.70 742.45 929.50 742.05

Mar-22 765.30 660.20 764.90 660.05

 

High and low are in rupees per traded share
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        C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai – 400 083 

 Tel. No.: 022-49186270 

 Email ID: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

 Website: 

 Note: As per the announcement made by the Company on stock exchanges on October 1, 2021. The Company 

has changed its RTA from Computech Sharecap Limited to Link Intime India Pvt Ltd. with effect from October 1, 

2021. All the future correspondence regarding the securities of the Company may be addressed to Link Intime 

India Pvt. Ltd.

 In terms of amendments 

to Regulation 40 of Listing 

Regulations w.e.f. 1st April, 

2019, transfer of securities 

in physical form has been 

stopped by SEBI.

 SEBI has given the following 

 1. The above decision does 

not prohibit the investor 

from holding the shares 

in physical form; investor 

has the option of holding 

shares in physical form 

even after April 01, 2019.

 2. Any investor who is 

desirous of transferring 

shares (which are held 

in physical form) after 

April 01, 2019 can do so 

only after the shares are 

dematerialized.

  The above decision by 

SEBI is not applicable 

for demat of shares, 

transmission (i.e. 

transfer of title of 

shares by way of 

and transposition 

(i.e. re-arrangement 

the order of name of 

shareholders) cases. 
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 Distribution of shareholding by size class as on March 31, 2022

  

%

 

shares held

1-500 2,31,291 91.10 1,54,87,659 1.51

501-1,000 11,766 4.63 82,06,736 0.80

1,001-2,000 6,332 2.49 91,47,939 0.89

2,001-3,000 1,624 0.64 39,80,942 0.39

3,001-4,000 736 0.29 25,88,244 0.25

4,001-5,000 372 0.15 16,64,133 0.16

5,001-10,000 703 0.28 48,07,828 0.47

10,001 and above 1072 0.42 97,66,97,598 95.51

2,53,896 100.00% 1,02,25,81,079 100.00%

 Distribution of shareholding by ownership as on March 31, 2022:

Category  
Holding

Promoters 64,64,88,267 63.22%

Mutual Funds 3,77,06,859 3.69%

10,21,083 0.10%

Insurance Companies 2,06,84,432 2.02%

Foreign Portfolio Investors 24,70,28,926 24.16%

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)          25,10,905                0.25%

1,32,95,160 1.30%

Indian Public 4,99,04,360 4.88%

39,41,087 0.39%

1,02,25,81,079 100.00%

 Shares held (Nos.)

63.22%  Promoters

  NRI/OCB’s  0.39%

Indian Public  4.88%

Private Corporate 
Bodies/trusts  1.30%

Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF)  0.25%

Foreign Portfolio Investors  24.16%

3.69%   Mutual Funds

0.10%   Banks/Financial Institutions
2.02%   Insurance Companies
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 Breakup of physical and dematerialised shares as on March 31, 2022:

Physical 77,40,306 0.76 16,214 6.39

Demat 1,01,48,40,773 99.24 2,37,682 93.61

1,02,25,81,079 100.00 253,896 100.00

  Shares held in the demateralised mode have more liquidity than those held in the physical mode. Therefore, the 

Company urges shareholders holding shares in the physical form to convert their shareholdings to the demat mode.

 GCPL does not have any 

instruments.

 GCPL is exposed to commodity 

risks mainly due to imported 

palm oil derivatives. We enter 

overseas suppliers in order to 

hedge price volatility.

 Regarding commodities that 

are imported at a contracted 

exchange currency risk and 

the mitigation of the same 

is managed by the FOREX 

Committee of the Company. 

The Committee periodically 

meets and reviews the overall 

foreign exchange currency 

exposure and enters into 

forward contracts to hedge the 

currency risk. Details of hedged 

and unhedged positions for 

foreign currency exposures 

are available in the Notes to 

the Financial Statement of the 

Annual Report.

 

` 

 

Exchange Exchange

Palm Oil Derivatives 1465.95 crore 1.48 Lac MT Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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 The Company’s plants are located in the following states:

Jammu & Kashmir
SICOP Industrial Estate-Kathua, Hatli Moth-Kathua, Industrial Area Phase III Lane 

2, Bari Brahmana- Distt Sambha

Himachal Pradesh Thana-Baddi, Katha-Baddi

Sikkim Mamring, South Sikkim

Assam
Kalapahar-Guwahati, Lalung gaon-lokhra, Brahamputra industrial park-village silla, 

Sarusajai-lokhra

Meghalaya Byrnihat, Rebhoi District

Madhya Pradesh Malanpur Industrial Area, District Bhind

Pondicherry
Kattukuppam-Manpet Post, Nallur Village-Mannadipet Commune, Nedungadu 

Commune-Karaikal, Thirunallar Commune-Karaikal

Tamil Nadu Maraimalai nagar-Chengalpattu District

shares

 Shareholders can contact 

The Secretarial Department, 

Godrej Consumer Products 

Limited, 4th Floor, Godrej One, 

Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express 

Highway, Vikhroli (East), 

Mumbai-400079

Fax No.: 022 25188040; 

Email ID: investor.relations@

godrejcp.com

 Website: www.godrejcp.com 

 CIN: 

L24246MH2000PLC129806

 Investor correspondence 

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd, 

Products Limited, 

C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, 

Vikhroli West,  

Mumbai – 400 083 

Tel. No.: 022-49186270 

Email ID: rnt.helpdesk@

linkintime.co.in 

Website: 

co.in

 During the year, rating 

following existing credit ratings 

of the Company.

ICRA A one plus) for ` 750 

crore Commercial paper 

` 750 crore for 

Commercial paper

 Long-term rating at [ICRA] 

AAA for fund based and non-

fund based facilities for ` 800 

Crore and short-term rating at 

` 800 crore.

P. Consolid

One Folio

 The Company urges 

shareholders holding shares 

of GCPL under different folios 

to consolidate the shares 

under one folio. This would 

substantially reduce paperwork 

and transaction costs and 

the Company. Shareholders 

can do so by writing to the 

registrar with details on folio 

numbers, order of names, 

shares held under each folio, 

and the folio under which 

all shareholdings should be 

need not be sent.

2021-22, there were no 

related party transactions; 

that is, transactions 

of the Company of 

material nature with 

bodies including its 

subsidiaries, promoters, 

directors, management, 

and relatives, which may 

with the interests of 

the Company at large. 

Attention of members is 

drawn to disclosures of 
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transactions with related 

parties, as set out in 

Notes to Accounts.

 

  There has not been 

any non- compliance of 

mandatory requirements, 

expected of the 

Company. No penalties or 

strictures were imposed 

on the Company by the 

stock exchanges, SEBI, 

or any statutory authority 

for matters related to 

capital markets during 

the last 3 years.

 

  With a view to establish a 

mechanism for protecting 

employees reporting 

unethical behaviour, 

frauds, or violation of 

the Company’s Code of 

Conduct, the Board of 

Directors have adopted a 

Whistle Blower Policy. No 

person has been denied 

access to the Audit 

Committee.

 

  The Whistle Blower Policy, 

the Policy for determining 

Material Subsidiaries, 

and the Policy on dealing 

with Related Party 

Transactions are available 

on the link given below[5] 

 

 

  There were no funds 

raised through 

preferential allotment 

under Regulation 32 (7A) 

 

  In compliance with the 

Listing Regulations, your 

Company has transferred 

the unclaimed shares into 

a demat account, namely 

Account’. As and when an 

allottee approaches the 

Company, after proper 

credited into the demat 

account of the allottee.

[5] -and-policies 
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Particulars

Suspense Account at the beginning of the year (April 1, 2021)
1,513 864,429

Account during the year 
0 0

Number of shareholders who approached the issuer for transfer of shares from the 
20 12,960

Account during the year and the aggregate shares transferred
20 12,960

Account to the IEPF Account during the year and the aggregate shares transferred
0 0

Suspense Account at the end of the year (March 31, 2022)
1,493 8,51,469

 The Company has received 

secretary in practice stating 

that none of the Directors on 

the Board of the Company 

have been debarred or 

appointed or continuing as 

Directors of the Companies 

by the SEBI, Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, or any such 

other statutory authority. The 

section as Annexure A.

 Details of total fees for all 

the services paid by the 

Company and its subsidiaries, 

on a consolidated basis, to 

the statutory auditor and 

network entity of which the 

statutory auditor is a part are 

as follows:

Amount ` crore

2021-22 2020-21

Audit Fees 6.88 6.75

Tax Fees 0.11 0.20

Others 0.49 0.45

Total 7.48 7.40

2021 2021

Number of Complaints 2 2 0
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 NIL

 The Company has complied 

with the requirements 

27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub 

regulation (2) of Regulation 46 

of the Listing Regulations.

 There have been no instances 

of rejection by the Board for 

any recommendations by the 

Board Committees during this 

 As stipulated in Para E of 

Schedule V of the Listing 

Regulations, the practicing 

regarding the compliance 

of conditions of corporate 

governance is attached to the 

Board’s Report.

 

 I, Sudhir Sitapati, Managing 

Director & CEO of Godrej 

Consumer Products Limited 

pursuant to SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, that

 The Board of Directors 

of GCPL has laid down a 

Code of Conduct for all the 

Board members and senior 

management of the Company. 

The said Code of Conduct 

has also been posted on the 

Investors page of the Company 

website www.godrejcp.com

 All the Board Members and 

senior management personnel 

with the said Code of Conduct 

for the year ended March 31, 

2022.

 

 

 

Mumbai, May 19, 2022
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(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and 

Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015)

To, 

The Members 

Godrej Consumer Products Limited 

4th Floor, Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, 

Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli 

(East), Mumbai-400079

 examined the relevant 

registers, records, forms, returns, 

and disclosures received from the 

Directors of Godrej Consumer 

Products Limited having CIN - 

L24246MH2000PLC129806 and 

Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern 

Express Highway, Vikhroli (East), 

Mumbai-400079 (hereinafter 

referred to as ‘the Company’), 

produced before us (including soft 

copies in some cases due to work 

from home policy continued) by the 

Company for the purpose of issuing 

Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule 

V Para C Subclause 10(i) of the 

Securities Exchange Board of India  

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion, to the best of our 

knowledge, and according to the 

status at the portal www.mca.gov.

in) as considered necessary and 

explanations furnished to us by the 

certify that none of the Directors 

on the Board of the Company as 

ending on March 31, 2022 have been 

appointed or continuing as Directors 

of companies by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, or any such other 

statutory authority.

 

No.

1 Tanya Dubash 00026028 May 2, 2011

2 Nadir Godrej 00066195 November 29, 2000

3 Jamshyd Godrej 00076250 March 1, 2001

4 Pirojsha Godrej 00432983 April 1, 2017

5 Nisaba Godrej 00591503 May 2, 2011

6 Sudhir Sitapati 09197063 October 18, 2021

7 Narendra Ambwani 00236658 May 2, 2011

8 Sumeet Narang 01874599 April 1, 2019

9 Omkar Goswami 00004258 June 18, 2008

10 Ireena Vittal 05195656 April 30, 2013

11 Ndidi Okonkwo Nwuneli 07738574 April 1, 2017

12 Pippa Fametta Tubman Amerding 08054033 January 30, 2018

Ensuring the eligibility for the 

Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of 

the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these based  

neither an assurance as to the future 

viability of the Company nor of the 

the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company.

For A. N. Ramani & Co.,

Company Secretaries

Bhavana Shewakramani

Partner

FCS-8636, COP-9577

Date : May 19, 2022

Place : Thane
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Financial Statements | Standalone

To the Members of 

Godrej Consumer Products Limited

Report on the Audit of the 

Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone 

Basis for Opinion Key Audit Matters

Description of Key Audit Matter 

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition
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Intangible Assets -impairment assessment 

Other Information
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Financial Statements | Standalone

Management’s and Board of 

Directors’ Responsibilities for the 

Standalone Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Standalone Financial 

Statements
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Report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements

and obtained all 

the standalone 

standalone 

and the standalone 
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Financial Statements | Standalone

in its standalone 

to the standalone 
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believe that the 

B S R & Co. LLP

 

Vijay Mathur
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Financial Statements | Standalone

Annexure A to the Independent 

Auditor’s Report - 31 March 2022

us and on the basis 

the lessee and the leases 

have been obtained 
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Particulars
Guarantees

(` in Crores)

sheet date

and based on the audit 
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Financial Statements | Standalone

us and on the basis 
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Financial Statements | Standalone

B S R & Co. LLP

 

Vijay Mathur
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Annexure I

Name of the Statute Nature of dues Amount under 
Dispute  

(` in crores

Amount paid 
under protest  

(` crores)

Period to which 
amount relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

28.28 12.16

10.32 4.73

30.36 12.57
2.54 0.70

0.34 0.13

8.32 3.97

Tax

0.61 0.61
0.85 0.72

4.06 0.04

38.79 0.54

61.89 2.17

6.51 -

6.27 -

Annexure B to the Independent 

Auditors’ report on the standalone 

Consumer Products Limited for the 

year ended 31 March 2022

controls with reference to the 

statements under Clause (i) of 

Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013

Opinion

Management’s Responsibility for 

Internal Financial Controls
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Financial Statements | Standalone

Auditors’ Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial 

controls with Reference to 

Standalone Financial Statements

Inherent Limitations of Internal 

Financial controls with Reference 

to Standalone Financial Statements

B S R & Co. LLP

 

Vijay Mathur
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 `
Note  
No.

 As at  
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

I. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets

 558.21 
 76.62 
 29.84 
 2.48 

 801.27 
 1.69 

 4,409.40 
 25.20 

 0.03 
 23.42 

 349.91 
 77.86 
 45.96 

 Total Non-current assets  6,401.89  5,792.69 

2. Current assets
 790.84 

 766.40 
 336.92 

 35.23 
 309.74 

 0.05 
 38.15 

 203.85 
Total Current assets  2,481.18  1,902.90 

TOTAL ASSETS  8,883.07  7,695.59 
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. EQUITY
 102.26 

 7,748.86 
 Total Equity  7,851.12  6,359.18 

2. LIABILITIES
 Non-current liabilities

 20.42 
 57.43 
 6.93 

 Total Non current liabilities  84.78  109.81 
 Current liabilities 

 -   
 11.03 

 23.24 

 602.06 

 89.34 
 155.46 
 65.08 
 0.96 

 Total Current liabilities  947.17  1,226.60 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  8,883.07  7,695.59 

`

For B S R & Co. LLP

Nisaba Godrej  Sudhir Sitapati 

Vijay Mathur Sameer Shah  Rahul Botadara 
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Financial Statements | Standalone

`

Note 
No.

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Revenue

I  6,951.56 

II  69.18 

III Total Income (I + II)  7,020.74  6,319.07 

IV Expenses

 3,063.93 

 325.54 

 2.98 

 347.52 

 7.87 

 85.61 

 1,483.05 

Total Expenses  5,316.50  4,709.77 

V  1,704.24 1609.30

VI Exceptional Items (net)  (58.21)

VII  1,762.45  1,593.92 

VIII Tax Expense

 306.44 

 (23.14)

Total Tax Expense  283.30 369.58

IX  1,479.15  1,224.34 

X Other Comprehensive Income

A

 1.26 

 (0.44)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  0.82  1.11 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX+X)  1,479.97  1,225.45 

IX Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value ` 1)

`  14.47 

`  14.46 

For B S R & Co. LLP

Nisaba Godrej  Sudhir Sitapati 

Vijay Mathur Sameer Shah  Rahul Botadara 
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 `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 1,762.45  1,593.92 

Adjustment for:

 85.61 

 0.41 

 0.79 

 (13.58)

 0.06 

 11.96 

 (15.38)

 7.87 

 3.36 

 (42.83)

 (10.90)

 (0.62)

 (0.08)

 (36.38)

 1,752.74 

Adjustments for:

 (78.21)

 (86.46)

 0.02 

 37.72 

 (56.84)

 (284.89)

 (11.08)

 (479.74)

 1,273.00 

Adjustment for:

 (311.72)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities ( A )  961.28  1,374.02 

 B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 (161.35)

 4.64 

 (177.14)

 (351.64)

 509.80 

 (65.36)

 (49.98)

 (281.75)

 (502.30)

 78.65 

 28.01 

Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities ( B )  (968.44)  (1,019.10)
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 `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 0.01 

 -   

 (0.14)

 -   

 -   

 (5.89)

 (11.98)

 (2.37)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities ( C )  (20.37)  (355.86)

 NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)  (27.53)  (0.94)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

 62.78 

 (0.02)

 35.23  62.78 

 NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (27.53)  (0.94)

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Opening balance  0.14 

 (0.14)

Closing balance 0.00

Notes:

For B S R & Co. LLP

Nisaba Godrej  Sudhir Sitapati 

Vijay Mathur Sameer Shah  Rahul Botadara 
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(a) Equity share capital `

 Note No.

As at April 1, 2020

As at March 31, 2021  102.25 

As at March 31, 2022  102.26 

(b) Other equity (Refer Note 20) `

Reserves & Surplus  Other  
Comprehensive 

Income

 Total

 Securities 
Premium  

 General 
Reserve 

 Other 
reserves 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Effective 
portion of Cash 
Flow Hedges 

Balance at April 1, 2021  1,418.61  154.05  9.14  4,675.88  (0.75)  6,256.93 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    1,479.97  -    1,479.97 

Balance at March 31, 2022  1,424.93  154.05  14.78  6,155.85  (0.75)  7,748.86 

Reserves & Surplus  Other  
Comprehensive 

Income

 Total

 Securities 
Premium  

 General 
Reserve 

 Other 
reserves 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Effective 
portion of Cash 
Flow Hedges 

Balance at April 1, 2020  1,407.36  154.05  14.30  3,450.43  (0.75)  5,025.39 

 Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    1,225.45  -    1,225.45 

Balance at March 31, 2021  1,418.61  154.05  9.14  4,675.88  (0.75)  6,256.93 

For B S R & Co. LLP

Nisaba Godrej  Sudhir Sitapati 

Vijay Mathur Sameer Shah  Rahul Botadara 
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1. Corporate Information

th

2. Basis of preparation, 

Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation and 

measurement

a) Basis of Preparation

  Current versus non-current 

b) Basis of Measurement

2.2  Key judgements, estimates 

and assumptions
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2.3 Measurement of fair values

a)  Property, Plant and 

Equipment 

 Recognition and measurement
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 Subsequent expenditure

 Depreciation b)  Goodwill and other Intangible 

Assets 

 Goodwill

 Other intangible assets
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 Amortisation

`

c) Borrowing Costs

assets

e) Assets held for sale
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f) Financial Instruments

 (i) Financial assets

  Initial recognition and 

measurement

  Subsequent measurement

   Financial assets at 

amortised cost 

  

The asset is held 
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    Financial assets 

at fair value 

through other 

comprehensive 

income (FVTOCI)

   

a business 

    Financial assets at 

fair value through 

(FVTPL)

   Equity investments
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    Investments in 

Subsidiaries and 

Associates: 

   

is assessed and 

 Derecognition 
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 (ii) Financial liabilities 

   Initial recognition and 

measurement

  Derecognition

   Financial guarantee 

contracts
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instruments

and settle the liabilities 

instruments and hedge 

accounting
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h) Inventories

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents

j)  Provisions, Contingent 

Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets

k) Revenue Recognition

 Sale of goods
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 Royalty & Technical Fees

 Interest income

 Dividend income 

 i)  Short-term Employee 

 ii) Share-based payments
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 iii)  Post-Employment 

   

Plans

  

  Gratuity Fund

  Provident Fund
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 iv)  Other Long Term 

m) Leases

substantive substitution 

 As a Lessee:
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 Lease liability:

 Lessor
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n) Income Tax

 Current Tax

the asset and settle the 

 Deferred Tax

to the extent that it has 
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o) Foreign Currency Transactions

“` p) Government grants 

on a 

q) Dividend 

r) Earnings Per Share

and
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s) Segment Reporting 

t) Business Combination

u)  Recent accounting 

pronouncements which are 

not yet effective
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Capital work-in-Progress ageing schedule

As At March 31, 2022

`

Capital work in progress ageing
Less than  

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than  
3 years

Total

Total  48.79  -    -    -    76.62 

As At March 31, 2021

`

Capital work in progress ageing
Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 
3 years

Total

Total 18.46 - - - 32.96

NOTE :
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Leases in which the company is a Lessee

` `

Leases in which the company is a Lessor:

A] As a lessee:

(a) Right of use assets - Buildings

`

 As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Gross carrying amount

55.32

0.00

 -   

Closing Gross carrying amount 55.32 55.32

Accumulated Depreciation

13.47

12.01

 -   

Closing Accumulated Depreciation 25.48 13.47

Net Carrying Amount 29.84 41.85

(b) Lease liabilities

`

 As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2021

12.61

22.64

0.00

0.23

Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at 31 March 35.48 49.83

`

Lease liabilities (discounted)  As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2021

20.42

11.03

TOTAL 31.45 43.42
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(c)

`

Short-term leases Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

45.89

TOTAL 45.89 43.33

(d) `

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

14.35 

TOTAL 14.35 13.97 

B] As a lessor:

(a) `

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

10.97 10.77

(b) Undiscounted lease payments to be received after `

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

10.86

22.63

0.00

Total undiscounted lease payments 33.49 44.36
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`

Goodwill

Other Intangible assets

Trademarks 
and Brands *

Computer 
Software

Technical 
Knowhow

Product 
registrations

Total Other 
Intangible 

assets

Year ended March 31, 2022

Gross Carrying Amount

Closing Gross Carrying Amount 2.48 791.56 62.69 0.10 0.33 854.68 

Closing Accumulated Amortisation -   0.31 52.88 0.10 0.12 53.41 

Closing Net Carrying Amount 2.48 791.25 9.81 -   0.21 801.27 

Year ended March 31, 2021

Gross Carrying Amount

Closing Gross Carrying Amount 2.48 791.56 57.62 0.10 0.33 849.61 

Accumulated Amortisation

Closing Accumulated Amortisation -   0.30 46.95 0.10 0.05 47.40 

Closing Net Carrying Amount 2.48 791.26 10.67 -   0.28 802.21 

Note :

` `
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As at 
January 31, 2022

As at 
January 31, 2021

5-6%

5%

12%

10.70%

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule

As At March 31, 2022

`

Intangible assets under development ageing
Less than  

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than  
3 years

Total

Total  -    -    -    -    1.69 

As At March 31, 2021

`

Intangible assets under development ageing
Less than  

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than  
3 years

Total

Total -  -    -    -   4.46 

NOTE :
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`

Face 
Value

Numbers  Amounts

 As At   
March 31, 2022

As At 
March 31, 2021

As At   
March 31, 2022

As At 
March 31, 2021

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments

(i) Subsidiary Companies

`

(ii) Associate Company

   
`

 

 4,409.40  3,917.53 

(b)  Investments in Compulsorily Convertible 
Debentures of Associate Company

   
`

  

 TOTAL  4,409.40  3,923.76 

Note:

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 4.52 

 11.95 

 29.02 

 19.62 

 3.07 

TOTAL  68.18  68.18 
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Unquoted, fully paid up

 25.20 

 -   

`

TOTAL  25.20  -   

 25.20 

 -   

 -   

 -   

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

0.03

TOTAL 0.03 0.04

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

4.78

18.64

TOTAL 23.42 26.35

`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Current Tax

306.44

11.45

 (37.23)

2.64

Total income tax expense 283.30 369.58
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Current Tax and Deferred Tax related to items recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during  in the year :

`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 -   

 (0.44)

Total  (0.44)  (0.60)

`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 1,762.45 

34.94%

615.87

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax 

expense:

 (290.67)

4.16

7.71

 (16.54)

 (37.23)

Total income tax expense 283.30 369.58

Deferred Tax (Liabilities):

`

 As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2021

 (22.67)

 (193.27)

Total deferred tax liabilities  (215.94)  (211.79)

Deferred Tax Assets:

`

 As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2021

17.53

38.15

0.71

509.46

Total deferred tax assets 565.85 539.00

Net Deferred tax (Liabilities) / Assets 349.91 327.21
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Movement in Deferred tax Liabilities / Asset `

Property, 
plant and 

equipment

Intangible 
assets

obligations

Provisions Other 
Deferred 
Tax Asset

Mat Credit 
(Refer 
note)

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities / 
Asset (Net)

As at 31st March 2020

At 1st April 2021  (22.41)  (189.38) 20.72 41.68 1.73 474.87 327.21

As at 31st March 2022  (22.67)  (193.27) 17.53 38.15 0.71 509.46 349.91

Liabilities for Current Tax (Net)  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

0.96

` `

TOTAL  0.96  0.96 

` `

` `

`

st

` `
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

37.11

1.00

 (1.00)

39.86

0.89

TOTAL 77.86 47.10

Note:

` `

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

45.96

` `

TOTAL 45.96 40.68

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 354.54 

 22.01 

 376.55 

 57.02 

 305.01 

 38.62 

 13.64 

TOTAL  790.84  702.83 

NOTE :

` `
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`

 As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2021

Unquoted, fully paid up

 311.60 

At amortised cost

 277.63 

 49.98 

Quoted, fully paid up

127.19

 766.40  644.42 

 639.21 

 127.19 

 127.19 

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

0.48

0.48

336.44

12.45

 (12.45)

TOTAL 336.92 247.46

Note :
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Trade receivables ageing schedule  

As At March 31, 2022

`

Trade receivables outstanding from Due 
date

Not due
Upto  

6 months
6 months 
to 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

 3 years
Total

Total  214.01  106.24  11.80  8.82  4.91  3.59  336.92 

As At March 31, 2021

`

Trade receivables outstanding from Due 
date

Not due
Upto  

6 months
6 months 
to 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

 3 years
Total

Total  199.96  37.20  9.99  7.68  3.46  3.63  247.46 
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

33.52

 -   

33.52

1.62

0.09

TOTAL 35.23 62.78

Note :

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

294.56

15.18

TOTAL 309.74 20.93

Note:

` `

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

0.05

TOTAL 0.05 0.06

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

4.97

29.84

22.56

 (22.56)

29.84

0.11

2.55

0.68

TOTAL 38.15 75.43
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

145.02

9.82

49.01

0.32

 (0.32)

TOTAL 203.85 148.99

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Authorised

` 103.00

` 1.00

Issued

` 102.26

Subscribed and Fully Paid up

` 102.26

TOTAL  102.26 102.25

Notes:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

No. of Shares  ` Crore No. of Shares  ` Crore

1,02,24,86,273 102.25

94,806 0.01

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,02,25,81,079 102.26 1,02,24,86,273 102.25
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Terms / rights attached to equity shares

`

`

Name of the Shareholder
 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021

No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held

7,50,11,445 7.34%

24,28,12,860 23.75%

28,05,00,000 27.43%

Shares Reserved for issue under options

` `

` `

Capital Management
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k) Details of shares held by promoters

As At March 31, 2022

`

Promoter Name
Class of 
Shares

No. of shares 
held at the 
end of the 

year

No. of shares 
held at the 

beginning of 
the Year

Change 
during the 

year

% Change 
during the 

year

Equity 
shares of  

INR 1 each 
fully  
paid
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`

Promoter Name
Class of 
Shares

No. of shares 
held at the 
end of the 

year

No. of shares 
held at the 

beginning of 
the Year

Change 
during the 

year

% Change 
during the 

year

 Equity 
shares of  

INR 1 each 
fully  
paid
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As At March 31, 2021

`

Promoter Name
Class of 
Shares

No. of shares 
held at the 
end of the 

year

No. of shares 
held at the 

beginning of 
the Year

Change 
during the 

year

% Change 
during the 

year

Equity 
shares of  

INR 1 each 
fully  
paid
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`

Promoter Name
Class of 
Shares

No. of shares 
held at the 
end of the 

year

No. of shares 
held at the 

beginning of 
the Year

Change 
during the 

year

% Change 
during the 

year

 Equity 
shares of  

INR 1 each 
fully  
paid
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 1,424.93 

 154.05 

 0.15 

 1.46 

 13.17 

 14.78 

 6,155.85 

 (0.75)

TOTAL  7,748.86  6,256.93 

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Capital Investment Subsidy Reserve

0.15

0.15 0.15

Capital Redemption Reserve

1.46

1.46 1.46

Employee Stock Options Outstanding

7.53

 (6.32)

11.96

13.17 7.53

TOTAL 14.78 9.14

Nature and purpose of reserves

1) Securities premium

2) General reserve
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3) Capital Investment Subsidy Reserve

4) Capital redemption reserve

5) Employee Stock Options Outstanding

6) Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedges

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

20.42

TOTAL 20.42 31.44

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 51.67 

 5.76 

TOTAL 57.43 63.52

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 4.64 

 2.29 

TOTAL  6.93  14.85 
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 -   

 -   

TOTAL  -    0.14 

Notes:

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

11.03

TOTAL  11.03  11.98 

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 23.24 

 602.06 

TOTAL  625.30  802.36 

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 23.24 

 -

Trade payable dues to Micro and small enterprises  -

 -

 -

 -

 -



337

Financial Statements | Standalone

Trade payables ageing schedule 

As At March 31, 2022

`

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total
Unbilled Not due

Less than 
1year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3years

Total  250.03  251.23  119.48  1.23  1.27  2.06  625.30 

As At March 31, 2021

`

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total
Unbilled Not due

Less than 
1year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 

3years

Total 321.79 306.39 169.46 2.05 1.44 1.23 802.36

 `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 4.36 

 57.93 

 15.18 

 11.87 

TOTAL  89.34  160.25 

Note:
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 `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 8.13 

 19.82 

 117.89 

 4.76 

 4.86 

TOTAL  155.46  188.20 

 `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 8.38 

 1.41 

Other provisions

 36.07 

 19.22 

TOTAL  65.08  62.71 

 `

 Sales Returns  Provision towards 
Litigation

As at April 1, 2020  21.85  12.58 

As at April 1, 2021

As at March 31, 2022  36.07  19.22 

Sales Returns:

Legal Claims:
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`

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Revenue from contracts with customers

 6,819.32 

 22.46 

 109.78 

TOTAL  6,951.56  6,254.33 

Notes :

a) Revenue Information

`

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Revenue by product categories

 3,383.99 

 2,682.87 

 752.46 

TOTAL  6,819.32  6,133.44 

`

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Revenue as per contracted price  7,100.63 

 (3.71)

 (277.60)

Revenue from contract with customers  6,819.32  6,133.44 

c) Contract Balances

`

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

 336.92 

 9.82 

 19.82 

Note:

`

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

23.10
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`

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

26.48

8.92

0.81

0.17

 10.90 

 0.62 

0.87

8.17

10.97

1.27

TOTAL 69.18 64.74

`

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Raw material and packing material

 287.95 

 3,152.53 

 3,440.48 

 (376.55)

Cost of Materials Consumed  TOTAL  3,063.93  2,394.30 

`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 292.49 

 61.80 

 49.34 

 403.63  362.43 

 305.01 

 38.62 

 57.02 

 400.65  403.63 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  TOTAL  2.98  (41.20)
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`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 302.59 

 1.05 

 21.75 

 11.96 

 10.17 

TOTAL  347.52  417.09 

`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 -   

2.37

5.39

0.11

TOTAL 7.87 24.81

`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

68.14

12.01

5.46

TOTAL 85.61 83.38
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`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

13.11

100.67

45.89

6.80

4.96

31.48

43.24

7.19

Rates and Taxes 10.41

188.56

21.36

1.86

0.36

0.03

2.25

36.93

0.38

63.22

501.13

78.73

276.55

3.36

 -   

 -   

30.49

59.58

TOTAL  1,483.05  1,475.08 

Note :
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`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 (15.38)

 (42.83)

TOTAL  (58.21) 15.38

Note : 

th

 

`

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

` Crore)  1,479.15  1,224.34 

1,02,24,86,273

94,806

1,02,25,81,079

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares

1,02,25,45,027

Effect of dilution:

1,19,419

1,02,26,64,446

Earnings Per Share

(Face Value ` 1)

` 14.47

` 14.46

`  

` ` `
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

a) CLAIMS FOR EXCISE DUTIES, TAXES AND OTHER MATTERS

56.73

65.07

12.78

3.00

b) GUARANTEES GIVEN ON BEHALF OF SUBSIDIARIES

 -   

 -   

382.75

 -   

278.54

 375.80 

 -   

183.42

 -   

 1,220.51  2,067.27 

c) OTHER GUARANTEES

 

`
37.92

 -   

0.30

38.22 14.49
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

d) CLAIMS AGAINST THE COMPANY NOT ACKNOWLEDGED AS DEBT:

32.22

0.06

e) OTHER MATTERS

A) Related Parties and their Relationship

a) Holding Company:

b) Subsidiaries:

Name of the Subsidiary Country % Holding as at 
March 31, 2022

% Holding as at 
March 31, 2021

100%

100%

100%

100%

Chile 100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

51%

100%

100%

100%

India 100%

India 100%

100%

Chile 100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Name of the Subsidiary Country % Holding as at 
March 31, 2022

% Holding as at 
March 31, 2021

100%

100%

100%

100%

Chile 100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

51%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Indonesia 100%

Indonesia 100%

Indonesia 100%

Indonesia 100%

Indonesia 100%

100%

100%

100%

51%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

51%
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c) Associate Company:

Name of the Associate Company Country % Holding as at 
March 31, 2022

% Holding as at 
March 31, 2021

India 0%

d) Investing Entity in which the reporting entity is an Associate

e) Companies under common Control with whom transactions have taken place during the year

f) Key Management Personnel and Relatives
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g)
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Outstanding Balances

`

Receivables Payables
Guarantees 

Outstanding -  
Given / (Taken)

Commitments

As at 
March 

31, 2022

As at 
March 

31, 2021

As at 
March 

31, 2022

As at 
March 

31, 2021

As at 
March 

31, 2022

As at 
March 

31, 2021

As at 
March 

31, 2022

As at 
March 

31, 2021

 96.13  1.30  1,220.51  -   

 0.00  -    -    -   

 3.06  10.09  (26.88)  -   

 0.66  0.49  (1.21)  0.24 

 -    2.36  -    -   

TOTAL  99.85  76.84  14.24  10.28  1,192.42  2,039.18  0.24  0.53 

 As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021

 In Million  INR crores  In Million  INR crores

 $-   0.00

 $7.50 56.84

 € 2.00 16.84

a) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

 Provident Fund / Super annuation fund:

b) DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

 Gratuity
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 Provident Fund:

`

As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

170.68

168.26

8.45%

8.57%

8.10%

c) Amounts Recognised as Expense:

`

`

 

   ` `
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d)

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

i) Change in Present Value of Obligation

66.33

4.49

4.15

 (1.42)

 (0.39)

0.54

 (11.66)

62.04 66.33

ii) Change in Plan Assets

0.61

0.04

 (0.01)

13.00

 (11.66)

1.99 0.61

iii) Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet:

62.04

1.99

60.05 65.72

iv)

4.49

4.11

8.60 8.83

v) Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year

 (1.27)

0.01

 (1.26)  (1.71)

vi) 5 years 6 years

vii) 8.38 8.28

viii) Major categories of Plan Assets as a % of total Plan Assets

100%

ix) Actuarial Assumptions

 6.41% P.A. 

 9.00% P.A. 

 Indian Assured Lives Mortality  

(2006-08) Ultimate
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x)

`

 As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2021

10.56
nd 8.84

8.14
th 7.95
th 6.58

25.34

xi) Sensitivity analysis

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Increase Decrease

 (2.47)  2.70 

 2.61  (2.43)

Other details

I. EMPLOYEE STOCK GRANT SCHEME
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`

Scheme Grant Date  No. of 
Options

Vesting 
Condition

Exercise Price 
(`) per share

Weighted 
average 
Exercise Price 
(`) per share

Exercise period

Vested in the 

 at the end 

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  1,87,421  2,90,133 

 5,78,514 

 94,806 

 55,027 

Outstanding at the end of the year  6,16,102  1,87,421 

st ` `

` `

 As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2021

5.34%

3.65

34.73%

0.00%

` 977.30

II.
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` `

`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 30.46 

 24.25 

 6.21 

Movement of provision

 -   

 6.24 

 6.24 

Reason for Shortfall

Nature of CSR Activities

`
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`

 As at March 31, 2022
Carrying amount / Fair Value Fair value Hierarchy

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 

 Non Current  

 Current  

 

TOTAL  311.71  -    1,223.43  1,535.14  127.19  664.52  -    791.71 

Financial liabilities 

 Non Current  

 Current 

 TOTAL  -    -    746.09  746.09  -    -    -    -   

`

 As at March 31, 2021
Carrying amount / Fair Value Fair value Hierarchy

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 

 Non Current  

 Current  
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`

 As at March 31, 2021
Carrying amount / Fair Value Fair value Hierarchy

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

TOTAL  129.74  -    947.73  1,077.47  55.30  589.39  -    644.69 

Financial liabilities 

 Non Current  

 Current 

 TOTAL  -    -    1,006.17  1,006.17  -    -    -    -   

B. Measurement of fair values

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique  
unobservable 
inputs

Inter-relationship 
between 

unobservable 
inputs 
and fair value 
measurement
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A. MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK:

 (i) Management of interest rate risk:

 (ii) Management of price risk:

 (iii) Management of currency risk:
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  Exposure to currency risk (Exposure in different currencies converted to functional currency i.e. INR)

`

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022

 GBP  USD  EURO  AED

Financial assets 

 -    51.44  14.68  -   

Financial liabilities 

 (0.16)  4.54  27.44 

Net exposure  0.16  46.90  (12.76)  -   

Exposure to currency risk (Exposure in different currencies converted to functional currency i.e. INR)

`

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021

 GBP  USD  EURO  AED

Financial assets 

 -    97.57  16.95  -   

Financial liabilities 

 (0.10)  96.17  0.87  -   

Net exposure  0.10  1.40  16.08  -   
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Year-end spot rate as at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

 99.55 

 75.81 

 84.66 

 -   

 -   

 0.62 

Sensitivity analysis

`

Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening

March 31, 2022

5% movement

 1.71  (1.71)

`

Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening

March 31, 2021

5% movement

 0.87  (0.87)

B. MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK:
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 14.46 

 (2.01)

 12.45 

C.  MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK:

 Exposure to liquidity risk

`

March 31, 2022 Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 years More than  
3 years

Total  750.12  727.25  22.64  0.23 
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`

March 31, 2021 Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 years More than  
3 years

Total  1,012.58  977.09  34.34  1.15 

 As At   
March 31, 2022

As At 
March 31, 2021

 2.62 

 -   

 79.43 

 0.21 

 9.13 

 23.34 

 4.87 

 4.45 

 0.22 

18.1%

Return on Investment :-

4.78%

5.04%

4.44%

3.59%

4.72%

Reasons for Change in Ratios :

`

`

`

` `

` `

` `
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Name of struck off company Nature of 
transactions

Transactions 
during the year 
March 31, 2022

Balance 
outstanding  as at 

March 31, 2022

Relationship with 
the  Struck off 

company

Name of struck off company Nature of 
transactions

Transactions 
during the year 
March 31, 2021

Balance 
outstanding  as at 

March 31, 2021

Relationship with 
the  Struck off 

company

For B S R & Co. LLP

Nisaba Godrej  Sudhir Sitapati 

Vijay Mathur Sameer Shah  Rahul Botadara 
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To the Members of 

Godrej Consumer Products Limited

Report on the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated 

and notes to the consolidated 

Basis for Opinion

Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Key Audit Matters
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Description of Key Audit Matters 

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition Our audit procedures included:

Impairment evaluation of Goodwill
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Key Audit Matters

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Intangible Assets- impairment assessment Our audit procedures included:

Other Information 

Management’s and 
Board of Directors’ 
Responsibilities for the 
Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
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Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial 
Statements

obtain audit evidence that is 

based on the audit evidence 

and its associate to cease to 
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Other Matters 

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`
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Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

and obtained all 

and the consolidated “Annexure B
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given to us and based on the 

the consolidated 

with the 

that the Holding 
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has caused us to 

believe that the 

B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants

 

Vijay Mathur

Partner

given to us and based on the 
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Annexure A to the 
Independent Auditor’s 

(Referred to in our report of even 

date)

B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants

 

Vijay Mathur

Partner

Annexure B to the 
Independent Auditors’ 
report on the 

statements of Godrej 
Consumer Products 
Limited for the year 
ended 31 March 2022

controls with reference to the 

statements under Clause (i) of 

Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013

Opinion 

Management’s 
Responsibility for 
Internal Financial 
Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility
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testing and evaluating the design 

We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained and the audit 

Meaning of Internal 
Financial controls 
with Reference to 

statements 

Inherent Limitations 
of Internal Financial 
controls with reference 
to consolidated 

Other Matters

B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants

 

Vijay Mathur
Partner
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`
Note 
No.

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

I. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets

3 1,274.91
114.75

98.45
6 5,376.79
6 2,469.15

6A 1.69
-

171.12
0.03

25.09
731.51

11 93.67
89.63

Total Non Current Assets 10,446.79 9,810.41
2. Current assets

2,129.85

13 844.31
1,116.32

Cash and cash equivalents 750.92
356.85

16 0.05
41.83

447.14
Total Current Assets 5,687.27 4,472.41
TOTAL ASSETS 16,134.06 14,282.82

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. EQUITY

102.26
11,453.67

Total Equity 11,555.93 9,438.90
2. LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

380.85
64.44

107.00
51.94

2.29
Total Non Current liabilities 606.52 708.23

Current liabilities

1,226.81
32.24

23.24

2,139.82

227.23
223.84

76.21
22.22

Total Current Liabilities 3,971.61 4,135.69
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,134.06 14,282.82

Consolidated Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2022

For B S R & Co. LLP

Nisaba Godrej Sudhir Sitapati

Vijay Mathur Sameer Shah Rahul Botadara
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 `

   Particulars
Note 
No.

Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

Revenue
 12,276.50

 89.71
III. Total Income (I + II)  12,366.21  11,095.69
IV. Expenses

31  5,782.98
 353.65

 (61.54)

33  1,104.14
 110.16
 209.93

36  2,702.16
Total Expenses  10,201.48  8,970.85

V.
accounted investees and Tax (III-IV)

 2,164.73  2,124.84

 0.28
VII.  2,165.01  2,124.83

 (9.75)
IX.  2,155.26  2,080.36
X. Tax expense:

 397.31
 (25.44)

Total Tax Expense  371.87  359.54
XI.  1,783.39  1,720.82
XII. Other Comprehensive Income

 7.47

 (1.76)

 5.71  4.34

 368.01

 2.84

 370.85  (167.97)
Other Comprehensive Income (net of income tax) (A+B)  376.56  (163.63)

XIII. Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (XI+XII)  2,159.95  1,557.19

 1,783.39  1,720.82
 -  -

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:
 376.56  (163.63)

 -  -
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

 2,159.95  1,557.19
 -  -

XIV. Earnings per equity share (`)
 17.44  16.83
 17.44  16.83

For B S R & Co. LLP

Nisaba Godrej Sudhir Sitapati

Vijay Mathur Sameer Shah Rahul Botadara
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

`

Year ended 
 March 31, 2022

Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 2,155.26 

Adjustments for :

 209.93 

 (10.17)

 3.20 

 2.28 

 (5.48)

 0.06 

 11.96 

 60.19 

 110.16 

 1.97 

 (10.90)

 (39.79)  - 
 (15.38)

 (0.62)

 (59.58)

 (0.28)

 - 

 21.47 

 279.02  391.63 

 2,434.28 

Adjustments for :

 (384.17)

 (88.89)

 0.02 

 30.69 

 (1.70)

 (96.97)

 83.21 

 (74.98)

 (3.38)

 (536.17)  (45.21)

 1,898.11  2,426.78 

Adjustment for :

 (447.54)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities ( A )  1,450.57  2,029.63 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 (276.52)

 (242.30)

 (351.65)

 509.80 

 (65.36)

 (49.98)  - 

 (210.11)

 78.65  - 
 (172.36)

 (143.41)

 59.01 

Net Cash Flow (used in) in Investing Activities ( B )  (864.23)  (315.50)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

`

Year ended 
 March 31, 2022

Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 0.01 

 - 

 1,277.52 

 (1,497.36)

 (112.30)

 (40.65)

 (6.74)

Net Cash Flow  (used in) Financing Activities ( C )  (379.52)  (1,816.22)

 206.82 

 524.13 

 (0.36)

consolidation  20.27 

 750.92 

 (0.06)

 206.82  (102.09)

`

Movement of loans and borrowings:
Year ended 

 March 31, 2022
Year ended 

 March 31, 2021

Opening Balance  1,767.96  3,516.44 

 (219.84)

 59.48 

Closing Balance  1,607.60  1,767.96 

Note: 

For B S R & Co. LLP

Nisaba Godrej Sudhir Sitapati

Vijay Mathur Sameer Shah Rahul Botadara
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(a) Equity Share Capital
Note No.  `

As at April 1, 2020

As at March 31, 2021  102.25

As at March 31, 2022  102.26

(b) Other Equity 
`

Particulars

Reserves & Surplus
Other Comprehensive 

Income

Total
Total 

EquitySecurities 
Premium

General 
Reserve

Other 
Reserves

Retained 
Earnings

Effective 
portion of 
Cash Flow 

Hedges

Exchange 
differences 

on 
translating 

statements 
of foreign 

operations
Balance as at April 1, 2020

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    1,725.16  20.99  (188.96)  1,557.19  1,557.19 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at March 31, 2021  1,418.61  154.05  9.14  7,691.93  (3.46)  66.38  9,336.65  9,336.65 
Balance as at April 1, 2021

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    1,789.10  2.84  368.01  2,159.95  2,159.95 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    11.96 
 -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at March 31, 2022  1,424.93  154.05  14.78  9,426.14  (0.62)  434.39  11,453.67  11,453.67 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

For B S R & Co. LLP

Nisaba Godrej Sudhir Sitapati

Vijay Mathur Sameer Shah Rahul Botadara
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1)  Corporate 
Information

th

2)  Basis of preparation, 
Measurement 

Accounting Policies

2.1  Basis of preparation and 

measurement

a. Basis of preparation

 All assets and liabilities have 

b.  Basis of measurement

liabilities which have been 

and liabilities (including 

c. Principles of consolidation 



380

investees until the date on 

d.  Business combination and 

goodwill

net assets and contingent 

st
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assets and liabilities in local 

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

As at Index*

31st

31st

31st

2.2 Key estimates and 

assumptions

tangible assets and the 
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2.3 Measurement of fair values

uses valuation techniques 

conclusion that such valuations 

used in the valuation techniques 

 Level 1: 

 Level 2:

 Level 3:

a. Property, Plant and Equipment 

 Recognition and measurement

 Subsequent expenditure
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 Depreciation

b.  Goodwill and other Intangible 

Assets 

 Goodwill

consolidation is included in 

 Other intangible assets

as changes in accounting 

an indication that the intangible 
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 Amortization of other intangible 

assets 

at `

c. Borrowing Cost

d. Impairment of Non-Financial 

Assets

indication that the loss has 

e. Assets held for sale
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subsequent gains and losses on 

f. Financial Instruments

 Financial assets

 Initial recognition and 

measurement

 Subsequent measurement

 Financial assets at amortised 

cost 

asset is held within a 

 Financial assets at fair value 

through other comprehensive 

income (FVTOCI)

 - the asset is held within 

subsequent changes in the 
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 Financial assets at fair value 

(FVTPL)

 Derecognition 
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 Financial liabilities

  Initial recognition and 

measurement

 Derecognition

 Financial guarantee contracts 

instruments

intention to settle on a net 

and settle the liabilities 

instruments and hedge 

accounting
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and loss when the hedged 

 

h. Inventories
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between the total cost and 

i. Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents in 

the balance sheet includes cash 

j. Provisions, Contingent 

Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets

at each balance sheet date and 

. Contingent 

k. Revenue Recognition

 Sale of goods
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 Royalty & Technical Fees

 Interest income

 Dividend income 

 i. Short-term Employee 

in the Consolidated 

and the obligation can be 

 ii. Share-based payments 

 iii. Post-Employment 

  

in the Consolidated 

  

  Gratuity Fund
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in the balance sheet with 

gains and losses on the 

 iv. Other Long Term 
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m. Leases

substantive substitution 

that contains a lease 

  As a Lessee:

  Right-of-use asset (ROU):

  Lease liability:

Discounting is done 
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(including in substance 

assets and lease liabilities 

  Lessor

that contains a lease 

contains lease and non-

n. Income Tax
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and

 Deferred Tax

o. Foreign Currency Transactions 

and Translation

 

`



395

Financial Statements | Consolidated

  Group Companies

p. Government grants 

q. Dividend 
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r. Earnings Per Share

that would have been 

s. Segment Reporting 

t. Exceptional Items

to the 

2.5 Standards issued but not yet 

effective
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Note 4 : Capital Work-In-Progress
 `

Ageing as at March 31, 2022 Amount 

Total
Particulars

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

 -  -  -  - -

Total 67.91 2.07 0.40 0.52 114.75 

Ageing as at March 31, 2021 Amount

Total
Particulars

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

-

- - - - -

- - - -

Total 29.22 1.98 0.52 - 52.97 

`

Overdue CWIP projects- expected period of completion as at  
March 31, 2022

To be completed in

Particulars
Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

 `

Overdue CWIP projects- expected period of completion as at  
March 31, 2021

To be completed in

Particulars
Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

- -

- -

- -

- - -

- - -

- - -
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Note 5 : Leases
As a lessee:

Right-of-Use assets  `

Building
Plant and 

Equipment
 Vehicles  Others  Total

Recognised at April 1, 2021  88.04  2.03  1.06  -   91.13

 -   41.14

 -    (34.36)

 -   0.54

Balance as at March 31, 2022 93.74 2.88 1.83  -   98.45

Recognised at April 1, 2020  49.15  2.15  0.35 0.25 51.90

70.82

 -    (31.11)

 -    (0.48)

Balance as at March 31, 2021 88.04 2.03 1.06  -   91.13

 `

Lease liabilities
 As at 

March 31, 2022
 As at 

March 31, 2021

 37.30 

 62.18 

 7.36 

 1.05 

Total undiscounted lease liabilities  107.89  106.85 

 `

Lease liabilities (discounted value)  As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2021

 64.44 

 32.24 

Total  96.68  95.65 

 `

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 65.35 

 1.37 

Total  66.72  64.37 

As a lessor:

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

10.97
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`

Undiscounted lease payments to be received after  March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021

10.86

22.63

 -   

Total undiscounted lease payments  33.49  44.36 

Note 6 : Intangible Assets
`

PARTICULARS
Goodwill 

(Refer note 
52)

Other Intangible assets Total Other 
Intangible 

assets
Trademarks 

and Brands *
Computer 
Software

Technical 
Knowhow

Year ended March 31, 2021

Opening Gross carrying amount

Additions  -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -   

Closing Gross Carrying Amount   5,408.42  2,674.47  144.14  0.10  2,818.71 

 -    -   

 -   

 -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -   

 -   

Impairment 
 31.63  233.83  115.63  0.10  349.56 

Net Carrying Amount  5,376.79  2,440.64  28.51  -    2,469.15 
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`

PARTICULARS
Goodwill 

(Refer note 
52)

Other Intangible assets Total Other 
Intangible 

assets
Trademarks 

and Brands *
Computer 
Software

Technical 
Knowhow

Year ended March 31, 2020

Opening Gross carrying amount

Additions  -    -   

 -    -   

 -   -

 -   

Closing Gross Carrying Amount   5,160.54  2,592.26  129.80  0.10  2,722.16 

 -    -   

 -   -

 -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -   

 -   

Impairment 
 30.69  153.67  94.82  0.10  248.59 

Net Carrying Amount  5,129.85  2,438.59  34.98  -    2,473.57 

Note 6A : Intangible Assets under Development
 `

As at March 31, 2022

Total
Intangible Assets under Development ageing

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

 -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -    -    -    1.69 
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As at March 31, 2021

Total
Intangible Assets under Development ageing

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

-  -    -    -   -

 -    -    -    -   -

 -    -    -    -   

Total -  -    -    -   4.46 

 

 

 

Note 7: Investments in Associate  `

Face 

Value

Numbers  Amounts

As at 
March 31, 

2022

As at 
March 31, 

2021

As at 
March 31, 

2022

As at 
March 31, 

2021

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments of Associate 

Company

`  -    -   

 -    -    -   

(b) Investments in Compulsorily Convertible 

Debentures of   Associate Company

`  -    -   

 -    -    -   

TOTAL  -   

Note:

th

Note 7A: Other Investments (Non-Current)  `

 Amounts

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Quoted, fully paid up:

At Amortised Cost

 145.92 

Unquoted, fully paid up:

At amortised cost

 25.20  -   

Total  171.12  2.51 

 25.20  -   

 145.92 

 145.92 

 -    -   
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Note 8: Loans (Non-Current)  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Total  0.03  0.04 

Note 9: Other Non-Current Financial Assets  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 23.74 

 1.35 

TOTAL  25.09  25.10 

Note 10: Income Taxes

A Income tax expense consists of the following:

i `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Current Tax:

397.31

 9.15 

 (37.23)  -   

 2.64 

Total income tax expense  371.87  359.54 

ii Current Tax and Deferred Tax related to items recognised in Other Comprehensive Income during the year : `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 -    -   

 (1.76)

TOTAL  (1.76)  (1.35)
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B

`

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 2,155.26 

31.94%

 688.35 

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected Income Tax Expense to reported 

Income Tax Expense:

 (290.67)

4.16

 (3.36)

10.91

 (16.54)  -   

 -   

 (25.54)

 (37.23)

42.49

 (0.70)

Total income tax expense 371.87 359.54

C Tax Assets And Liabilities `

 As at  
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 89.63 

 22.22 

D Deferred Tax Assets (Net Of Liabilities):  `

 As at  
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Property, Plant and Equipment  (41.61)

Intangible assets  (193.27)

 (1.16)  -   

Deferred Tax Asset on account of :

 21.08 

Intangible assets  336.72 

 72.69 

 509.46 

 27.60 

Total Deferred Tax Assets  731.51 
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E Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net Of Assets):  `

 As at  
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Deferred Tax Liability on account of :

 (19.65)

Intangible assets  (175.11)

 -   

Deferred Tax Asset on account of :

 6.23 

 21.69 

 101.39 

 13.51 

Total Deferred Tax (Liabilities)  (51.94)  (39.03)

 679.57  637.76 

F  `

Property, 
plant and 

equipment

Intangible 
assets

Other 
Deferred 

Tax 
Liability

obligations

Provisions MAT 
Credit

Other 
Deferred 
Tax Asset

Deferred 
Tax 

Asset (net)

As at April 1, 2020

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   -  -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2021  (60.99)  (35.53)  (0.10)  51.21  85.60  474.87  122.70  637.76 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   -  -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at March 31, 2022  (61.26)  (31.66)  (1.16)  27.31  94.38  509.46  142.50  679.57 

` `
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`

` `

` `

`

`

`

` `
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Note 11: Other Non-Current Assets  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 54.09 

 38.69 

 0.89 

 0.89 

TOTAL  93.67  55.03 

Note 12: Inventories  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

 1,269.76 

 22.01 

 1,291.77  941.12 

 90.51 

 654.79 

 67.83 

 24.95 

TOTAL  2,129.85  1,716.25 

Refer Note 54 for Assets pledged as security

` `

Note 13: Investments (Current)  `

 Amounts

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Unquoted, fully paid up:

 389.51 

At Amortised Cost

 277.63 

 49.98 -

Quoted, fully paid up:

 127.19 

TOTAL  844.31  657.17 

 717.12 

 127.19 

 127.19 
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Note 14: Trade Receivables  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 0.68 

 1,115.64 

 -    -   

 59.79 

 (59.79)

TOTAL  1,116.32  1,004.50 

Refer credit risk in note 49 (B)

Refer Note 54 for Assets pledged as security

Note:

Trade Receivables ageing schedule `

As on March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

 Total Not 
due

Up to 6 
months

6 months 
to 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More 

than 3 
years

good 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 - 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

  

Total  791.22  315.90  18.59  13.65  30.88  5.87 1,116.32 

`

As on March 31, 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

 Total Not 
due

Up to 6 
months

6 months 
to 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More 

than 3 
years

good 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 - 

Total  740.56  243.42  29.72  23.96  18.03  5.60 1,004.50 
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Note 15A: Cash and Cash Equivalents  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 672.50 

 74.63 

 747.13  506.23 

 1.62 

Cash on hand  2.17 

TOTAL  750.92  524.13 

Note 15B: Other Bank Balances  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 341.67 

 15.18 

TOTAL  356.85  148.08 

NOTES:

` 4.23 crore (Mar-31-2021 : ` 4.22 crore)

Note 16: Loans (Current)  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 0.05 

TOTAL  0.05  0.06 
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Note 17: Other Current Financial Assets  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Others

 0.26 

 0.11 

 29.84 

 22.56 

 (22.56)

 29.84  55.50 

 7.47 

TOTAL  41.83  75.22 

Note 18: Other Current Assets  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 180.58 

 12.42 

 254.14 

 1.00 

 (1.00)

 254.14  189.35 

 -   

TOTAL  447.14  347.00 

Note 19: Share Capital  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Authorised

(31-Mar-2021 : 1,030,000,000) ` 1 each 103.00

(31-Mar-2021 : 10,000,000) ` 1 each  1.00

Issued

(31-Mar-2021 : 1,022,517,397) ` 1 each  102.26 

Subscribed and Fully Paid up

(31-Mar-2021 : 1,022,486,273) `  102.26 

TOTAL  102.26  102.25 
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 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

No. of Shares  ` Crore No. of Shares  ` Crore

 1,022,486,273 102.25 1,022,316,352

94,806 0.01 169,921

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  1,022,581,079 102.26  1,022,486,273 102.25

d)

`

e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Name of the Shareholder
 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held

 75,011,445  7.34  7.34 

 242,812,860  23.75  23.75 

 280,500,000  27.43  27.43 

Shares Reserved for issue under options

date of Balance Sheet:

`

`

`

`

There are no calls unpaid on equity shares, other than shares kept in abeyance as mentioned in Note (b) 

above.

j) Capital Management
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k) Details of shares held by promoters

As at 31 March 2022

Promoter Name
Class of 
Shares

No. of shares 
held at the 
end of the 

year

No. of 
shares 

held at the 
beginning 

of the Year

Change 
during 

the year

% 
Change 
during 

the year

 

each 
 

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

- - 

- - 

- - 
- - 
- - 

- - 

- - 
- - 

- - 

- - 

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

66 66 - - 
- - 

63 63 - - 
- - 

- - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 
1 1 - - 
1 1 - - 
1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 
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Promoter Name
Class of 
Shares

No. of shares 
held at the 
end of the 

year

No. of 
shares 

held at the 
beginning 

of the Year

Change 
during 

the year

% 
Change 
during 

the year

 

each 
 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

As at 31 March 2021

Promoter Name
Class of 
Shares

No. of shares 
held at the 
end of the 

year

No. of 
shares 

held at the 
beginning 

of the Year

Change 
during 

the 
year

% 
Change 
during 

the year

 

each 
 

- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 
- - 

- - 

- - 

- - 
- - 
- - 

- - 

- - 
- - 

- - 

- - 

- - 

- - 

- - 
- - 
- - 

66 
- - 

63 63 - - 
- - 

- - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 
1 1 - - 
1 1 - - 
1 1 - - 
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Promoter Name
Class of 
Shares

No. of shares 
held at the 
end of the 

year

No. of 
shares 

held at the 
beginning 

of the Year

Change 
during 

the 
year

% 
Change 
during 

the year

 

each 
 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

1 1 - - 

Note 20: Other Equity  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 1,424.93 

 154.05 

Other Reserves

 0.15 

 1.46 

 13.17 

 14.78  9.14 

 9,426.14 

 433.77 

TOTAL  11,453.67  9,336.65 
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OTHER RESERVES MOVEMENT  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Capital Investment Subsidy Reserve

0.15

0.15 0.15

Capital Redemption Reserve

1.46

1.46 1.46

Employee Stock Options Outstanding

7.53

 (6.32)

(Refer Note 33) 11.96

Closing Balance 13.17 7.53

TOTAL 14.78 9.14

Nature and purpose of reserves

1) Securities Premium

2) General Reserve 

 

3) Capital Investment Subsidy Reserve 

 

4) Capital Redemption Reserve 

5) Employee Stock Options Outstanding 

 

 

7) Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedges
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Note 21: Non-Current Borrowings
 `

Maturity Date Terms of Repayment Interest 
rate*

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

A. Secured

0.16

Unsecured

Term loans

768.80

-

768.96  1,488.91

768.96  1,488.91

(Refer Note 24)

 (388.11)  (1,008.80)

TOTAL 380.85  480.11

Note 22: Provisions  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(Refer Note 44)  101.21 

 5.79 

TOTAL  107.00  114.72 

Note 23: Other Non-Current Liabilities  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 2.29 

TOTAL  2.29  6.88 
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Note 24: Current Borrowings  `

Maturity Date Terms of 
Repayment rate*

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

A. Secured

(Refer Note 

below)

0.06

0.06 0.36

B. Unsecured

dates 

397.70

440.94

838.64

C. Current maturity of long 

term debt (Refer Note 21)

388.11

TOTAL  1,226.81  1,288.21 

Note 25: Trade Payables  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 23.24 

 2,139.82 

TOTAL  2,163.06  2,012.40 

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

I  23.24 

II  -    -   

Trade payable dues to Micro and small enterprises  23.24  24.86 

 -  -

 - -

 -  -

 -  -
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Ageing of Trade payables outstanding as on March 31, 2022 `

As on March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

 Total  
Unbilled 

 Not due 
Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More 
than 3 
years

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

Total  586.44  1,383.93  187.06  2.52  1.01  2.10 2,163.06 

Ageing of Trade payables outstanding as on March 31, 2021 `

As on March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

 Total  
Unbilled 

 Not due 
Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More 
than 3 
years

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

Total  713.49  1,032.78  260.80  2.24  1.60  1.49 2,012.40 

Note 26: Other Current Financial Liabilities  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 5.10 

(Refer Note (a) below)  15.18 

 50.83 

 0.51 

 0.54 

 7.64 

 132.81 

 14.62 

TOTAL  227.23  455.03 
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Note 27: Other Current Liabilities  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 32.05 

 30.25 

 117.89 

 43.65 

TOTAL  223.84  226.19 

Note 28: Provisions  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 8.38 

 4.45 

Other Provision :

 41.33 

 22.05 

TOTAL  76.21  72.40 

 `

 Sales Returns  Provision 
towards 

Litigation

As at April 1, 2021  37.34 

 4.91 

 (0.13)

 (0.79)

As at March 31, 2022  41.33  22.05 

Sales Returns: 

Legal Claims: 
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Note 29 : Revenue From Operations  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 12,174.22 

 102.28 

TOTAL  12,276.50  11,028.62 

b) Revenue Information  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Revenue by product categories

 4,958.07 

 4,049.30 

 3,166.85 

TOTAL  12,174.22  10,936.01 

c)

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Revenue as per contracted price  13,250.87 

 (76.93)

 (999.72)

Revenue from contract with customers  12,174.22  10,936.01 

d) Contract Balances  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

(Refer Note 14)  1,116.32 

(Refer Note 18)  12.42 

(Refer Note 27)  30.25 

e)  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 27.44 
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Note 30 : Other Income  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 26.48 

 33.10 

 0.81  -   

 0.17 

 10.90 

 0.62 

 -   

 10.97 

 6.66 

TOTAL  89.71  67.07 

Note 31: Cost of Materials Consumed  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Raw material and packing material

 941.12 

 6,133.63 

 7,074.75 

 (1,291.77)

Cost of Materials Consumed  5,782.98  4,606.76 

Note 32: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,  
Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 587.86 

 86.42 

 77.31 

 751.59  709.24 

 654.79 

 67.83 

 90.51 

 813.13  751.59 

 (61.54)  (42.35)
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 `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 1,012.30 
 22.85 
 11.96 
 57.03 

TOTAL  1,104.14  1,123.34 

Note 34: Finance Costs  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 -   
 65.66 
 19.08 

 6.74 
 18.68  -   

TOTAL  110.16  126.63 

Note 35: Depreciation and Amortization Expenses  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 143.84 
 34.36 
 31.73 

 TOTAL  209.93  203.85 

Note 36: Other Expenses  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 33.02 
 133.49 
 66.72 

 16.11 
 9.57 

 69.35 
 95.03  82.13 
 24.18 
 43.44 

 302.25 
 44.32 
 79.80 

Donations  2.68 
 236.41 
 750.77 
 146.17 
 424.06 

 1.46 
 19.16 
 12.10 

 1.97  -   
 96.62 

 3.20 
 185.31 

 TOTAL  2,702.16  2,587.61 
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 `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

 (4.73)

 (60.19)

 15.38 

 39.79  -   

 -   

TOTAL  (9.75)  (44.47)

NOTE:

Note 38: Earnings Per Share
 Year ended 

March 31, 2022
 Year ended  

March 31, 2021

` Crore)  1,783.39  1,720.82 

 1,022,486,273 

 94,806 

 1,022,581,079 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares

 1,022,545,027 

 Effect of dilution:

 119,419 

 1,022,664,446 

Earnings Per Share Before and After Extraordinary Items

`

` 17.44

 Diluted (` 17.44

Note 39 : Commitments  `

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 Year ended  
March 31, 2021

` `
41.55

 TOTAL 41.55 49.14

Note 40 : Dividend
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Note 41 : Contingent Liabilities  `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

a) CLAIMS FOR EXCISE DUTIES, TAXES AND OTHER MATTERS

 57.70 

 70.75 

 253.79 

 3.00

b)

 -   

 -   

 -   

 34.16 

 -   

 23.50 

 -   

 382.75 

 13.26  -   

Others

` `

37.92

 -   

0.30

c) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt  32.28 
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d)

e) Other Matters

Note 42 : Related Party Disclosures
A) Related Parties and their Relationship

a) Associate Company:

Name of the Associate Company Country % Holding as at 
March 31, 2022

% Holding as at 
March 31, 2021

India 0%

 b) Investing Entity in which the reporting entity is an Associate

 c) Companies under common Control with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

 d) Key Management Personnel and Relatives:
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Note 43 : Forward Contracts

 As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2022

 In million  INR cr  In million  INR cr

 US $16.03 121.81

 US $9.50 72.19

€ 2.00 16.85

a) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

 Provident Fund:

b) DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

 Gratuity:
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  Provident Fund:

 `

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

170.68

168.26

8.45%

8.57%

8.10%

c) Amounts Recognised as Expense:

` `

` `
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

i) Change in Present Value of Obligation

 117.71 

 (3.16)

 12.60 

 7.41 

 2.83 

 (1.65)

 (4.02)

 (1.82)

 (7.49)

 (18.04)

Present value of the obligation at the end of the year  111.86 

ii) Change in Plan Assets

 0.87 

 0.08 

 (0.02)

 19.38 

 (18.04)

Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  2.27 

iii) Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet:

 111.86 

 2.27 

Net Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet  109.59 

iv)

 12.60 

 (3.16)

 7.33 

Net Cost Included in Personnel Expenses  16.77 

v) Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year

 (7.49)

0.02

Recognised in other comprehensive income  (7.47)

vi)  8.26 years 

vii) 12.25

viii) Major categories of Plan Assets as a % of total Plan Assets

100%

ix) Actuarial Assumptions

 6.41%-13.5%p.a 

6% p.a.-12.8%p.a 

India  

Indonesia
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x) `

 As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2021

14.48

nd 11.61

3 28.88

th 28.56

th 10.95

67.27

xi) Sensitivity analysis

 `

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

 (7.28)  8.48 

 8.41  (7.29)

 Other details

Methodology Adopted for ALM Projected Unit Credit Method

I. Employee Stock Grant Scheme
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`

Scheme Grant Date  No. of 
Options

Vesting 
Condition

Exercise Price 
(`) per share

Weighted 
average 

Exercise Price 
(`) per share

Exercise 
period

Vested in the 

 at the 

Movement in the number of share options during the year:

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  187,421  290,133 

 578,514 

 94,806 

 55,027 

Outstanding at the end of the year  616,102  187,421 

st

`

`
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As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

5.34%

3.65

34.73%

0.00%

` 977.30

Note 47 : Subsequent Events
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Note 48 : Financial Instruments

`

As at March 31, 2022 Fair value Hierarchy

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 

Non Current  

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Current  

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 389.62  0.26  2,916.64 3,306.52  127.19  888.61  -    1,015.80 

Financial liabilities 

Non-Current

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -   

Current

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -   

 -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 7.64  0.54  4,035.62 4,094.63  -    8.18  50.83  59.01 
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As at March 31, 2021
Fair value Hierarchy

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets 

Non Current  

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Current   -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 142.49  0.32  2,294.00 2,436.81  55.30  604.97  -    660.27 

Financial liabilities 

Non-Current

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -   

Current  -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -   

 -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 15.62  31.11  4,120.79 4,331.40  -    46.73  163.88  210.61 

* The put option liability is fair valued at each reporting date through equity

`
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B. Measurement of fair values

 Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Valuation technique  
unobservable inputs

Inter-relationship between 

inputs and fair value 
measurement

 

 

given below

Level 3 fair values

`

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Opening Balance  163.88  390.14 

 54.89 

 -   

 (172.36)

 -   

 4.42 

Closing Balance  50.83  163.88 
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Valuation processes

Put Option Liability -

Sensitivity analysis

Put Option Liability `

Year ended March 31, 2022

Equity impact

10% Increase 10% Decrease

Year ended March 31, 2021

Equity impact

10% Increase 10% Decrease

Note 49 :  Financial Risk Management

A. Management Of Market Risk:

 (i) Management of price risk:
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 (ii) Management of currency risk:

 Exposure to currency risk (Exposure in different currencies converted to INR)

`

`

As at March 31, 2022 GBP USD EURO ZAR Others

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 0.63  199.45  14.69  1.85  1.10 

Financial liabilities

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 (0.14)  275.70  27.82  -    1.16 

Net Exposure  0.77  (76.25)  (13.13)  1.85  (0.06)

`

As at March 31, 2021 GBP USD EURO ZAR Others

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents  -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -   

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 0.66  196.43  16.95  1.04  4.85 

Financial liabilities  -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   

Net Exposure  0.66  (46.79)  15.81  1.04  (3.88)
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Year-end spot rate

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

 99.43 

 75.99 

 84.24 

 5.22 

 Sensitivity analysis

 `

Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening

March 31, 2022

 (4.34)  4.34 

 `

Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening

March 31, 2021

 (1.66)  1.66 

(iii) Management of interest risk:

 Exposure to interest rate risk
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`

As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Borrowings

302.82

 1,304.84 

 1,607.66  1,768.32 

 

 

`

50 bp increase 50 bp decrease

As at March 31, 2022

 (4.84)  4.84 

As at March 31, 2021

 (0.06)  0.06 

B. Management of Credit Risk:
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`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Opening Balance  56.79  41.72 

 6.58 

 (3.20)

 (0.38)

Closing Balance  59.79  56.79 

C. Management of Liquidity Risk:

 Exposure to liquidity risk

`

As at March 31, 2022

Carrying 
amount

Total Less than 1 
year

1-3 years More than 3 
years

 -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   
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`

As at March 31, 2021 Carrying 
amount

Total Less than 1 
year

1-3 years More than 3 
years

 -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

 -   

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging

 -    -    -   

 -    -    -   

Note 50 :  Hedge Accounting
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Sr 
No

Type of 

position

Hedged item Description of hedging 
strategy

Hedging 
instrument

Description of hedging 
instrument

Type of 
hedging 
relationship

1

hedge

hedge

For the year ended March 31, 2022 `

Hedging Instrument Notional 
principal 
amounts 
outstanding

Derivative  
Financial 
Instruments 
- Assets 
outstanding

Derivative 
Financial 
Instruments 
– Liabilities 
outstanding

due to 
change in  
fair value  
for the 
year

Change in 
fair value 
for the year 
recognized 
in OCI

Ineffectiveness 
recognized in  

 
loss

Line item in 

that includes 
hedge  
ineffectiveness

Amount 

from the 
hedge reserve 

loss

Line item in 
 

affected 
by the 

 -   

Previous Year  1,488.67  0.32  31.11  20.99  20.99  -   NA NA NA

`

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Total Less than  
1 year

1-5 years Over 5 
years

Total Less than  
1 year

1-5 years Over  
5 years

Interest rate risk:

 335.10  335.10  -    -    -    -   

1.89% 1.89% 0.00%  -    -   
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`

Particulars reserve for the year ended 
March 31, 2022

reserve for the year ended 
March 31, 2021

 (3.46)

 2.84 

 -    -   

 -    -   

Closing balance  (0.62)  (3.46)

th 

`

` `

`

`

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
 March 31, 2021

India  2.47 

Indonesia  1,611.49 

 3,251.65 

 316.96 

 194.22 

Total  5,376.79  5,129.85 

and
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`

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2022

 As at 
March 31, 2021

India  791.25 

 1,426.44 

Chile  1.49 

Total  2,219.18  2,213.26 

Particulars (CGU and brands)
As at January 31, 2022

Average sales growth Pre Tax discount rate Terminal growth rate

Indonesia

Particulars (CGU and brands)
As at January 31, 2021

Average sales growth Pre Tax discount rate Terminal growth rate

Indonesia
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` `

`

Note 53 :  Segment Reporting

Description of segments and principal activities:

Information about reportable segments for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2022

`

Particulars India Indonesia Africa 
(including 

Strength of 
Nature)

Others Total

 6,951.56 

 (149.34)

 6,802.22  12,276.50 

 1,729.29 

 23.77 

 (85.61)

 36.38 

 -    -    -    -   

 58.21  -   

 -    -    -    -   

 2,155.26 

 -    -    -    -   

 1,783.39 

Highlight
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Year ended March 31, 2021

`

Particulars India Indonesia Africa 
(including 

Strength of 
Nature)

Others Total

 6,254.33 

 (126.71)

 6,127.62  11,028.62 

 1,649.72 

 25.43 

 (83.36)

 21.76 

 -    -    -    -   

 (15.38)  -   

 -    -    -    -   

 2,080.36 

 -    -    -    -   

 1,720.82 

Particulars  As at 
 March 31, 2022

 As at 
 March 31, 2021

 4,483.55 

 3,204.14 

 7,482.11 

 1,078.83 

 (114.57)

 16,134.06  14,282.82 

 1,000.51 

 569.85 

 1,150.57 

 217.68 

 (115.65)

 2,822.96  2,816.07 

 1,755.17 

Total Liabilities  4,578.13  4,843.92 

Information about major customers:
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Capital expenditure `

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2021

 Year ended 
March 31, 2020

 165.91 

 10.12 

 97.84 

 14.82 

 Total  288.69 

Note 54 :  Assets Pledged as Security

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

`

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
 March 31, 2021

Current

Financial assets

Floating charge

(Refer Note 14)  3.00 

Total (a)  3.00 

Non Financial assets

First charge

(Refer Note 12) (b)  21.14 

Total current assets pledged as security (c) = (a) + (b)  24.14 

Non Current

First charge

(Refer Note 3)  15.87 

Total non-current assets pledged as security (d)  15.87 

Total assets pledged as security (e) = (c) + (d)  40.01  38.39 
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Note 56  : Utilisation of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium

Note 57 : Struck off Companies

Name of struck off company
Nature of 

transactions

Transactions during 
the year March 31, 

2022

Balance 
outstanding as at 

March 31, 2022

Relationship with 
the Struck off 

company

 - 

Name of struck off company
Nature of 

transactions

Transactions during 
the year March 31, 

2021

Balance 
outstanding as at 

March 31, 2021

Relationship with 
the Struck off 

company

 - 
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Note 58 :  Details of Subsidiaries and Associate

Name of the subsidiaries
Country of 
Incorporation

Ownership interest held by the 
Group

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

India

India

Chile

Chile

Dubai

Chile

Dubai
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Name of the subsidiaries
Country of 
Incorporation

Ownership interest held by the 
Group

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Indonesia

Indonesia

Indonesia

Indonesia

Indonesia

India

Note 59 : General

Nisaba Godrej Sudhir Sitapati

Vijay Mathur Sameer Shah Rahul Botadara
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nd

(AGM

ORDINARY BUSINESS

(both standalone and 

 “RESOLVED THAT

nd

th

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. Ordinary Resolution for the 

Nanabhoy & Co. (Firm 

Membership number 000012), 

appointed as Cost Auditors 

year 2022-23

RESOLVED THAT

Godrej Consumer Products Limited

th  

 

Tel.: Fax:  

Website: E-mail:  

CIN:

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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` 6

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT 

6. Ordinary Resolution for re-

appointment of Ms. Nisaba 

Godrej (DIN: 00591503) 

as Whole-time Director 

designated as “Executive 

Chairperson” for a period of 

2022, to September 30, 2027.

 RESOLVED THAT

I. Period of appointment: 

October 1, 2022 to September 

30, 2027

II. Remuneration

 i. Fixed remuneration:

  Within a band that is not 

less than `

` 13

 ii. Variable remuneration:

 iii. Perquisites (evaluated at 

actual cost or if the cost 

is not ascertainable, the 

same shall be valued as 

per Income Tax Rules):
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Overall Remuneration and 

Minimum Remuneration:

III.  Other terms

By Order of the Board of Directors

Rahul Botadara 
Company Secretary & Compliance 

Notes:
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ELECTRONIC DISPATCH OF 

ANNUAL REPORT

PROCEDURE FOR JOINING 

OAVM:

e-Voting will be eligible 

be eligible to vote at the 

connecting via Mobile 

PROCEDURE TO RAISE 

CLARIFICATION WITH 

RESPECT TO ANNUAL 

REPORT:

th
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 SCHEDULE AND PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

nd

 The schedule for e-voting is as follows:-

Cut-off date for reckoning 
voting rights for e-voting

Commencement of 
e-voting (Start date)

Close of e-voting 
(End date)

Results announcement date

Wednesday, July 27, 2022 Saturday, July 30, 
2022, 9.00 a.m. (IST)

Tuesday, August 2, 
2022, 5.00 p.m. (IST)

On or before Friday, August 5, 
2022, 5.00 p.m. (IST)

www.godrejcp.com

 The procedure for members for voting electronically are as follows:-

 Step 1

 Step 2

 Note:

decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders by way of a single login credential, through 

 Step 1

In terms of  on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to 
vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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, for Individual 

Type of 
shareholders

 Login Method

Individual 

with CDSL 
Depository

https://web.cdslindia.com/
myeasi/home/login www.cdslindia.com

https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

www.cdslindia.com
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin

Individual 

with NSDL 
Depository

https://eservices.nsdl.com

https://
eservices.nsdl.com https://eservices.
nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Individual 

Depository 
Participants (DP)
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 Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com 

NSDL

Step 2

 Physical shareholders 

and shareholders other 

than individual holding in 

Demat form.

should log on to the 

e-voting website www.

evotingindia.com

ID

and had logged on 

to www.evotingindia.

com and voted on an 

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares 
in Demat.

Details

OR
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ng these details Additional Facility for Non 

– Individual Shareholders 

and Custodians –For 

Remote Voting only.

to www.evotingindia.

com

helpdesk.evoting@

cdslindia.com

the login details a 
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investor.relations@

godrejcp.com

 PROCESS FOR THOSE 

SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE 

NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 

 

to helpdesk.evoting@

cdslindia.com

th

helpdesk.

evoting@cdslindia.com

website 

PROCEDURE FOR 

INSPECTION OF 

DOCUMENTS:

sent on 
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DIVIDEND RELATED 

INFORMATION the details given in the table 

Dividend Period Type of Dividend Paid in Due date for transfer

By Order of the Board of Directors

Rahul Botadara 
Company Secretary & Compliance 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM 4

th

nd

nd

th

constituted on 27 March 1990 

registration no. as 101248W. It and 

was converted into limited liability 

14 October 2013 thereby having a 

th Floor, Central 

IT Park 4, Nesco Centre, Western 

Express Highway, Goregaon (East), 

a network registered with the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Kolkata, Hyderabad, Pune, Chennai, 

Chandigarh, Ahmedabad, Vadodara, 

Co. LLP has over 3000 staff and 

audits various companies listed on 

stock exchanges in India including 

companies in the FMCG sector.

ITEM 5
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ITEM 6

By Order of the Board of Directors

Rahul Botadara 
Company Secretary & Compliance 
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Information pursuant to the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards with respect to appointment or re-

appointment of Directors

Names of Director Nisaba Godrej Jamshyd Godrej Tanya Dubash

   

 

Details along with 

3  3

Listed Public Companies: Listed Public Companies:

Public Companies:

Listed Public Companies:
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Names of Director Nisaba Godrej Jamshyd Godrej Tanya Dubash

Public Companies:

Private Companies:

Foreign Companies:

LLPs:

Partnership Firms;

Private Companies:

Foreign Companies:

Section 8 Companies:

India

LLPs:

Partnership Firms:

Public Companies:

Private Companies:

LLPs:

Partnership Firms:

Member:

Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee:

Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee:

Risk Management Committee:

Chairperson:

Member:

Chairperson:

Member:

Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee:

Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee:

Chairperson:

Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee
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Brief Resume

Nisaba Godrej

Jamshyd Godrej

3

Tanya Dubash






